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STATEMENT FROM THE DIRECTOR
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It is my pleasure to present the 2010
activity report of Center for Strategic Re-
search and Development of Georgia. For
the second consecutive year our organiza-
tion has been preparing its annual reports
by recognized internationally Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) format.

In 2010, similar to the previous years,
sustainable development issues were an
inseparable part of our activities and
strategic objectives. We are still trying to
manage and improve our socio-economic
and environmental impacts and to make
our contribution in the accomplish-
ment of the national goals of sustain-
able development. At the same time, as
an organization which is joined to UN
Global Compact Initiative, we consider
Global Compact’s ten universal princi-
ples in our activity in the areas regarding
environment protection, human rights,
labour rights and combatting corruption,
and, to the best of our possibilities, we try
to promote their introduction on various
levels of our activity.

In 2010 our organization completed 15
years of successful activity in the pub-
lic sector, and, even if this might sound
ambitious, we believe that CSRDG has
established itself as a strong research
and think-tank organization, as well as a
reliable and professional partner. Cur-
rently we offer the public a whole variety
of consulting and training services, and
carry out our activities in such important
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obgo bgggmmgddo Mmammogss: badmgsmsdm
LoDMgdEMYdol gobgnmaMgds, 93mbmdngs s
bmgosm®o 3mmn@n s, 30Mg3mb ©s(339,
©9(396@Momads(300, m3b3oMgdgmoms Mgmy-
3940, 3mE3mEs 300 bmosmama 3obayb-
0bdggdmmds s bmznsmamo dgbsmdgmds.

2010 byl ,, (396863 BomdsBgdaoom ©osb-
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oyMEbmdnc dgddsgms sbsmo badBmasba
3ma 30l bGMsGgans.

3Ly bgmb ob®mmes dndomds gub-
©05996@® 353m 330357 »3gMM3MMS (30490
bmgosmamo 3sbbobdagdmmds s bobgma-
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©03900b dgbabgd dgmezsobgdema 3mb 3698-

areas as: civil society development,
country economy and social policy,
environment protection, decentrali-
zation, customer rights, corporate
social responsibility, and social
enterprising.

In 2010, CSRDG successfully
completed its Three Year Program
(2008-2010 years). The program
effectiveness and its impacts on the
national and local levels were evalu-
ated positively by the invited ex-
perts. A strategy for the new Three
Year Program has been developed
based on the accumulated experi-
ence and the experts’ recommenda-
tions.

WE C1iDDNDT

Last year, work was completed
on a fundamental research - Cor-
porate Social Responsibility and the
Role of the State Sector. I think, that
analytical information presented in
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93m39bms(309d0, Lok gMgbm

the paper, and specific recommendations to
the Georgian government regarding possible
government initiatives to promote corporate
social responsibility, will be interesting for
representatives of the State sector, as well as
for business corporations, civil society organi-
zations, scientific-research institutions and
international organizations.

Studies conducted in the area of the devel-
opment of civil society organizations will also
be interesting to the public: a nationwide so-
ciological research on the dynamics and trends
of the development of civil society organiza-
tions; review of social enterprising experience
in Western countries, and the analysis of the
Georgian legislation with this respect.

In 2010, CSRDG was actively involved in
working on the environmental legislation
of the country. In particular, the following
documents have been developed with direct
participation of CSRDG experts: the National
Environmental Report for 2006-2010; a docu-
ment for Georgia’s national action plan on
environment protection; as well as important
documents on the management of chemicals
in the country.

CSRDG has successfully implemented a pi-
lot project on development of social enterpris-
ing and has accumulated quite good experi-
ence in this area for the future work.

Last year, CSRDG established partner rela-
tionships with civil society and State organi-
zations from Poland, Ukraine and Moldova.
Several joint projects were successfully imple-
mented in cooperation with those organiza-
tions, and implementation of new ones have
been planned.
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Several new interesting ser-
vices were added to CSRDG’s
expert-consulting services, suc
as: a learning course “Corporat
Social Responsibility” has been
developed for business admini
tration students; various traini
modules - municipal property
formation and management;
local budgeting and monitorin
municipal services and citizens
co-participation in making loc
decisions - were developed for
cal public servants. It should al
be noted that an open training
course dedicated to the topic o
development of social enterpri
ing was carried out particularl
successfully.

And finally, I would like to
express my deepest gratitude t
all individuals and organizatio
that were cooperating with us i
2010, and express my very spe
gratefulness to all employees o
CSRDG that over many years
have been serving the organi-
zation to achieve its goals and
ensure success of our programs.
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“I have known and have been cooperating with Center for a long time. Over the past years,
CSRDG has become sort of a recognized forum to discuss views about ongoing economic pro-
cesses in Georgia and the whole region. I would like to wish to have more such organizations in
Georgia”.

Natia Turnava - Head of the Board of Directors of the Georgian Industrial Group

“My cooperation with Center gives me a full right to point out three main principles to which
the Center is loyal in its activity: professionalism, objectivity and a deep interest in the global well-
being of our mother country. I would like to express special warmth to CSRDG’s staff which rather
reminds me of a friendly and careful family”

Giorgi Dzneladze - Professor, Center’s expert

“We have an intensive cooperation with Center. The cooperation has been long-term and fruit-
ful. Several important system changes have been achieved during those years, including: establish-
ing a tradition of studying the public’s most important needs, carrying out programs promoting
civil initiatives, establishing practices of involvement of community centres and non-governmen-
tal organisations in budgetary processes, and other important issues that have helped to provide
quality and effective municipal services.”

Giorgi Gozalishvili - The head of Lagodekhi municipality Sakrebulo

“My age, and life and work experience give me the right to say the following: I am proud to be a
member of this organisation from the very first day of its establishment.

The organisation was founded in 1995. It did not own any assets. In a rented place, owing to
enthusiasm and the belief in their abilities, by an extremely hard work, a group of young people
quickly made the name of a trustworthy partner and honest worker. At present, this staff is really
arole model for employees of other similar organisations.”

Eliso Gharibashvili - Center for Strategic Research and Development of Georgia

“When talking about Center, it is difficult to briefly evaluate those values that connect one with
this organisation. Especially when such relations have a history of longer than a decade.

What is it that makes such special relations with CSRDG? In our opinion, this is fed by four
main factores: first - strengthening the belief in your own abilities, second - accomplishment of the
targeted objectives by means of available resources, third - forecasting goal-oriented results and
the ability of self-evaluation, and finally, fourth - simple humane support and friendly relation-
ships. Probably, this is the blend that attracts you and gives you a pleasure in professional life and
personal relationships.”

Levan Khintibidze - Georgian Democratic Development Union (Ozurgeti)

“1 had the chance to collaborate with CSRDG few times repeatedly during last ten years, and
everytime it ment for me: excellent working outcomes, pleasure, fun, mutual admiration and flash-
ing moments of friendship. In CSRDG I had the opportunity to observe the huge, dynamic and
innovative organizational body in motion. Sometimes I had the feeling that during the repeated
visit after few years I am meeting the same people , but at the same time, I am facing new organiza-
tion- even more elaborated and even more professional than it seemed to be the previous visit...
I am quite often providing the training where we are looking for functioning principles of the
highly sofisticated so called “Learning organizations” If I need an excellent example to illustrate



thesepriciples- CSRDG comes into my mind, naturally. For me, CSRDG became the very pro-
fessional “western-like” institution that possesses also the very tasty flavors of the Georgian
traits. I wish CSRDG to sustain like that forever.”

Dushan Ondrusek - Partners for Democracy Changes (Slovakia)

“Oxfam Novib has been supporting CSRDG for about a decennium.
Oxfam Novib will remember CSRDG as an innovative partner who will remain an influen-
tial civil society actor in Georgia and beyond. “

Matilda Nahabedian - Oxfam Novib

“I, along with Colleagues at the University of Birmingham, have worked with CSRDG for
eleven years. What is particularly inspiring about the organisation is not only its commitment
to social justice but its combination of research, community development and the scrutiny
of local government planning and finance which is playing a significant role in building civil
society in Georgia and is an inspiration for those of us working with community groups in
the UK”.

Angus McCabe - Third Sector Research Centre,University of Birmingham

“EED has a long history of partnership with the Center of Strategic Research and Develop-
ment of Georgia. Since 2005 EED has been funding partner for a variety of projects in dif-
ferent fields. The experience that the devoted team collects in their daily work often leads to
new projects which are innovative and very much needed for the changing environment of
Georgia.

At the same time CSRDG convinces their counterparts with strategic action starting from
grassroot up to regional and central level in which they show conflict sensitiveness and a
unique approach allowing mutual learning experiences. Empowerment of the poor without
creating dependency is taken as a serious task in their community mobilisation work and is an
important factor for the sustainability of their work.

EED wishes to thank CRDSG for such a fruitful cooperation throughout all the years and
for all their efforts for the future development of Georgia.”

Ilonka Boltze - Church Development Service (EED)

“From the day of its foundation CSRDG has assisted the development of hundreds of civil
society organizations and CBOs, which is an invaluable contribution to the building of Geor-

»

gia.

George Bokeria - Georgian Civil Development Association (Lagodekhi)

“I believe that the reason why this organization over the years maintains its unique place
in the quite diverse civil sector is its ability to adequately evaluate events, time and space,
and react respectively. And, also, what I value very highly, is that over these 15 years CSRDG
has not fallen to the temptation to gain cheap popularity, create “noise” around fashionable
topics without having sound facts and performing adequate analysis. People working in this
organization are real professionals in their fields. They know what to do and how to do that.
For them, achieving results through cooperation is more important than confrontation and
making themselves more popular. For them, true value is to bring real improvement in the
lives of at least several villages, or even several individuals, rather than just show off with
idealistic but unfulfillable concepts.”

Eka Badridze - Founder of CSRDG
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Founded in 1995, Centre for Strategic Re-
search and Development of Georgia is a civil
society organisation with 15 years of successful
work experience in the civil sector. The organi-
sation’s legal status is Foundation. Our ac-
tivity area is the country of Georgia. Centre's
head office is in Thbilisi and a branch office in
Telavi.

Our main financing sources are grants re-
ceived from international foundations and de-
velopment agencies, while a small share of our
budget comes from services (such as training
and consultations) provided by our organisa-
tion. (More details are presented in Financial
Report, see Annex 6 ).

OUR MISSION

The Centre for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia seeks to promote the devel-
opment of civil society in Georgia by raising the
awareness of the population, stimulating the
active involvement of citizens in decision mak-
ing processes, advocating the interests of vari-
ous civic groups, supporting civic initiatives,
and conducting applicable practical research.

In short: the mission of the organisation is to
build up civil society in Georgia by promoting
mutual dialogue between the Government and
citizens.

THEMAIN SPHERES OF OUR ACTIVITIES

To fulfil its mission, the Centre has three
long-term strategic objectives in relation to the
country’s population, Government and private
sector:

e CSRDG actively works with the public for
awareness raising, promoting the involve-
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ment of stakeholders in decision-making
processes, and helping the public to protect
their interests.

e In relation to the Government, CSRDG’s ob-
jective is to promote effective designing and
implementation of structural reforms by the
Government, with the active participation of
the population.

¢ Inrelation to the private sector, CSRDG pro-
motes the active involvement of the business
in achieving sustainable development objec-
tives by introducing the concept and prac-
tice of responsible business and developing
multi-sectoral partnerships.

In our opinion, all three objectives are
strongly interrelated and their conglomeration
makes a serious contribution to the country’s
sustainable development, raising the quality of
life and building democracy.

The main spheres of the Centre’s activities
under the strategic objectives are:

Civic development;

Community / rural development;
Economy and social policy;
Environment protection;
Government decentralisation;
Increasing the municipalities’ accountability
and effectiveness;

Budgetary processes;

Consumer rights;

Corporate Social Responsibility;
Social enterprise.

For working in the above listed areas we ap-
ply various approaches and strategies, such as:

o Research in various areas related to CSRDG’s
activities (carried out by CSRDG’s experts,
as well as with the assistance of the experts’
network formed at the Centre);

o Campaigns for awareness raising and advo-
cacy
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e Monitoring of Government activities on
both the national and local levels;

¢ Revealing legislative shortcomings and de-
velopment of respective legislative amend-
ments;

o Expert assistance (training and consultations
for civil organisations, civic groups, local
governments and self-governments, public
schools, and business companies);

¢ Strengthening of civil organisations (for civil
organisations in Tbilisi and other regions of
Georgia, and rural youth initiative groups);

¢ Provision of micro-grants for village initia-
tive groups in order to solve local problems;

e Promotion of partner and coalition work
within the civil sector, as well as on the inter-
sectoral level.

GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE OF OUR
ACTIVITIES

CSRDG has a complex approach to solving
problems facing the country, and carries out its
activities on the local (village, district) as well
as the national level. In particular, our activity
area covers Thilisi - the capital of Georgia; La-
godekhi, Sighnaghi and Telavi municipalities in
Eastern Georgia; and Ozurgeti and Chokhatau-
ri municipalities in Western Georgia.

OUR TARGET GROUPS:
On the local level:

¢ Grassroots organisations (CBO and village
initiative groups);

¢ Non-governmental organisations;

e Public Schools;

¢ Local governments (Municipalities).

On the national level:

o Government and State agencies;

o Research institutions and collages/universi-
ties;

e Public schools;
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Non-governmental organisations;
Large and medium business companies;
Experts in various spheres;

The Media.

2010 - FACTS AND FIGURES

Employees: At the end of 2010, the total
number of the organisation’s employees was 28
(of these, 25 were employees of the Tbilisi office
and 3 of the Telavi office).

doMomnso gnbsbbyma 35R39693mgda Mm3c9d3dn
Core financial indicators in CEL

2007 836494
2008 750353.1
2009 1185659

15

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2010



2007 £ 2008 :2009 2010
0bngo@msmm®o, d9dm3bomggmgdobasb 6495 3153 3000 13316
domgdmmo msbbgdo
From individual contributions
356gmoa bgMgobgdobasb domgdama 63536 127092.4 : 88034 128 864
dg3mbogamao
Income from services provided
mbmmMgdobasb domgdymoa msbbgdo 756661 611360.8 : 1088742 : 1244405
Funding from donnors

B3960 @mbmmgdn. 2010 bgmlb Rggbo com-
bemgdo 0y3bgb:

mdbe3e3-6mg0do;

93aL00b gobz0mamagdal booggb@m;
336MmM©930;

FBHoMob 9dMG0b gmboo;

BMbo 005 babmaspmgds - badsmmggmm®;
0bLEOBYEGO »0s LobdmasmMgds®;

936Mm 3533060l Bomdmomagbemmds
Lagotomggmmdo;

e bog3mmmdo(3qb dgbozndsmo@g@o/3menm-
bgoo;

e 4063063930l nbogg@bodg@o.

$3960 bsgdns6m3s (doMmnmswon Mmsmmyg-
b6m3dmngn dsh39698cm9380):

e 2010 Bgemb 339domdmom mdoemablbs ©s 6
3mboz03smo@g@do (mgmegab, Lombomal,
g4356mobs o mogmegbol dmbaczndse-
08g@do - sImbogmgm LagoFmggmmao,
Rmbo@oqmol s mbyMagomolb  3baso-
3om0@g@dn - abagmgm LagdeGmggmman),
berenm bmgogmo 3Gmacedolb gofgmgddo
- bagomoggmmb gggmes Mga0mbdo;

o 33bmM30gmgdoom 11 Log@meb@m 3Mmad@L
5 36 bgF30L-3mbGM9EL;

o 30dmzgzom 13 3mdmogozns (2 doyyemg-
8960, 9 dOmIn@s, 1 bmgommmaoy®o 33-
939, 2009 Bemob dpg®awo asbzomsemgdol
sbgomndn);

16

IR3MIRN 336300M36»I3NL 96326030 2010

Our donors: In 2010 our donors were:

Oxfam - NOVIB;

Church Development Service (EED);
APRODEYV;

Friedrich Ebbert foundation;

Open Society — Georgia Foundation;

Open Society Institute;

Delegation of the European Union to Georgia;
Niepolomitse Municipality/Poland;

¢ Birmingham University.

Our activities in 2010 (core quantitative in-
dicators):

e In 2010 we were working in Thbilisi and six
municipalities (Telavi, Sighnaghi, Kvareli
and Lagodekhi in the Eastern Georgia,
Chokhatauri and Ozurgeti in the Western
Georgia). At the same time, we also had
some nationwide programs;

e We were implementing 11 grant programs
and 36 service contracts;

e 13 publications (2 bulletins, 9 brochures, 1
sociological research, and a 2009 sustain-
ability report) were published by us.

e Conducted 109 trainings independently or
in cooperation with other invited experts.
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In particular, trainings were conducted for:

- 69 local governments from nine regions
of Georgia;

- school directors and school board mem-
bers of 180 public schools (out of those
- 64 schools in Thilisi and 116 public
schools throughout regions, in the cit-
ies of Kutaisi, Gori, Telavi, Rustavi, and
Ozurgeti);

- 110 civil society organisations (from
Tbilisi and various regions of Georgia)

- Members of 24 village initiative groups
in 10 Georgian municipalities.

¢ Provided consultations for 43 organisations
(five municipalities and 38 non-governmen-
tal organisations);

¢ The Civil Monitoring Network, which is led
by our organisation, provided numerous
recommendations to five Georgian munici-
palities regarding budgetary processes and
transparency issues. 22 of the recommenda-
tions were taken into account;

o Within the frameworks of our program, 54
rural development micro-projects were im-
plemented in 19 villages;

e 59288 GEL worth micro-grants were award-
ed to 15 initiative groups and 4 non-govern-
mental organisations;

¢ Organised 3 public hearing sessions on vari-
ous important issues;

o Together with partners from the Georgian
regional network, monitored six municipal
budgets.

Our main accomplishments in 2010

e CSRDG successfully completed im-
plementation of a three year (2008-2010) pro-
gramme. Invited external experts evaluated its
effectiveness to be positive;

e CSRDG established partnership relations
with civil society the invited experts and
state organisations from Poland, Ukraine
and Moldova. One joint project was imple-
mented in cooperation with them, and an-
other one was planned;
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Within the frameworks of European Neigh-
bourhood Policy, a Civil Society Coalition,
lead by CSRDG, prepared an alternative re-
port on the completion of 2010 Action Plan;
CSRDG’s expert was actively involved in
the work of a group of several stakeholders,
which prepared Corporate Social Responsi-
bility handbook for Georgian business com-
panies “Winning with Integrity”;
CSRDG?s experts completed work on a fun-
damental research “Corporate Social Re-
sponsibility and the Role of the State Sector”
(analytical review and recommendations to
the Georgian Government);
CSRDG signed a Memorandum of Under-
standing with the Caucasian University, and
a course on Corporate Social Responsibility
was prepared within the frameworks of the
Memorandum for business sector students
(the course will be taught by CSRDG experts
starting from 2011);
CSRDG published the 2009 integrated sus-
tainability report prepared in line with the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) interna-
tional format; !
CSRDG successfully implemented a pilot
project on the development of social en-
terprising, and accumulated quite positive
results in this area to continue work in the
future;
Under the mentioned project, six social en-
terprises were established with the assistance
from our experts;
The announced open training courses on the
development of social enterprising were held
successfully;
CSRDG's experts carried out several interest-
ing research projects related to development
of civil society organisations, in particular:
- A review of experience of Western coun-
tries in social enterprising and analysis

! http://csrdg.ge/index.php?module=text&link_id=152&lang=eng&lang=eng
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of Georgian legislation with this regards
were prepared; ?

- A study “Civil Society Organizations
in Georgia — Dynamics and Trends of
Development”was conducted. *

CSRDG’s experts were involved in a

project’Increasing the Protection of Mi-

grant Workers and Enhancing the Devel-

opment Impact of Migration in Armenia,

Azerbaijan and Georgia” The project was

financially supported by the International

Labour Organisation (ILO). A study related

to migration processes in Georgia was car-

ried out within the mentioned project;

CSRDG was actively involved in developing

environmental legislation in Georgia, par-

ticularly:

- CSRDG's expert coordinated a working
group of the Ministry of Environment
Protection, which developed a State
of Environment Report of Georgia for
2006-2010;

- Two chapters - waste management and
air protection - of Georgia’s National En-
vironmental Action Plan were prepared
by our expert;

- CSRDG’s expert prepared an updated
version of the National Plan for Imple-
mentation of the Stockholm Conven-
tion on Persistent Organic pollutants in
Georgia and assisted in development of
a Global Environmental Facility (GEF)
project for implementation of number of
the activities envisaged in the Plan.

As a result of implementing CSRDG’s pro-

gram activities, our target municipalities’

activity standards have converged with
transparency and accountability require-
ments of the Georgian legislation.

% http://csrdg.ge/index.php?; http://cse.ge/wp-content/uploads/2010/12/Socialuri-mecarmeoba_Kvekne-

bi.pdf; http://cse.ge/wp-content/uploads/2010/12/Social_Mec-Regulireba.pdf;

* http://www.csrdg.ge/index. php?module=publications&page=detals&grant_id=3&id=89&lang=geo
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The organisational and management struc-
ture of CSRDG is designed to ensure a clear as-
signment of functions and responsibilities, and
the inclusion of all employees in decision mak-
ing processes.

Sustainability issues are treated in the same
way as any other important strategic issue at
CSRDG; this aspect is fully integrated into the
overall governance of the organisation.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our leading principles in organisation man-
agement, as in every component of our activity,
are: accountability, transparency and inclusive-
ness.

In order to ensure participation of all staff
members in the decision making processes,
CSRDG has developed and applied horizontal
and vertical mechanisms of information ex-
change, such as monthly general staff meetings,
regular meetings between program managers
and program staff, monthly meetings of the
mid level managers, planned Board meetings,
the program network’s (our organisation and
two partner organisations) coordination meet-
ings, etc.

More details about the organisation’s man-
agement structure, as well as about the mech-
anisms implemented to ensure the staff’s in-
volvement in the decision making, are available
in the 2009 Annual Report, pp. 38-42, on our
website www.csrdg.ge
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Being a civil organisation and driven primar-
ily by social goals, CSRDG considers commu-
nication with our numerous stakeholders to be
one of the main components of our activities.
As arule, within every new program, or prior to
starting a new stage in an existing one, our tar-
get groups and stakeholders are identified and
the communication and feedback processes
planned.

The organisation’s stakeholders are identified
and prioritised at the general staff meeting.

Our main stakeholders are:

¢ Organisation’s employees;

e Donors;

e Civil organisations (partner non-govern-
mental organisations from Tbilisi and other
regions, village initiative groups);

¢ Our target municipalities;

e Some of the ministries, with which the or-
ganisation interacts during our activities

¢ Business companies that are members of the
Regional Georgian network of UN Global
Compact;

o Addressees of our publications - research in-
stitutes and colleges/universities, as well as
experts from various spheres;

e Members of the CSRDG’s network of experts

e Beneficiary organisations of the trainings
held by us;

¢ Media sources.

Our communication with the stakeholders
is not limited only to including them in the re-
port preparation. As already mentioned above,
our organisation constantly stays in touch with
numerous groups of its stakeholders, in order
to identify their expectations and needs, as well
as to evaluate their level of satisfaction with the
organisation’s activity. A variety of communica-
tion methods is applied for different stakehold-
er groups, including the following: distribution
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of regular digests to the employees; joint staff
meetings; program and financial reports for the
donors; coordination and consultation meet-
ings with target or partner civil society organi-
sations; regular surveys of our service (training
and consultation) beneficiaries; press-releases
and press-conferences for the Media; etc.

More details about stakeholder inclusion
mechanisms are available in the 2009 Annual
Report, pp. 32-36, on our web-site: www.csrdg.ge
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REPORT PARAMETERS

The report integrates an annual report on
our program activities and a sustainability re-
port, which conforms to the Global Report-
ing Initiatives (GRI) Sustainability Reporting
Guidelines, version 3.0 (GRI G3). Consequent-
ly, it should be read as a totality.

The present paper is the second sustainabil-
ity report prepared by our organisation in GRI
format. The first such report was prepared in
2009 (please, see 2009 Annual Report, www.
csrdg.ge).

In terms of extent of disclosure, we have self-
declared this report to GRI Application level C,
acknowledging that it has not been externally
assessed. At our request, the application level
had been checked by GRI representative.

The report also meets the basic compliance
as a “Communication on Progress” for the UN
Global Compact (UNGC.). Our organisation
joined the UN Global Compact Initiative in
2007.

Reporting period:

This present report covers the period January
1 to December 31 2010 (which matches with
our fiscal year). In some instances, in order to
provide the context and illustrate trends, we
present the available data and discuss certain
programs from the previous year.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY OF THE
REPORT

Most of the data presented in the report
cover the operations of the Tbilisi head office as
well as the Telavi bureau. For some indicators
the data is only presented for the Thbilisi office,
because reliable systems for their measurement
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have not yet been introduced in the Telavi bu-
reau. (There is a clear indication for every such
case.)

DETERMINING THE REPORT CONTENT

CSRDG’s employees of all levels and various
groups of our stakeholders were involved in de-
termining the report content.

For preparing the 2009 sustainability report
CSRDG conducted a survey among various
stakeholder groups, aimed at identifying prior-
ity those issues and aspects of our activity that
they were would like to be addressed in the
report (see 2009 Annual Report, pp. 27-30,
www.csrdg.ge).

CSRDG has not changed its activity field,
coverage area and target groups since 2009.
Hence, the main areas of the organisation’s im-
pact have remained unchanged.

CSRDG management and staft held a gen-
eral staff meeting, during which a decision was
made to again rely on the results of the 2009
stakeholder survey for identifying and selecting
the indicators for the 2010 annual report.

During the same general staff meeting, the
identified issues were ranked by priority and
the indicators on which the current sustainabil-
ity report was to focus were jointly selected. The
limits and coverage area of the report were also
identified.

In finalising the identification and prioritisa-
tion of the indicators, we were guided by GRI’s
principles for determining report contents,
which include: Materiality; Stakeholder inclu-
siveness; Sustainability context; and Complete-
ness.!

Thus, the final list of the indicators to be
included in our 2010 annual report was deter-
mined (in other words, the report content was
identified).

This report presents information by 19 GRI
indicators. Out of which: 3 are from the eco-
nomic area, 6 - from the environmental, and 10

4 More details about reporting principles see in: GRY Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (http://www.global-

reporting.org).
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from the social area.

Several indicators we considered significant
for our organisation could not be addressed in
the report, or only partly addressed, due to the
unavailability of the necessary data.

A GRI content index is provided at the end
of the report for cross-reference. It identifies
where each standard disclosure and perfor-
mance indicator can be found in the report.

If you have any questions about this report,
please contact:

Nana Karseladze

Public Relations Manager

E-mail: nkarseladze@csrdg.ge
Tel.: (+99532) 2 399018/19

Delisi 1st lane 5A, Thbilisi, Georgia

4 DROm ©obgMomgdom 3 3M0b(303980L dgbobgd obomgm GRI s63560dggd0b Lobyrddmgebgmm
domomgdgdo (Jodogmo ggmboolb babgs dgbadmadgmos 39d-33960gddg: www.csrdg.ge; http://www.
globalreporting.org/, bemmm 0bgmobymo 3gMbos gobmagbgdgmos veb-gverdze: http://www.globalreport-

ing.org/.
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CSRDG’S THREE YEAR (2008 - 2010)
PROGRAM

CSRDG’s Three Year Program is aimed at
accomplishing the organizations mission. The
goal of the Program is to promote an effec-
tive joint participation of the Governmental,
public and business sectors in the processes of
Georgia’s democratic development, and, by es-
tablishing social partnership among the three
groups, promote the improvement of the qual-
ity of life of socially unprotected groups in the
country.

To achieve the Program’s goals, the organiza-
tion has developed various activity implemen-
tation strategies:

¢ Advocacy campaigns on priority issues of the
State policy;

¢ Informing decision-makers on problems/is-
sues relevant to the public;

¢ Assistance to increase the effectiveness of the
activities by stimulating coalition and net-
work forms of working;

e Monitoring of the implementation of Gov-
ernment Programs and reforms;

e Monitoring the activities of the target mu-
nicipalities and promoting increased ac-
countability;

o Community/rural development;

e Provision of technical assistance (consulta-
tions and training) to non-governmental
organizations and public schools at the na-
tional and local level;

e Promotion of civil society development by
creating a favourable environment;

¢ Popularisation of business’s social responsi-
bility and participation in creating a favour-
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able State policy for its development.

CSRDG carries out its activities based on
network-coalition principles. Our activities in
rural development and municipal monitor-
ing in Thilisi and the six target municipalities
- Lagodekhi, Ozurgeti, Chokhatauri, Kvare-
li, Sighnaghi and Telavi - are implemented
through a network created under the Program.
The Network, which has been operating since
2002, is composed of CSRDG'’s partner organi-
zations - Georgian Civil Development Associa-
tion (Lagodekhi), Georgian Democratic Devel-
opment Union (Ozurgeti), while in Telavi the
activities are implemented by CSRDG’s Telavi
branch. Network-based activities in the regions
provide opportunities to identify local prob-
lems, obtain a better understanding of their pe-
culiarities, and generalise them to the national
level.

The Three Year Program has three sub-Pro-
gram components: Strengthening Civil Society
Institutions, the Promotion of Good Govern-
ance, and the Development of Corporate Social
Responsibility.

It should be noted that invited experts, Du-
san Ondrusek (Partners for Democracy Chang-
es - Slovakia) and Nino Javakhishvili (Faculty
of Social and Political Sciences, Tbilisi State
University) carried out an external evaluation
of CSRDG’s Three Year Program (2008-2010).
During the evaluation the experts studied the
organization’s strategic paper (CSRDG’s Three
Year, 2008-2010, Program) and the goals and
objectives outlined in the document. Based on
that, in-depth interviews and two focus group
discussions were held with the organisation’s
almost all beneficiary groups, such as: experts,
CSRDG?s partner organisations, our beneficiar-
ies and service recipient organisations, donors,
international organisations, representatives of
the Media and public agencies, CSRDG’s em-
ployees, and members of the Board. As a re-
sults, the invited experts evaluated activities
carried out by CSRDG in 2008-2010 as positive.
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Selected tools to be successful in the pro-
gram were just excellent - CSRDG had found
the mechanism that is involving, efficient, sus-
taining and has the regional impact. In order
to be efficient CSRDG very effectively involved
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PROGRAM - STRENGTHENING
THE CIVIL SOCIETY
INSTITUTIONS

The Program aims to promote effective public
sector participation, at both the national and
local level, in the country’s development pro-
cesses, which will ensure realistic representa-
tion of the interests of our target groups.

The strategy developed to ensure attainment
of the Program’s goal, aims to promote civil so-
ciety development by creating favorable condi-
tions for action, providing technical assistance
to non-governmental organizations and public
schools, and stimulating the creation of youth
centers in Georgia’s rural settlements.

The Program works at both national and
local levels. It has two main directions, under
which the following sub-Programs have been
developed: the Development of Civil Society
Organizations and Public Schools and Com-
munity Development.

SUB-PROGRAM COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

The goal of the Community Development
Program is to ensure that resources and infor-
mation are available to village populations to
enable them to effectively realize their poten-
tial and address local problems in six districts
of Georgia

The Program strategy implies the formation
and strengthening of youth centers in rural set-
tlements. Later on, these groups become cata-
lysts for solving various local problems, help
inform the local population and assist them to
fulfil their personal capabilities.
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CSRDG has 12 years experience in Commu-
nity Development work. Activities are carried
out in six target municipalities and are based
on networking principles (see p. 27 “CSRDG’s
Three Year Program”).

A cycle of the Community Development
Program covers the following issues: Selec-
tion of a rural settlement; formation of a youth
group; development of an action plan by the
group; financial support for the Program and
its separate mini-projects; strengthening and
stabilisation of the team; evaluation of the work
performance of the youth community center;
and development and implementation of new
long-term Programs.

A Community Youth Center is an informal
group of local community residents, comprised
on average of 7 to 10 people. The main focus of
the youth centres’ activities are:

e Informing and educating the local population;

¢ Organising educational and sports/cultural
events;

o Identifying and solving local problems.

The Program is aimed at providing technical
information and financial assistance to the es-
tablished youth groups. A cycle of working with
each group has a three year duration, with more
intensive support during the first two years.

In 2010, CSRDG continued work with seven
community youth centers (one of which was
the organization Progresi) created during pre-
vious years, and started work with 15 new com-
munity centers established in 2008.

Technical Information Assistance

During 2010, workshops, thematic train-
ing courses and seminars aimed at increasing
professional skills and providing informative
assistance were held for members of commu-
nity centers (topics and statistics of the train-
ings and seminars are presented in Annex 4).
In addition, mini-libraries were supplied with
various printed and multi-media materials (lit-
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erature, magazines, newspapers,
video disks) and interesting pub-
lications from other organizations.

Financial Assistance

The Program envisages the provision
of the following types of financial assis-
tance to the community centres: current
activity supporting grants and micro-
grants Program.

o Current Activity Supporting Grants

As in 2009, the community centers
prepared 2010 action plans, outlining
their ongoing activities — each grouped
into two stages of six months’ periods.

The activities are mostly related to com-

puter courses, sports and cultural events, com-
munity clean-up events, various types of art
classes, the preparation and dissemination of
information leaflets, etc.

Computer courses were actively offered to
anyone interested (in some cases, they were
socially unprotected residents) in all the com-
munity youth centers. During 2010, the centers
taught computer application Programs to 400
persons.

It is worth noting that some community
centers started offering paid-for services to
residents, for example: pressed-wool shop, sew-
ing atelier, Sunday school for children, fitness
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club, computer courses, etc. We believe this to
be a good prerequisite for ensuring the sustain-
ability of these community centers, so the Pro-
gram will continue supporting them to develop
in this direction. Such services are very impor-
tant to the work of community centers. On the
one hand, they help accomplish the community
mission - providing necessary and hard-to-get
services to the population; and, on the other,
such produce additional sources of income for
them.

The Program provides minimal expenses
necessary for the community centers’ currently
ongoing activities.

e Micro-grants Program

The micro-grants Program envisages issuing
two types of grants:

Small grants (competition for organizing mi-
ni-events) - for implementing various cultural,
sports, or local problem-solving activities. The
maximum grant is 350 Euro (equivalent in
GEL). In 2010, this competition was announced
three times.

Medium size grants (competition for micro-
projects) — Competition for such grants was
announced twice during 2010. The maximum
grant amount was 1000 Euro (equivalent in
GEL).

In each village, priority needs were identified
by applying a participatory research method.

In 2010, a special assessment board set up
and the Centre for Strategic Research and De-
velopment of Georgia financed a total of 54
projects.

All the projects mentioned above were relat-
ed to the following topics: rehabilitation of vil-
lage, connecting bridges and roads; ecological
education; environment protection; women’s
vocational education; building and improving
bus stops, squares and children playgrounds;
rehabilitation of drainage canals, kindergarten
buildings, school yards and libraries; organi-
zation of various intellectual and sports com-
petitions; fencing of village agricultural land;
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improvement of sanitary conditions in the vil-
lage centre; operation of an irrigation system;
education on women’s and adolescent health as
well as activities to help solve the problems of
socially unprotected groups.

The total number of beneficiaries of the rural
micro-grants Program in 2010 was ap-
proximately 15,000 persons.

(Details of the social-economic im-
pacts of the micro-projects are pre-
sented below, in the chapter Economic
Indicators of Our Activity, p. 84. also
see Annex 3).

Village Laliskuri,
Centre Flagmani

The population of the Telavi munici-
pality village of Laliskuri is only about 250 households.
There are about 70 small children, 32 of them of pre-
school age. The village has no kindergarten.

A study conducted in the village by the local com-
munity center revealed that without pre-school educa-
tion, small children lack the experience of relations with
peers and teachers and face multiple problems when
starting school. Eventually, this effects the child’s learn-
ing process.

In order to at least partly solve the problem, the com-
munity center started operating a pre-school education
facility in the village. The courses are lead by a local
specialist with a background in pre-school educational
psychologist. A mini-Program was developed based on
a pre-school education and a Step-By-Step Program,
and made up of various interactive activities that use
visual/didactic materials and interesting exercises. Par-
ticular attention is given to preparing the children for
writing and to develop their drawing skills. Currently,
14 children attend the pre-school education course. The
Program is quite diverse - the children learn drawing,
painting in colours, guessing and arranging the shapes,
rhymes and songs and also learn how to build relation-
ships with other children and teachers.

Various types of suitable events, contests and a special
performance for the Child Protection International Day
were held. From time to time, concerts dedicated to fa-
vourite writers are also organised.

Community
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The community youth center Kedeli (Wall)
in the village of Afeni implemented a Healthy
Woman-Healthy Future Program. The project
was funded by CRDG in cooperation with rep-
resentatives from US Peace Corps and local res-
idents. Within the project frameworks, a fitness
club for women was opened on the community
center’s land. An educational seminar was held
on rheumatoid arthritis and osteoporosis, and
special educational brochures were distributed
to the attendees. Seminars were also held in
other municipalities of Telavi and Lagodekhi
that have community youth centres.

Women of various age groups use the fitness
club, which will continue functioning after the
project ends.

Some of the indicators of community youth
centers” activities successes are the number of
local problems solved by the centers with funds
raised by them, beyond the immediate Program
funding, and the number of initiatives imple-
mented. In this respect, the Community De-
velopment Programme has achieved important
results.

IN ADDITION TO THE PROGRAM ACTIV-
ITIES AND THE PROJECTS FUNDED BY THE
CENTER FOR STRATEGIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT OF GEORGIA, THE COM-
MUNITY YOUTH CENTERS IMPLEMENTED
70 INITIATIVES WITH THEIR OWN FINAN-
CIAL RESOURCES OR FROM OTHER FUND-
ING. ABOUT 2,300 INDIVIDUALS PARTICI-
PATED IN THESE PROJECTS WITH OVER
12,000 BENEFICIARIES.

One of the important aspects of the Program
is making the community centers more active
and putting them in contact with other strong
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CSOs. Along with the professional
growth of young leaders, these measures
will ensure more stability for the centers.
In this respect, it should be noted that
community centers have turned into
a substantial support and resource for
other organizations and Programs, and
successfully implemented a number of
joint projects.
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Chokhatauri Municipality, Youth Organi-
zation “Progresi”

In October 2010, the organization started
implementing the Enamel Art School project
with three funding sources: the Foundation
for Managerial Initiative (Poland) - with a 55%
contribution to the overall budget; Centre for
Strategic Research and Development of Geor-
gia - with 38%; and the local municipality -
with a 7% contribution.

The project’s objectives were: promotion of
youth self-realisation by helping them to ac-
quire professional skills; achieving the organi-
zation’s financial stability by means of creating
and operating an enamel art school; and the
popularization of the civil society organiza-
tions. 18 young participants, five of whom were
from socially unprotected households, learned
enamel work (the beneficiaries from the vul-
nerable households were given training free of
charge). The students made 18 different types
of handcraft pieces. One person obtained a job
in the enterprise, and the consultation and em-
ployment center IOM (International Organiza-
tion for Migration) sponsored five additional
students to learn these skills. The enterprise
still continues operating in both fields — offer-
ing learning courses as well as making art crafts
for sale.

Village Gulgula’s Community Center and
Sewing Enterprise

Based on information about problems and
needs identified during public meetings, a pro-
ject was prepared in 2009 (funded by CSRDG)
aimed at improving the employment situation
and living conditions of local female residents.
As a result, 30 women learned baking and hair-
dressing — four of whom were able to find jobs.

As a result of the project’s implementation,
the participants became more active, started
discussing their problems with representatives
of the community center and working on new
ideas.
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Following up on one such idea, and
with the participation of the community
center, courses to learn blanket sewing
and knitting were started and a small
enterprise created and equipped. The
project was funded by US Peace Corps
in Georgia. 24 women learned these
skills. The project had such a resonance
that the enterprise became popular be-
yond the village boundaries. Residents
in a neighbouring village also decided
to learn these skills, as well as being fre-
quent visitors to buy produced blankets.

The learning courses were extended
and an additional 30 women obtained
these skills. In total, about 60 women
participated and three of them are al-
ready employed in the same enterprise.
Accordingly, the enterprise continues in
active operation.

At present, the enterprise still oper-
ates at the community center’s base, pro-
ducing blankets and clothing. The ser-
vices are used by the village’s residents
(with certain discounts), as well as those
from a neighbouring village. The exist-
ing pleasant environment in the enter-
prise attracts yet more people, and the
enterprise even acquired an added value
function of getting women away from
every day problems and exchanging
new ideas. Women, employed in the en-
terprise, actively participate in various
events implemented by the communit
center. Their mental and psychological
health has changed radically.
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Network Activity of the Community Youth
Centers

In order to enhance horizontal relations be-
tween the community centers, strengthen the
network and share experiences, regular joint
reporting meetings of the centers were held in
each target municipality.

In addition, for experience sharing between
the youth centers, training sessions were held
in the target regions based on a rotation prin-
ciple. One free day of every training cycle was
dedicated to orientation tours, when represent-
atives of a regional community center visited
the community center offices of the host re-
gion and familiarized themselves with its work.
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Three exchange visits of this type were organ-
ized during 2010.

A grand joint meeting of the community
youth centers, regional partner organizations
and representatives of CSRDG was held in Ba-
tumi.

The first day of the meeting was devoted to
presentations on the activities of the centers. At
the end of the day, the center with the best pres-
entation was identified and given a stimulating
award.

The second day was dedicated to discuss-
ing the centers’ needs and their effect on future
plans. Another issue for the day was a seminar
on land privatisation.

Evaluation of the Activities of the Commu-
nity Youth Centers

An evaluation of the 15 community youth
centers established in 2009 was conducted dur-
ing 2010 using the results of a local population
survey.

The survey was carried out in six Georgian
municipalities (Guria - Ozurgeti and Chokha-
tauri, Kakheti - Telavi, Lagodekhi, Kvareli and
Sighnaghi). A total of 875 respondents (471 fe-
males and 404 males) were surveyed in the 15
target villages/ communities.

The main generalised findings of the sur-
vey are the following:

Overall, there was a high level of awareness
of the community centers in the villages. 80%
of the respondents had heard about such cent-
ers — of these 37% said that were familiar with
the center’s activities, and 42.2% that they had
heard about the center.
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As for public satisfaction levels with the ac-
tivities of the community centers, it should be
mentioned that the results were clearly positive,
with 98% of the respondents answering favora-
bly (aggregated positive answers).

Lymgdm (396@Mgdom 335gmegaemgdab baMabbo
Level of Satisfaction with the Community Centers
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In addition to the above mentioned evalua-
tion, CSRDG’s regional partner organizations
and, for key stages, our Program Coordina-
tors were regularly monitoring the activities of
the Community Youth Centers. The study and
evaluation results, as well as the analysis of the
Program indicators, became the basis for the
decision on which community centers have a
greater growth potential and motivation, and
which of them will be chosen by the Program
for intensive cooperation over the coming
years.
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The objective of the Program is to develop
management skills in national and local
non-governmental organizations and public
schools and promote public support for these
institutions.

The strategy developed to accomplish the
Program objectives involved the provision of
technical assistance on the national and local
level to non-governmental organizations and
public schools, offering them highly qualified
consultations and training programs, and, in
cooperation with other civil society organiza-
tions (in the form of a coalition), the promotion
of the development of favourable environment
for civil society.

The training and consultations developed by
the Program experts are aimed at an organiza-
tional strengthening of civil society organiza-
tions and public schools, and are directed at
improving the financial sustainability and man-
agement processes of these organizations.

The activities carried out in 2010 were based
on the approaches outlined as a result of the
civil society organizations’ needs assessment
undertaken in the previous year. In particular:
e The development of a complex training

program for various level managers of new
non-governmental organizations. The need
still remains for providing training on such
standard topics as: management skills - plan-
ning, monitoring and evaluation, fund rais-
ing, and project proposal writing. Addition-
ally, issues related to strategies to achieve
organizational sustainability, positive public
relations and the marketing of civil society
organizations have been added to the above
list.
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¢ Providing consultation services more actively.

¢ The implementation of activities targeted on
the development of social enterprise in the
country.

A team of CSRDG’s trainers and organiza-
tional development consultants offers needs-
tailored training courses and individual con-
sultations on management and organizational
development issues.

In 2010, training modules, developed by our
Program experts, at various levels and on dif-
ferent topics, were carried out for civil society
organizations and public schools from Tbilisi
and a number of regions of Georgia.

Organizational Development and Management,
Project Proposal Writing

In 2010, the Program trainers held 14 the-
matic training courses on project proposal writ-
ing, organizational development and
management issues, for representatives
of more than 70 organizations
and community groups, includ-
ing those of internally displaced
persons.
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Development of Social Enterprise

In 2010, four training courses were held in
Thilisi and target regions on social enterprise,
attended by 64 participants. A high level of par-
ticipant satisfaction with regard to both con-
tents and materials, as well as the process and
organization of the trainings, was observed
during every course. Participant satisfaction
was evaluated by means of special evaluation
questionnaires. Training participants also ex-
pressed a need for individual consultations
when planning practical economic activities.

Currently, the Center’s trainer-consultants
offer two types of training on social enterprise:
¢ Introductory training on general conceptual

issues in social enterprise;

e Training for social organization, aimed at
discussing the steps necessary for the devel-
opment of social enterprise in the organiza-
tion.

Development of the Financial Manage-
ment of Public Schools

For the sake of improving the financial man-
agement of public schools, the Center’s experts
developed a training course on Financial Man-
agement of the School and the Role and Func-
tions of the Board of Trustees in school financial
management. A training cycle on these issues
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for school directors and members of board of
trustees was held in Tbilisi and various regions
of Georgia. A total of 20 sessions were held (9 in
Thilisi and 11 in the regions), attended by 347
people, of whom 180 were school headmasters
and 167 representatives of school supervisory
boards.

School of Management Art (SMART)

In 2009, CSRDG’s experts developed a Pro-
gram - School of Management Art. The Pro-
gram is based on the best practices of the world
leading countries, accredited training courses
and modern theories of organizational devel-
opment, and is enriched with respective mate-
rials. The Program discusses necessary areas of
civil society development. Instead of separate
isolated training, the Program offers interested
organizations a full package of training courses
that ensures the development of the skills and
knowledge necessary for organizational devel-
opment. A special one-year course on School
of Management Art is specifically designed for
various levels of managers — top managers and
representatives of the managerial unit, as well
as Program and project managers and coordi-
nators.
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The Programs first cycle was launched in
2009 and ended in 2010. Overall, six training
courses were held dedicated to the following is-
sues: effective organization and organizational
development, effective management skills, stra-
tegic planning and creation of the project’s log-
frame, project management, fund raising, and
human resource management.

The courses were attended by representatives
of 16 civil society organizations.

Overall, during 2010, 777 representatives
of civil society organizations and public
schools attended the training courses held
within the Program.

The Program offers interested organizations
and individuals a set of consultations on vari-
ous issues related to their interests and in ac-
cordance with their needs.

In 2010, consultation services were provided
to 38 civil society and community organiza-
tions, aimed at improving the organization’s
financial sustainability and management pro-
cesses, particularly on:

¢ Fund raising and project proposal writing
issues - mainly for newly established non-
governmental organizations in the Center’s
target districts;

o Completion of project application - Five
organizations applied to CSRDG with a re-
quest for consultations. As a result, out of
five submitted project proposals, two have
been funded and one more is in the process
of consideration;

e Various aspects of social enterprise, the
Center’s expert-consultants provided ser-
vices for organizations and community
groups engaged in economic activities. The
consultations addressed issues the organiza-
tions faced in the course of their activities;
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e In 2010, the Program experts also provided
consultations to three organizations (one of
which was a civil organization operating in
Azerbaijan) on the following issues: evalu-
ation of organizational development and
strategic planning, elaboration of organi-
zational development plans, completion of
project funding applications, project inter-
nal evaluation and project external evalua-
tion.

In April and September 2010, two grant
competitions aimed at improving the finan-
cial sustainability of civil society organizations
and development of social enterprise were an-
nounced under the Program.

The competition engendered much interest
and 79 organizations submitted their grant pro-
posals.

Project proposals were reviewed by a group
of experts from our partner organizations, and
experts in marketing and financial issues. All
the proposals were reviewed from an economic
and social standpoint. The applicant organiza-
tions’ experience was also taken into considera-
tion.

As a result, six projects were funded in the
two competitions: production of ecologically
clean wooden toys (Foundation Global Initia-
tive in Psychiatry); diversification of services
for farmers (Rural Consultation Service); provi-
sion of mini-tractor services to village residents
(community youth center Hereti); arrangement
of small greenhouse farms, where young plants
and decorative flowers will be grown (“Disabled
Child, Family, Society”); a tailoring enterprise,
oriented towards women’s garments (Society of
Democratic Women of Samtskhe-Javakheti);
producing folk handicrafts, namely traditional
accessories of a Georgian table - tablecloth,
napkins, trays, napkin rings/holders, and card
holders (International Art Center “Istoriali”)
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o Foundation Global Initiative in Psychiatry
- Thilisi (GIP-Tbilisi) - Production of Eco-
logically Clean Wooden Toys. The products
are made from hard wood species. The sur-
face is treated with German paints and spe-
cial types of oil meeting European standards
on child toy safety. Currently, the enterprise
employs four workers, including one pro-
bationer. Revenues generated by the social
enterprise are used by the organization, to
provide such services as psychological assis-
tance to internally displaced persons living
in a compact community settlement nearby
the town of Gori.

o Rural Consultation Service - Akhaltsikhe
- the organization offers agrarian services to
the residents. With the funding of the pro-
ject by CSRDG, the organization purchased
additional equipment and simplified the
services provided to farmers. The income
generated by the social enterprise is spent
on providing free consultations to rural resi-
dents. In addition, the organization provides
free assistance to households under the pov-
erty line; and, in 2011, it will sponsor three
young members from socially unprotected
families on eleven-month mechanisation
courses.

e Community Youth Center Hereti - vil-
lage Heretiskari (Kakheti). The village is
mostly populated with people resettled from
Ajaras high mountainous areas that tradi-
tionally had cattle farming as their main
activity. Settling on Kakheti’s fertile lands
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stimulated residents of this village to
start fruit and vegetable gardening
alongside traditional cattle farming.
This new activity would become an
additional income source for them
and a basis for strengthening the vil-
lage. The unavailability of its own spe-
cial equipment in the village became
a problematic factor for expanding
its greenhouse and vegetable farming
capacity. The village did not have its
own tractor and, due to limitations
for renting one during the growing
season, much of the land (2.5 ha) re-
mained uncultivated.

Community Center Hereti pre-
pared a project that became a winner in
CSRDG?’s Social Enterprise Promotion
grants competition. As a result, in Sep-
tember 2010 the community center pur-
chased a mini-tractor, thus enabling it
to provide the village’s residents with the
means of working within the timelines
suitable for agrarian works, and thereby
ensuring an increase in their productiv-
ity and income. The organization offers
certain discounts for providing services
to socially vulnerable members of the
population.
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The information-analytical web-portal www.
cse.ge started work in December 2010. The the-
matic portal is dedicated to the issue of social
enterprise and any interested person is able to
get exhaustive and relevant information on its
theoretical and practical aspects. The web-por-
tal presents interesting news that is underway
in the following areas: information regarding
training and grant competitions, research on
Georgian and foreign experiences of social en-
terprise, success case studies. The web-resourc-
es are interesting and applicable to novices as
well as experienced social entrepreneurs.

On the national level, the Program promotes
the improvement of the environment for the
activities of civil society organizations and in-
stitutions. Inthis respect, CSRDG actively co-
operates with local and international civil or-
ganizations and foundations.

Interesting research projects and various
events were held nationwide in the above areas
in 2010.

Within the terms of the Program, a study
“Civil Society Organizations in Georgia — Dy-
namics and Development Trends” was carried
out in 2010, with financial support from the
foundations Open Society-Georgia and Church
Development Agency, and in cooperation with
experts from UNA Georgia.
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The study had the following objec-

tives:

e Description of conditions for the
activities and development of civil society
organizations nationwide, and with the anal-
ysis disaggregated according to various fac-
tors (including regional);

¢ Studying the trends for the development of
civil society organizations in 2005-2009;

e Identification of the main problems facing
civil society organizations;

o Evaluation of the experience and skills of
Georgian civil society organizations with re-
gards to their economic activities.

The study is conducted regularly. The last
nationwide evaluation of civil society organi-
zations was carried out in 2005 by UNA Geor-
gia and CSRDG, and was endorsed by USAID
within its Citizens’ Interests Advocacy Pro-
gram.

The research methodology was based on the
one adopted in the 2002-2005 study and the
instrument was designed to be consistent with
the research instruments used in the previous
waves of the study. Accordingly, the 2010 study
also enables comparative analysis with the 2005
data on the sector’s development.
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Unlike previous years, the research carried
out in 2010 also focused on the development
of social enterprise in Georgian civil society
organizations. Thus, civil society organizations
and community groups involved in economic
activities were studied nationwide.

Some interesting results were found, a num-
ber of which are outlined below:

¢ Organizations with experience of economic
activities mentioned the organization’s finan-
cial stability as the main motive for starting
such activity — about two-fifths of them stat-
ed that the goal for starting economic activ-
ity was to accomplish Program objectives;

o The majority of organizations (55%) involved
in economic activity mentioned that this ac-
tivity is very important for their organiza-
tions, because the incomes generated finance
(co-finance) for their current Programs, and
thus help achieve Program objectives. They
also give the organization a feeling of stabil-
ity;

¢ The following services, provided by civil so-
ciety organizations under their economic ac-
tivity, were mentioned most often: learning
courses, computer classes (29.35%); service
centers (29.5%); expert training consulta-
tions (27.3%, 25% respectively) and media
services (25%). Less frequent forms of eco-
nomic activity were: property rental (13.6%);
agriculture production and sale (11.4%); art
school, theatre, event organization (9.1%);
production and sale of printed materials
(9.1% and 6.8% respectively). Only a few
organizations were engaged in handicraft
production and sale (4.5%); had a private
school/kindergarten (4.45%) or ran a phar-
maceutical business (2.3%).
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The study also addressed problems confront-
ing the organizations in the course of their
economic activity. The following categories of
needs and problems were identified:

o Legislation and taxation related problems;

e Human resources related problems;

e Management related problems;

¢ Need for re-qualification, training, consulta-
tion and experience sharing;

o Need for legislative and taxation changes;

e Need for additional investments and im-

of their

provement material/-technical

base.

Anyone interested can access the full version
of the report on the CSRDG web-site (www.
csrdg.ge).

A prerequisite for ensuring the development
and sustainability of civil society organizations
is finding and using alternative sources of fi-
nance. This prompted our Program experts to
actively work for the promotion and populari-
sation of the social enterprise ideas in Georgia.

At the end of 2009, CSRDG started imple-
menting a project “Promotion of Development
of Social Enterprise in Georgia” The project’s
goal is to introduce the social enterprise con-
cept in Georgia and, in the long run, to pro-
mote the creation of a favourable environment
for the development of social enterprise and the
introduction of positive practices.

The concept of social enterprise is new and
innovative for our country. This was why the
project activities were mainly directed at popu-
larizing the issue among the general public. An-
other objective was to increase awareness of the
social enterprise idea among representatives of
non-governmental, business and state sectors
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Studying International Experience in Social
Enterprise

Within the terms of the project, a review
“Social Enterprise - International Experience
Based on the Example of Ten Countries” was
prepared in 2010. Program experts studied and
analysed international experience in the devel-
opment of social enterprise, looked at experi-
ence and success cases of Western and Eastern
European countries - including those former-
ly in the Soviet area - Asia, North and South
America (Argentina, USA, Brazil, UK, Spain,
Italy, Poland, Ukraine and Japan).
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The introductory part of the study focused
on contemporary concepts of social enterprise
in these countries and the historic development
of social enterprise.
053mb0s)  godmromgds @ BaBIs@gdymo Information analysed per country in the
dogoeomydo. study covers the following issues:

33mg30L dgbagoma Bsboemo 8ogdmgbs bg-

dmom Rsdmomgmom 439469330 bmznsmamn dg- . . :
B5®3md0l 3mcboo SEbgdmn 3b30BGogdb The history and development of social enter

s sbg3g bmgosmm@o d9Bs®3gmdnls aobgo- DI
ioﬁaéaoabaobgg;nfg " IO 8™ The existing situation in the area of social en-
333930 mommggma Jzgybol Babgogzom terprise;
305bsmabgdnmn nbgym@dszns Imogegh dgd- e Main mechanisms for promoting of social
©ga bogombgdl: enterprise;

56

439996530 bLmznsma@o 896s(8gmdal bgd-
BMM0b abGME0s s 3obgnmafgds;
begosma@o 3gbomdgmdal bgd@mEda om-
Lgdmmoa bodyo(309;

bemgosma@o 3960M3gmdals gobznmsemgdals
bg3dq36ymda doMomawa 394560b39d0;
LodoGnmgdfngn gomgdm bmznsmey@o dg-
Bom8gmdals gobgomamgdabomgals;
308mb3g3960 o doMagMmgdo:  dmemodo-
3060, LadsMomgdMoga, Bobablbnma s be-
bemgosma@o 3gbsmdgmdal Bzmoma J39y9-
Bl LengoomM-g3mbmadngne asbgomatig-
dodo.

IR3IMIRN 356300196»330L 36356030 2010

o Legislative environment for the development
of social enterprise;

¢ Challenges and obstacles: political, legisla-
tive financial and public;

o The role of social enterprise in the country’s
socio-economic development.
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Consultants from the British organization
Social Enterprise London were involved in the
study and contributed a chapter on the UK ex-
perience. Anyone interested can have access to
the full version of the study on www.csrdg.ge

Regulation on Social Enterprise in the Geor-
gian Legislation

CSRDG?s experts prepared a study on how
the Georgian legislative environment promotes
social enterprise. The study revealed that the
existing legislative basis does not stimulate the
development of social enterprise.

The Georgian legislation does not know such
concepts as “social enterprise” and “social en-
trepreneur”. Accordingly, there are no special or
specific regulations and rules on establishing/
operating such organizations. Despite this, the
Georgian legislation provides opportunities for
interested persons/bodies to establish an organ-
ization that might basically satisfy the criteria
for a social enterprise.

As for the taxation regulations, at this stage
the Georgian Tax Law cannot be considered as
stimulating the development of social enter-
prise - indeed, in some parts it even impedes
the development of such activities.

The results of the study were published as a
separate brochure — “Regulation of Social En-
terprise in the Georgian Legislation” If inter-
ested, the full version of the report is available
on CSRDG’s web-site www.csrdg.ge
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Popularisation of the Concept of Social En-
terprise

To popularize the concept of the develop-
ment of social enterprise it is important to
demonstrate the successes of social enterprises
in solving various problems.

A nationwide study of civil society organi-
zations and community groups carried out in
2010 identified organizations engaged in eco-
nomic activity. The Program experts conducted
a more in-depth study of the experience of the
most successful 12 organizations in this field,
which also included winners of the Center’s
grant competition. A publication, Social En-
terprise - Experience of Georgian Civil Society
Organizations, was prepared to describe the
success of these social enterprises and aimed
to popularize social enterprise. The publication
also provides a brief overview of the concept of
social enterprise, its forms, and role in the de-
velopment of the country’s economic and pub-
lic sectors. It also provides explanations of why
social enterprise is interesting to civil society
organizations. A full version of the publication
can be found on our web-site www.csrdg.ge
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In December 2010, a large-scale event Let Us
Take Care of the Future Together, Social Enter-
prise - New Development Opportunities was
held jointly with our partner organizations.

The event was dedicated to new approaches
for accomplishing social goals in Georgia and
the polarization of civil society organizations
working in the social sphere. It was organised
by the British Council, Eurasia Partnership
Foundation, Centre for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia, and the Civil Society
Institute. The organizations presented the re-
sults of a year’s work in the area of social enter-
prise. In turn, representatives of Government
bodies spoke about the importance of develop-
ing social enterprise.

In addition, a fair or market place of social
enterprises and care-oriented organizations op-
erating in Georgia was held. The event generat-
ed much public interest and was widely covered
by the Media.

A cycle of articles was printed in the press
aimed at popularizing the idea of social enter-
prise among the general public. The articles
emphasised issues such as the important role of
social enterprise in the country’s development
for both the population as a whole as well as its
different communities.
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PROGRAM - PROMOTING GOOD
GOVERNANCE

The goal of the Program is to improve gov-
ernance at both the national and local level,
and to have the government pay greater atten-
tion to public needs and attendant problems.

The Program experts have developed the
strategy on the basis of the results of CSRDG’s
research activity and experience of cooperation
with legislative and governmental bodies.

The Program embraces the national as well
as local levels and has two main directions.
Two sub-Programs - Research and Promoting
Reforms and Local Government Development
- have been developed to implement activities
under this Program:

SUB-PROGRAM - LOCAL GOVERNMENT
DEVELOPMENT

The goal of the sub-Program is promoting
the decentralization process and establish-
ment of democratic and effective public gov-
ernance systems in Georgia on the local and
regional levels.

Network activity - Monitoring of Self-
Governed Entities

Monitoring of self-governed entities is car-
ried out in Telavi, Lagodekhi, Sighnaghi, Ozur-
geti, Chokhatauri and Tbilisi. The goal of the
project is to assist transparency in the local
budgetary process and make the municipal ser-
vices more accessible for socially unprotected
residents in five Georgian municipalities and
Thilisi.

The strategy for accomplishing the Program’s
objectives is to monitor the budgetary pro-
cesses and transparency norms outlined in the
legislation in the six entities. It should be noted
that, for the budget, only documentary moni-
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toring is carried out in Tbilisi. The activities
envisaged under the project are covered by the
Civil Monitoring Network which, along with
CSRDG, unites the Civil Development Associa-
tion (Kakheti) and the Union for Democratic
Development (Guria).

Transparency and Accountability

The level of transparency and accountabil-
ity improved considerably in 2008-2009 as a
result of the Civil Monitoring Network’s ac-
tivities in the target municipalities. However,
non-compliance with a considerable number of
the norms required by the law still remained a
problem. In particular:
o Complete/systematic administration of a

public registry;

o Compliance with the required procedures on
drafting, passing and publishing the norma-
tive acts;

¢ Holding Sakrebulo meetings openly and
publicly;

¢ Organization of public hearings on impor-
tant decisions;

¢ Compliance with the norms of administra-
tive proceedings when passing legislative
acts, etc.

Results Achieved in the Area of Transparency

In order to monitor the compliance of the
self-governed entities with the legislative re-
quirements on transparency and accountability,
public information was requested on a regular
basis from the target municipalities. The infor-
mation was analysed, the meet-
ing of various timelines and
procedures was monitored, the

The level of transparency and ac-
countability improved considerably
as a result of the Civil Monitoring
Network’s activities in the target mu-
nicipalities.
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causes of problems identified and their progress
or regress studied. As a result, the Network’s ex-
perts developed a set of recommendations and
submitted them to the target municipalities.

As aresult:

¢ The situation regarding compliance with the
procedures for holding the representative
body’s regular meetings has improved. In
2010, the timelines for holding regular meet-
ings were met in 63 cases (97%). This figure
was 77% in 2009 and 70% in 2008

o The calling of representative bodies special
meetings has also improved. During the re-
porting year, a total of 15 special meetings
were held by the representative bodies. In all
15 cases (100%) the information was pub-
lished ahead of time in compliance with all
the required procedures. The respective indi-
cators were 62% in 2009 and 43%; in 2008;

o The situation with regard to publishing in-
formation about the representative bodies’
meetings has improved. During the year, a
total of 80 meetings were held by the repre-
sentative bodies in the target municipalities.
Out of those, in 74 cases (92%), information
was published ahead of time and in compli-
ance with all procedural norms. The respec-
tive indicators were 62% in 2009 and 43% in
2008;

o Importantly, there have been no cases of ob-
structing the provision of public information
in any of the target municipalities.

It should be noted that, unlike previous
years, the target municipalities passed the 2011
budgets in compliance with administrative pro-
ceedings.

Importantly, there have been no cases of ob-
structing the provision of public information
in any of the target municipalities.
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It should be noted that, unlike previous
years, the target municipalities passed the
2011 budgets in compliance with admin-
istrative proceedings.

The Network’s experts, in active con-
sultation with representatives of local self-
governments, have developed drafts of
amendments to be made in the legislative
acts (including Sakrebulo and Gamgeoba
regulations), which, later, were passed by
the representative bodies.

To implement the recommendations, the
NetworKk’s experts (in active consultation with
representatives of local self-governments) have
developed drafts of amendments to be made
in the legislative acts (including Sakrebulo
and Gamgeoba regulations), which, later, were
passed by the representative bodies.

Monitoring of the Budgetary Process

The following areas for monitoring the budg-
etary processes in the target municipalities were
identified at the beginning of 2010.

o The situation with regards to the timelines
and procedures of the budgetary process;

¢ Documentation and field monitoring of the
budget expenses;

o Analysis of the approved budget;

o Evaluation of the quarterly and annual budg-
et completion.

Compliance with the Budgetary Process
Timelines and Procedures

The Budget Code outlines the local budget-
ary process timelines and procedures that re-
late to the formation, passing, completion and
accountability of the self-governed entities’
budget. Throughout the year, the Network’s ex-
perts monitored the timelines and procedures.
Various types of violations were identified relat-
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ing to: the publication of administrative-legisla-
tive acts necessary to start work on the priority
documents; the preparation of the annual re-
port on budget completion and the summoning
of special Sakrebulo meetings.

Results of the Documentation and Field
Monitoring of Budgetary Expenses

The violations and inaccuracies revealed by
monitoring the documentation of expenses in
the target municipalities are reflected in the
recommendations prepared by the Network.
In addition, based on the results of the desk re-
search and a survey of civil society groups in
the target municipalities, the Network’s experts
selected the following field monitoring areas for
the reporting period:
¢ Village assistance Programs;
¢ Projects related to solving problems related

to drinkable water;
¢ Administrative expenses of the municipali-

ties;
¢ Road repairs and rehabilitation.

Information about the violations revealed
by the monitoring was delivered to appropriate
State agencies and disseminated via the media
to residents.

The following violations were revealed: low
quality work in the rehabilitation of drinkable
water systems, roads, bridges and stadiums. In
a number of cases, miss-spending of the munic-
ipal reserve funds was also observed. After the
involvement of the Network’s experts, work was
redone on some of the facilities, and the quality
of work improved. However, some of the vio-
lations revealed required additional funds, so
improvement work was postponed until 2011.
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Evaluation of the Quarterly and Annual
Budget Completion

Throughout the year, analyses of the quar-
terly and annual completion of the municipal
budgets were carried out and the respective an-
alytical documents prepared. These evaluations
contained expert analysis of local budgeting
procedures. (Full versions of the documents are
available on CSRDG web-site www.csrdg.ge).

Consultations

In 2010, a number of work consultation-
meetings were held between the Network’s ex-
perts and public officials in the target munici-
palities to discuss possible ways of improving
the budget application and directive forms; the
legitimacy of funding certain types of expenses
(e.g. police and security) from the municipal-
ity’s own funds; the possibility of introducing a
Program budget; ways of accounting for various
types of budget funds through a new reporting
classification; etc.

Aspects of Gender Budgeting

Starting in 2009, and throughout 2010, the
budgets of Thilisi and the five target municipal-
ities were analysed from a gender perspective.
The issue of making a gender- balanced budget
is innovative for the Georgia and it is therefore
very important to promote the consideration of
gender aspects and raise the awareness of local
residents on this issue. Such an approach assists
the structural improvement of local budgetary
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processes by improving the fairness and balance
of sponsoring female and male priorities. Due
to this, the Network’s experts evaluated the local
2010 budgets from a gender point of view and
developed appropriate recommendations.

The results of the analysis and of the popula-
tion study carried out on gender issues, as well
as general conclusions and recommendations,
were published in the final report - The Aspects
of Gender Budgeting. The report will help the
local self-governed entities make their budgets
gender sensitive.

Integration of Environmental Issues in the
Municipal Budget

In 2010, work meetings were held with local
government leaders and representatives from
local services to discussing waste management
related problems and develop appropriate rec-
ommendations. The following important issues
were addressed during the meetings:
¢ 'The municipalities’ responsibilities for waste

management and its implementation;

e Issues related to the area covered by the ser-
vice;

e Issues related to the legal status of the land-
fills;

o Issues related to cleaning and garbage collec-
tion services.

Recommendations for solving the existing
problems were delivered to the authorities. and
their implementation is now under way in the
municipalities with the active involvement of
the Network’s experts.

In addition, particular attention was given to
the problem of stray dogs in the target munici-
palities and ways of solving it. However, since
resolving this problem requires considerably
high spending, the issue still remains problem-
atic in the municipalities.
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Inclusion of Public in the Budgetary
Processes

The Network’s experts prepared and pub-
lished a simplified version of the 2010 approved
budgets. Presentations of the document were
held for stakeholders in Tbilisi, Lagodekhi
(Kakheti) and Ozurgeti (Guria), and were at-
tended by high local government officials, rep-
resentatives of the local media and civil society
organizations and the Network’s experts.

Some of the problems identified by the resi-
dents were considered in the budgets. However
many still remain unresolved. The Network’s
experts were regularly held informative meet-
ings in the Community Youth Centres of the
target municipalities, discussing news about
the local budgeting processes. Through these
meetings, publications on the budget analysis
were disseminated. Results of the monitoring
were extensively covered by the central and lo-
cal media.

Developed and Considered
Recommendations on Budgetary Issues

During 2010, the Network’s experts devel-
oped a package of recommendations and sub-
mitted them to the target municipalities. Work
is underway in the respective municipal agen-
cies to implement some of the recommenda-
tions, in particular:

e Work on the priority documents did not
start on time in any of the municipalities.
The NetworK’s experts have taken active
measures to draw the attention of the mu-
nicipal officials to this problem. These pro-
cesses only started to change after submit-
ting detailed recommendations. It is worth
noting that starting the work on the priority
documents was delayed because of the total
inactivity of the Ministry of Finance and the
regional governors;

e Work to ensure the improvement of the
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budget application forms was actively car-
ried out in Telavi, Lagodekhi and Sighnaghi
municipalities. At present their finance de-
partments and Sakrebulo’s commissions in
the respective municipalities are working to
to approve the forms;

¢ Guria municipalities were given a recom-
mendation about “approving the rule of
distributing assignations allocated by the
municipal budget between the budget clas-
sification codes and articles” At this stage,
Ozurgeti municipality has not considered
the recommendation, while Chokhatauri
municipality, despite a certain opposition
from the regional governor, did take account
of the recommendation

¢ Based on the recommendation, the priority
issues for Lagodekhi municipality residents
and funding for the co-finance of the Com-
munity Youth Centre were considered in the
municipal budget;

¢ Telavi municipality introduced amendments
to the amounts of duty payable in property
and gambling taxes.

Training Courses and Consultations
Conducted

The Center for Strategic Research and De-
velopment of Georgia, with financial assistance
from the EU mission in Georgia, implemented
a project called “Strengthening Local Govern-
ment - A Way to Decentralization”. The project
goal was capacity building for local public serv-
ants in such areas as: municipal property for-
mation and management, local budgeting and
municipal services. 27 training courses were
held in 2010 in Tbilisi and some regions of

Based on the network’s exsperts recommendation,
the priority issues for Lagodekhi municipality resi-
dents and funding for the co-finance of the Com-
munity Youth Centre were considered in the mu-

nicipal budget.
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Georgia, attended by 428 public servants from
69 Georgian municipalities.

Within the terms of the project, reports
were prepared about problems in the above
mentioned areas, their causes and possible so-
lutions. A survey to evaluate the level of fiscal
autonomy in the Georgian municipal entities is
planned for 2011.

During the reporting period, the Program
experts held more than 30 training courses for
self-governing entities with compact IDP set-
tlements. Commissioned by the Bureau of Tbi-
lisi Projects of the Georgian Branch of the Ger-
man Public Universities Association (DVV),
the training was conducted for local public
servants and internally displaced persons and
covered such issues as municipal services, leg-
islation regarding the IDPs, co-participation in
making local decisions, etc.
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The Program’s goal is to initiate and guide a
dialogue at the national level on important
issues in the country’s development

Conducting research and analysis of the im-
portant and acute issues facing Georgia, and
carrying out advocacy campaigns based on the
research findings is a cornerstone of CSRDG’s
activity. The activities are carried out by the
Center’s experts as well as by invited highly
qualified experts. The Research and Reform
Promotion Program implies not only carry-
ing out research activity on specific issues, but
also to conducting public discussions through
the Centre’s regular publications, meetings with
stakeholders and the organization of seminars
on those issues to elaborating expert recom-
mendations on each topic and deliver them to
the appropriate bodies. Their completion is also
regularly monitored and the results covered in
the media.
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In 2010, after an in-depth analysis, the Pro-
gram merged four priority areas: economic and
social security, environment pollution and en-
vironmental rights, government decentralisa-
tion reform, and consumer rights. The criteria
for selecting the issues for the listed areas were
based on their importance and the interest ex-
pressed by the experts in the respective fields.

For the country’s economic and social secu-
rity field attention was focused on the following
issues:

e The structure of public finances and their
management principles in Georgia - the re-
search was dedicated to studying/analysing,
over the last three years, the main param-
eters for building a general system of public
finances and the basic functional principles
of, and arrangement for, Georgia’s budget
system; its principles and hierarchical struc-
ture; the operational structure of spending
public finances accumulated from revenues,
and the State and specific local level budgets.
The paper also discusses the amendments
planned for the country’s financial legisla-
tion.

¢ An analysis of the investment sector and the
prospect of economic growth in Georgia -
so far, the Georgian Government and “large
businesses” have been unable to understand
correctly the new reality that requires the
modernization of their own investment
policies and a realistic analysis of the capital
market. The research emphasises these par-
ticular problems. CSRDG’s experts tried to
outline the future requirements in terms of
the analysis, the development of the coun-
try’s investment environment and the stimu-
lation and attraction of domestic and foreign
investments.

e Water and health problems in Georgia - wa-
ter is one of the main national natural wealth
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resources of Georgia. The study provides: a
brief description of Georgia’s water resourc-
es; water, as a factor of life and health; some
of the problems of water crises in various
parts of the world; the situation regarding
the water supply to the population of Geor-
gia; the identification of target indicators,
and the control timeline for their completion
and progress evaluation.

e State procurement procedures in Georgia -
important changes were introduced in 2010
to the law on State procurement. The issue
is very important and a matter of great in-
terest to the public. That was why a special
research project was set up to examine the
implications of the chamges.

o The 2010 course of Georgia’s economic re-
forms - it is very easy to evaluate any “com-
pleted” reform, because it has quantitative
and qualitative results that can be subject to
a formal evaluation. The results do not rep-
resent any scientific or political abstraction.
Rather, they make a real impact on the in-
dicators of the quality of life in the country.
The study provides: a review of the Georgian
labor market and budgetary/taxation chang-
es; a structural analysis of the State debt; the
monetary/credit environment and economic
freedom and dignity.

Interested persons can access a full version of
the study on CSRDG website: www.csrdg.ge

CSRDG's experts were involved in the imple-
mentation of a project funded by the Interna-
tional Labor Organization (ILO) - “Protection
of Migrant Workers in the Russian Federation
and Addressing the Effects of Migration in Ar-
menia, Azerbaijan and Georgia” Within this
project a comprehensive study was conducted
on the ongoing migration processes in Georgia
focused mainly on important migration issues
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that had not been studied previously. The de-
velopment of a State policy on migration will
help to improve the social environment which,
in its turn, will raise the level of trust towards
State servants.

The first part of the study was devoted to is-
sues of State policy on migration and interna-
tional experience in this area. Positive aspects
of migration, such as the stage-by-stage return
of migrants to their home country, and their in-
creasing role in the sustainable development of
their places of residence, were also discussed.

The study analysed migration data and,
based on that, migration trends on the vari-
ous stages of the development of Georgia. It
also addresses the main activities that Georgian
citizens are engaged in outside their country.
Economic factors that had positive or negative
effect on the migration process are summa-
rized. The study also addresses social factors of
migration, such as: the role of social partners
that protect migrants’ rights and provide them
with essential information; the role of the di-
aspora and their unions for Georgia; the labor
market and professional/vocational education.

The study’s conclusions and recommenda-
tions were discussed with our Stakeholders and
were followed by numerous comments from
various sectors of the public.

It should be noted that all research projects
carried out in 2010 provide specific conclusions
suggestions/recommendations.  Special
campaigns were launched on the above men-
tioned issues, and involved the organization of
public discussions and seminars about an issue,
the development of specific recommendations
and delivering them to the respective State
agencies and stimulating broad coverage of the
issues in the media.

and

Opver the past several years, one of the impor-
tant themes of CSRDG activities has been pro-
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motion of free trade and competition in Geor-
gia, and making “anti-monopoly” regulations
stricter. A part of the recommendations submit-
ted over the years to the Government and the
respective EU agencies have been; (2011-2013)
National Indicative Program - (NIP) and an al-
ternative report on the completion of Georgia’s
2010 Action Plan (ENP AP) developed under
the European Neighbourhood Policy (ENP)).
These were taken into the account in 2010 (a
strategy was adopted). However, the strategy
needs to be reflected in the legislation, which
has been delayed so far.

Out of 14 recommendations delivered to
public agencies in 2010, six were taken into
consideration and the remaining 8 were partly
considered. It is difficult for the Program to
achieve tangible results over a short period of
time. However, the results of activities carried
out in the previous year became visible in 2010.
For example, some of the recommendations
made on the local property issue were consid-
ered in the law on the local self-governments.
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Important changes were also made in the tax
legislation, e.g. the adoption of, and amend-
ments to, the Budget Code.

The Area of Environment Pollution and
Environmental Rights

In 2010, CSRDG’s expert was actively in-
volved in a EU funded project aimed at assist-
ing the Ministry of Environment Protection
and Natural Resources in the preparation of the
State of Environment Report of Georgia. The

project was lead by an expert invited from Ire-
land.

Within the project, CSRDG’s expert provid-
ed regular consultations and assistance to the
Ministry’s employees in the preparation of the
report’s structure and content, as well as the se-
lection and improvement of the report’s publi-
cation format. Furthermore, for the first time in
Georgia, a special blog http://soegeorgia.blogs-
pot.com/ was created to ensure the effective in-
clusion of the public in the report’s preparation,
with every interested person able
to familiarize themselves with
respective materials, including
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drafts of separate chapters of the report, and
provide timely feedback and comments. Meet-
ings of experts were also held, where construc-
tive suggestions and comments were made, the
majority of which have been considered in the
report. Based on the implementation of the
above mentioned activities, the State of Envi-
ronment Report of Georgia was prepared. At
this stage, the Report is in the process of a final
review by the Government.

In 2010, CSRDG was also involved in the
preparation of one more important environ-
mental document - The National Environ-
mental Action Plan. Our expert wrote the
document’s two chapters relating to waste man-
agement and air protection issues.

CSRDG was also involved in the preparation
of an urgent document on the management of
chemicals in the country. In particular, within a
UNDP project, our expert updated the Nation-
al Plan for Implementation of the Stockholm
Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants
in Georgia (already approved by the Georgian
Government) and assisted in the development
of a Global Environmental Facility (GEF) pro-
ject to implement a number of the activities
envisaged in the Plan. The project is already ap-
proved by GEF Council and will start soon.
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In 2010, Center for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia, in cooperation with
the Caucasus Environmental NGO Network
(CENN), the International Center for Conflict
and Negotiation (ICCN), and the Association
of Biological Sciences “Elkana” (with financial
support from EPRODEV) implemented a joint
project - Inclusion of Georgian Non-Govern-
mental Organizations in the Preparation of an
Alternative Report on the Completion of 2010
the Georgian Action Plan (ENP AP) of the Eu-
ropean Neighbourhood Policy (ENP). About
40 civil society organization operating in Geor-
gia (most of them working in the regions) were
also involved in the preparation of the docu-
ment. The report discusses the implementation
of the following reforms stipulated by the Ac-
tion Plan:

1. Local self-governance;

2. Food safety, standards and technical regu-
lations;

3. The enterprise environment;

4. Conflict resolution;

5. Environment protection and sustainable de-
velopment;

6. The energy sector;

7. Education;

8. Agriculture.

The report was submitted to representatives
from various EU agencies, the Officeof the
Georgian State Minister on the Issues of Inte-
gration into European and Euro-Atlantic Struc-
tures; and various other Ministries.
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PROGRAM -

PROMOTION OF THE
DEVELOPMENT OF CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The goal of the Program is to promote the
introduction and development of corporate
social responsibility in Georgia

The strategy adopted to achieve the Pro-
grams goal involves, on the one hand, work
with Government agencies in order to develop
a State policy for promoting corporate social
responsibility, and, on the other hand, working
directly with large business companies to raise
their awareness of the concept of corporate
social responsibility, its implementation and
instruments, making specific expertise on this
issue more easily accessible, and the populari-
zation of the idea of corporate social responsi-
bility.

State Policy Promoting Corporate Social
Responsibility

One of the most important Program activi-
ties is the promotion of a State policy directed
to the development of corporate social respon-
sibility (CSR).
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As is known, corporate social responsibility
is a business’s voluntary choice. It is a business’s
good will commitment to assume more respon-
sibility than obliged by the law, intentionally go-
ing beyond its primary function of profit-mak-
ing, voluntarily caring about the well-being of
the public, and making a positive contribution
to solving social and ecological problems.

The civil and public sectors have an impor-
tant role in stimulating and promoting respon-
sible business activity. The State’s decisive role
in the development of corporate social respon-
sibility is commonly recognized nowadays.
Much theoretical work and numerous practical
research projects have been undertaken on this
issue. State policies promoting social respon-
sibility have been developed in a majority of
Western countries.

That is why CSRDG considers it important
to take certain steps Georgia as well.

CSRDG started promoting the CSR concept
back in 2008. For this purpose, a working group
composed of our experts and invited specialists
was set up. Ms. Ineke Lemmen, an expert in
corporate social responsibility from the Min-
istry of Foreign Affairs of the Netherlands was
also invited to consult with the Georgian ex-
perts.

In 2009-2010, the Program continued work
in this direction. On the one hand, work was
carried out on extensive and fundamental re-
search that reviewed the existing literature on
the Government’s role and its possible functions
in implementing social responsibility. The study
analyses the experience of the Western devel-
oped countries, as well as some of the develop-
ing nations, in promoting social responsibility;
presents an overview of the main international
(conventions, memorandums,
declarations, etc.) regulating social responsibil-
ity; and addresses other relevant issues.

On the other hand, work was carried out to
develop recommendations for the Government

instruments
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of Georgia about those specific initiatives that
will promote the further introduction and de-
velopment of corporate social responsibility in
Georgia. The recommendations take into ac-
count international experience, as well as the
Georgian context and the goals of our country’s
development.

A comprehensive analytical work was con-
ducted and recommendations were designed as
a result of the mentioned activity.

Publication of the analytical research paper
and its recommendations, as well as public
hearings on these, are planned for 2011.

Introduction of Social Reporting Practices
in Georgia

Social reporting involves the publication of
a report on a company’s non-commercial, re-
sponsible activities in economic, environmen-
tal and social areas and is an important and in-
separable part of corporate social responsibility.
Thus, in the modern world it is considered to
be a voluntary obligation for every responsible
company.

This is why one of the main directions of the
Program activity is promoting the introduction
of social reporting (sustainable development
reporting) practices in Georgia. A number of
interesting initiatives were implemented in this
regard in 2010.
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During the current year, the Program’s ex-
perts developed a package of consultations that
will assist business companies and other organ-
izations in the preparation of a sustainability
report. The consultations are aimed at helping
business companies to fully complete all stages
of the preparation and, as a result, develop their
sustainability report in accordance with the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) international
format and procedures. Compliance with these
procedures enable the company to fully present
its success and importance for the country and
the public.

In 2010, expert from the Corporate Social
Responsibility Promotion Program, together
with other CSRDG Programs, were jointly in-
volved in the preparation of the organization’s
sustainability report in the GRI format. As a
result, the first sustainability report in Georgia
was written (and, to the best of our knowledge,
it was also the first one for the whole Caucasus
region). By publishing such a report our organ-
ization tried to prove that it follows the same
standards and principles it advocates. In addi-
tion, we are trying to become a role model for
other organizations and, in this way, promote
the introduction of sustainability reporting
practices in Georgia.
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Promoting the Development of Social Re-
sponsibility Management and Administra-
tive Skills

In 2010, CSRDG’s expert was involved in
preparing a handbook on corporate social re-
sponsibility for Georgian business companies.
Under the UN Global Compact Program, a
group of various stakeholders was involved in
the handbook preparation process and coop-
erated with respective local organizations and
business companies. The handbook is based on
the Business in the Community (UK) publica-
tion “Winning with Integrity”, and, as a result
of a long-term consultation process, is fully
adapted to the Georgian reality.

The handbook’s aim is to present the expe-
rience of Georgian business companies with
regard to social responsibility, stimulate the
stakeholders to become more active in intro-
ducing SCR practices, and provide explana-
tions of the instruments necessary to introduce
corporate social responsibility practices.

CSRDG?s expert was involved in the consul-
tative process for the adaptation of the guide-
lines in accordance with the Georgian context.

Promoting of Introduction of Corporate
Social Responsibility Courses in Georgian Uni-
versities

Research on corporate social responsibility
carried out by Program experts, and opinions
expressed during various discussion meet-
ings, revealed that one of the impeding factors
for CSR development in Georgia is the lack of
knowledge of, and competence in, the methods
and approaches for implementing corporate
social responsibility. An effective way of solving
the problem is the inclusion of a corporate so-
cial responsibility course in the curriculum of
business schools. In this way, a new generation
of managers will gain basic skills and knowl-
edge in the area of corporate social responsibil-
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qdL39MGgdab JogH RoGomMgdamds 33mg3933s
©5 bowab 3mbom dgbggomaddy gsd8momdmmads
3mbodMYdgd3s shggbs, MM LojsMmzgmmdo
begoseg&o 3abybaldggdemmmdol asbgomatg-
dob gfo-gfomo dgdaggmbgdgmo god@mtas
bemgosg®o 36Gmgd@gdol gobbmm(zngmgdals
3gom@gdabs s Joamdgdob dgbabgd (3mmbob
©> 3m33g@gbnal Bogmgdmds. smbadbyma
36mdmadol dmggemgdol gygd&uma Lodey-
3gds5 30bbgb bgmemgdob bogsb3sbscmmgdem
3Mmamsdgddan 3m@m3mEszoqgmo bmgnsmaFo
3abbobdggdmmdol Logbol Rsmgs. 93 3 bom
sboma  momdal dgbgrgMgdo ©ogBmgdosb
LodoDobm ¢bam-F39398L s Bnomgdgb (3me-
Bols  gmB3mMsgomma bmgnoma  3sbygb-
0bdggdmmdob Lygmmdo. Jgogasw, Lsgomb-
do gomM33gmmo s@adasbgdo 3bsm 0gbgdosb
©036gMamb  LmznsmyMo  3sbyybobdggdmm-
b0l 8ngmdgdo s Gobgmmmdgdo 08 dadbgl
3™MB83560g3dn, Losz ©o0bygdgb 84ydomdsb.
gmggmogg  880b  gomgzomobbobgdoom, (396-
&®b 360d36gmm3zbo 8nsRbas LsgsGmggmmb
30bbglb  boggMboGg@gdol  3Mmamsdgddo
3mM3mEsonmo  bmnsmyco  3abybalidgg-
denmdol Logbob Rofmgs s gomzzgmma Bo-
d0%gd0(3 3odEas 53 dodstaymadom. 2010
Brmob 0939889630 3o339b00b d0bbgL bgmead
asdmmggs 0b@agfgbo sboma Lamgdom gu&-
Lol sbgMagadyg. 830b bagndggmdg (39680l
qdL3gMG3s IMadBows Laegdzom guMbo 3m-
33099 bmgnama® 3sbbobdggdmmdady,
Gm3geog 2011 Bgeb Rog@ommgdsc goggobo-
ab 30Bbgb bgmmob oDyl s@3nbab@mamg-
b0l o doMmzab 3u@bob bEwgbEgol.

ity and be ready to introduce CSR approaches
and values in their future jobs in business com-
panies.Taking all of this into consideration,
CSRDG believes it is important that a course
on corporate social responsibility should be
included in the curriculum of Georgian busi-
ness schools, and has already takes certain steps
in this direction. In 2010, the Caucasus Busi-
ness School expressed interest in introducing a
course on CSR. Based on this, our expert pre-
pared a cycle of lectures on corporate social re-
sponsibility which, in 2011, will be offered to
business administration and management stu-
dents of the Caucasian Business School.
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doh33634T340N

OUR ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

EC 1 - d943bomon o aobobomgdmma g3mbm-
dognmo mamgdnmgds - dgdmbagmad-
ob, 30800bs6g Lobomdmm batgqdal,

3boDmaMgdal,

35399990 dg3mBomyymmdgdabs s

056533 m3gmms

Lodmasmgdabomgal gomgdama bbgs
0b3gb@ongdals, a5165B0mgdgma
dmggdab, sbgzg 3odo@omal d0dbmeg-
Lobgm3bogmbomngal
3505600 Msbbgdals Rsmgmoo.

dmgdabs o

2010 Bgemb ,,(396@0b” BogH LogMmsdmm-
obm gmbogdowsb, ameb@gdolb Loboom, 8mb-
ommo msobby dgomagbos 1 244 405 momb,
(3 d39960L 93mbmBn3sdo Bawgdmmo o307
3z0Mg 0bggb@ooss Rzgbo BmBab mmasbo-
Baz00bomgob.

B396 Boge goBgmemo LgHz0bgdowab (8-
b0obagdo s 3mbbmmEez0gd0) Bomgdamo dg-
3mbogmgdo dgomagbos 128 864 momb.

3Mma@adqem bogddosbmdody asbgmemo be-
M39Mo30m boMggdab megbmds 30 — 833 361
oMb; 03 Mobbowsb, do3Mmamab@gdol Labom
20a0mmdMogo ®gdgdol gobzomoemgdobs o
0bg3MobEOMJG MGl  gsbzomemgdsdn Rowg-
bdmemo ogm 307 996 moma.

®56533dMmBmgdabomgal gomsbrama bgm-
3oLgdob MmEgbmds dgomagbwes 463 685 momb;

beem babgmdbogm domxgddo bbzswmsbbges
a05bobowal babom dg@sboma msbbs - 89 985
oM.

J398mo  8mygzobom  (3bGomdo  ©smd-
moE oMol bomImmagboema 2010 Byeml Rz960
mMa060dsz00b  bagd80sbmdals  g3mbm38ozm&o
85R39693mgda, M3 Bmamo LabbEmgdalb Imd-
Momdom, sby dgdmbagmadoms ©s bofggdoom
s0babgds. (bMomdn Bomdmmaqgbormo 8mba(zg-
8980 ggmdbgds smmo@olb 80y dg8mb3gdaem
Brmo gobsbbym sbaom0dl ob. obsmomo 6).
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EC 1 - Direct economic value generated and
distributed - including income, current
direct expenses, staff remunerations,
donations and other investments made
for the public, undistributed profit, as
well as the amounts paid to providers of
the capital and to the State.

In 2010 grants attracted by our organization
from international funds amounted to GEL 1
244 405 - no small investment in the Georgian
economy by an organization of our size.

Income earned by our service provision
(trainings and consultations) was GEL 128 864.

Operational expenses on program activi-
ties amounted to GEL 833 361 - out of this, the
amount invested as micro-grants in local com-
munity and infrastructure development was
GEL 307 996;

Staff salaries equaled GEL 463 685;

89 985 GEL was paid in various taxes to the
state budget.

The table below presents a breakdown of our
economic performance indicators for 2010, ex-
pressed by cash flow, i.e. by income and expens-
es. (The financial data presented in the table are
derived from the audited annual accounts - see
the Annex 6 in the end).



L d98mbogmgdo
Total Income

LabgmBBogmbsmzgal gomaboomo msbbgda (go@sbobswgdo,

5 5.9.) / Payments to government (taxes etc.)

* o0bbgdo  domomgdygmos  LadeMmggemmb
936 gomm@edo (momdo). 2010 Bgeb
oMol badgomm 3q@bo gz@mbomab 80ds-
Gogdoom Igemagbos: 1 gg6m - 2,3621 mato.

EC 8 - 3m3gMoqmo, bs@mmom ob Lodmaos-
mgdobomgals Loboggom/Ladzgm-
dmgdgom  Log80sbmdal®  gm®m3noc

0bg3MobEOdGmmado gobbmzogmg-
o 0639L@0 (30980 S Lobmasmgd-
obomgal LabaMagdmm dm3bobyEgdab
35630006099, sbggg 3 gboo dmbrog-

Boemo bgaozmgbe.

2010 Bgmb ogdolb gobzomatgdol 3Gm-
a630b gomamaddo 05330 Rogdyemo abggb-
8030900 dgomaqbos 131 166 mamb. smbad-
bagmo  0bzgb@oEngdo  dmoaegh  GmgmEy
8036Mma 568 9dL, HmImgdbas Rzgbo mmasbo-
Baz00 gob(398L danmMdMaga 3GMdrgdgdab
as@ogmab 396 dodsmoyymon dogmm3Mhmgd@qdol
a0bbobm@(30gmadmoa, sbggg 93 36mgdEgod-
ob  gobdsbmM(30gmgdgmo Lmgmol bLocmgdm
®a395900L dgbadmadmmdoms gadmagmgdabs
©> bom3gMoiom bofmggdob sbobsbdmonmg-

RxsGodgdo | 89 985

* The sums are given in GEL, the Georgian
national currency. In 2010, the average ex-
change rate was 2.3621 GEL to 1 Euro.

EC 8 - Development and impact of infrastruc-
ture investments and services provided
primarily for public benefit through
commercial, in-kind, or pro bono en-
gagement.

In 2010, community investments made un-
der the Community Development Program
equaled to GEL 131 166. The investments in-
clude the micro-grants issued by our organiza-
tion for micro-projects to solve local problems,
as well as funds to cover the capacity building
and operational costs of the rural community

5 Commercial, in-kind or pro bono.
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dmo 353937 03bbob (ob. 3GmaModnmo ob-  groups implementing the projects (see Pro-
35M0do, a3. 31). gram report on our activity, p 31).

2010 Bgemb org8ob 3obgoostgdob 3Gm- 54 projects were accomplished in six Geor-
8280b BoMargddo gabbmzogres 54 Bog- gian municipalities in 2010 under the Commu-
MHm3Omgd@o bLojofmggmmb 6 34bozndom- . ]

0&9830. nity Development Program.

30360m3Mmgd8gdab ggmaMsgoymo 35036560magds
Geographical distribution of the micro-projects

Lombamabs s mogmmgbal ' 6 ' 18
Sighnaghi and Lagodekhi
mdYEagmabs ©s Rmbs@snmal 7 19

Ozurgeti and Chokhatauri

2010 Bgemb gobbmms0gmgdam dogHm3mm-
9@ mgds@ o aobsbomagds s8g3560s (do-
®005dm0s mommgne  bggOmdo gsbbm®-

(309 9dnem 3036m3MHMgdGms MHom@gbmds):

The areas of the micro-projects implemented
in 2010 (The number of micro-projects in each
area are indicated):

byen
Total AN, 54
0bgmsbgmydanmgmas 31
Infrastructure -
L3MAG0, 3NMGYES ©S 336snmgds 20
Sport, culture, education -

35693mb 3330 5 3

Environmental

As can be seen from the chart, 58% of the

2010 Bgerb a0bbm@30grgdgen 804Gm3G™- micro-projects funded in 2010 were aimed at
9doe 58% abgMabemydduab 36300060 jnfrastructure rehabilitation and development.
dobo o AgodoroGoosb oboboges 8060 mho total amount of micro-grants made by
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oo goblbobm@m(zngmgdmon Bggbo mmasbo-
Bozoolb Boge  as3gdynmo  8o3Mmma@sb@gdab
mEgbmds (569 Bzgbo mMasbabs300b 8agm ab-
LGN JGNEedo gobbmE(30gmgdymn ab-
39LE0(30980L MEybmds) 2010 Bgemb dgowagb-
©d 34 547 momb, Mo, sMbgdomsm, 39460l
93MbmBogal  BpgMemdsdn  mMasbabsznab
3060306 3g65@obl Bom8mag gbL.

CSRDG in 2010 for implementing the projects
(ie, the amount of our investments in the infra-
structure) amounted to 34 547 GEL, which, in
essence, is CSRDG’s direct contribution into
Georgia’s economic sustainability.

303Mmas6@8gd0 06xMobE NG Mol Mgsdoma@siabomgals
Micro-grants for infrastructure rehabilitation

303MmaMs68gd0 bbgs 301mdmgdgdal gomsbsgmgmom
Micro-grants for solving other types of problems

EC 9 - 8608363@013060 06000 deBmaod*@ﬁo
%38md83@360bo o dobo 80[)8@)060[)
obomobo s smbgms

y39modyg 3609369mm3zs60 nnda g3mbman-
360 bgaozmabs sbmagl mgdal gobzomamy-
Sob 3Mmamadob gomamgddn gobbmezngmg-
3 bog800bmdgdL. smbadbymo 3Mmamadal
gBoMamqdda Rzgba mEMasbabs(z0s dogOma@eb-
&9d0b  gm@mdoo  SbmM(309mgdL  nMEsdnm
Lomgdm 0b3gb@oz098L (Mog Bzgbo Logdo-
obmdal  3oMednd  g3mbmdogy®  bgasgmg-
Bol BoMmdmoagbl). gomms 53anbs, Rggb Bogm
©0930656Lgdmo 3GmgdEgdo saammMdMngn
36mdmg39d0L dmboagomadmon bLbgs Bysm-
mgd0sb 3358 gd0mn  mobbgdol dmdngdals
boggmdzgmb 436ab.

2010 bgemb (3960l 8096 @og30656Lgdmma
30360m3MmM 48900 Gomamgddo saommdon-
30 36Mmdmgdgdol dmboggzemgdmom dmbobmg-
mdob 8ngm Rowgdamo 0b3qb@nnal Kednn

34 547 @ot0/GEL

24741 msto /GEL

EC 9 - Understanding and describing signifi-
cant indirect economic impacts, in-
cluding theextent of impacts

The most important economic impacts are
made by our activities under the Community
Development Program. Within this program,
CSRDG makes direct community investments
by means of the issued micro-grants (a direct
economic impact of our activity). The projects
financed by us to solve local problems also cre-
ate a basis for attracting additional funds from
other sources.

The total amount of the investments made
by local populations in 2010 under the micro-
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mofgdamgds dgooagbos 23 926 msmb (bonw-
3ba(3 65B0ma Fmbobmmgmdal gmmao dgbs@ebl
BomImomaqbl, bmmm 6sBoemn — BogmEom go-

39993 d965896b).

beagom bbgs Byommgdoosb dmdogdemo wo-
35890000 096653l Mmgbmds dgemagbos 31
350maomb, Moz gMomdmomdsda 55 276 mamb
Jdgoagblb.  dmboeygmo msbbalb gobsboemgdos
(mo6198dn) Bysmmgdal Bobgogom sdgzsmne:

Lyem dogMm3Mmmgd@gdab

bagFom doyxgdo
Total budget of the projects

36s6@0/Grants

dmbasbmagmds/Population
30b69Ln/Business

Lbgs gmbrgda/Other funds

n30m335ENnggmmds
Local Government

projects financed by CSRDG amounted to 23
926 GEL (some of this was made as a monetary
contribution, and the rest was “in-kind”).

In 2010 the amount of additional funds re-

ceived from other sources was 31 350 GEL,
making the cumulative amount 55 276 GEL.
The following table presents the breakdown of
the additional funds attracted by community
groups (in GEL) by the sources:

1 T T T T T T T T T T T
0 10000 20000 30000 40000 50000 60000 70000 80000 90000 100000 110000

083306000, bmgmoal asbgomamgdals 3Gm-
a630b gomamagddo 2010 Bgmb sanmmdma-
30 3Omdmgdgdal Ima356gdsdn 0bggb@nmgdea-
o 0obbs godnmem dgomagbos 114564 mamb
(Looabs(z 59 288 motn Bggbl 8ogm ao399mm
8036Mma®68gdL Bomdmamagbrs, bmemm 55
276 momb dgomaqbos bmggmal dmbsobmgmdab
B3momo ©8 ©8530656L7dab bbgs Byscmgdowasb
3mDbo@mmo mabby):

©5930656L735 Lbgs Bysmmgdnwsb
Funds raised from other sources
48%
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Thus, total funds invested for solving lo-
cal problems under Community Development
Program in 2010 amounted to 114 564 GEL (of
which, 59 288 GEL was the micro-grants issued
by us, and 55 276 GEL the contribution made
by local residents and funds attracted from oth-
er sources):

36mac33ab dngzMmaFabggda
Micro grants issued by CSRDG
52%



dgbodadnbow, mMasbodsozool Bngf as3g-
3o 3o3mma@ab@gdol 85339mdoom bmgemal
Lomgdm xameygdds Imabgmbgl Lbgs Bystmg-
b0sb 55 276 momal m@gbmdal nbggb@aznab
dmboegs s@gommdmogo 3Mmdmgdgdal gowos-
Logfgmom, Moe3 (39mbobo 3Gmamsdaol nfnd
93MbmMBo3n® bgasgmgbol Bamdmawa gbL.

2010 69¢emb F3960 3mmgmsdnb osmz-

mg3dn  356bmmz09emg89cmo  bmogemnlb
dnzmm3mmyg8gdnb  damgszgdoo  dm-
bomggdemg s@sdns6980b pxsdwmn mwy-
6m3s dgoagbws 15 000-Jwg s053ns6b.

Accordingly, due to the micro-grants issued
by CSRDG, rural community groups were able
to attract 55 276 GEL of investments from oth-
er sources in order to solve local problems - a
clear indication of the program’ indirect eco-
nomic impact.

The total number of beneficiaries of
the rural micro-projects implemented by
CSRDG in 2010 was 15 000.

2010 Bemob 0 360maMs689dab d9bgx0(3056930b ggmaMasgayma g5656amgds
Breakdown of the number of beneficiaries by distrcts (2010)

Loembsmo-msgmmgbol Hsomba
Sighnaghi-Lagodekhi district
mdyOagmo-Rmbs@on@ab Hoombo
Ozurgeti-Chokhatauri district

0980l aobgomatgdals 3Gma@madol  ofn-
b0 g3mbmdogyma  bgaszmygbs, bgdmor  se-
Bogfomo  gomamgdol  gofs, asdmabs@gds
LodaDby @gdgddn sednsbgdal ©obsgdgdom
ob (3mbol 80bmEgdoms s @bstgdal ao-
demog®gdoo, Mab dgogasmsz 0dMmgds dsmo
Log30sbmdal  gBgd@OE™MdS s  dmdsgaa
©5bog3980b dgbadmgdemmdgda, Lsdabdby bm-
Bmgdab 3(zbmgmgdomomgal Lbgawabbgs babab
LyF30bgdal bgm3abebgomamdal dFMmom ©s
bbg.; dogomomac:

o 3MMaMadob gamamadda dgddbor Lamgdm
(396@®93d0 83 9893%g ©abogdgdamas 39
500530060, gaMms 330y, dmgngon boomg-
3m (396@Mab dobady brgds Fmbabmagm-
S0bamzol bogoMm gobosbn 3mabsabymgdal
aobg30, Bobo obdofmgdomoz 358 gdom

©5b54390mmns oM 339Mma MomEgbmdal

dmbobmgmds.  dogomomem,  anmaemob
Lomgdm (39680l dobsdg dmddge Lad3-

gtz5mmdo 3 Jomds@mbo dmdomdl, bmemm
bogge 3gcgomabze@do Lamgdm (3960
LobmgEm-bsdgnMbgm 3m3baby@gdols
nBg3Lb 3mbabemgmdsl, 39Mdmm, gbdstgds
3mbgbs-ogbgol  Lodndomgdda  Logmmata
3060 §Fog@mMno. sdg3560 3mababnEgdal

— 5480

—3020

In addition to the above, the Community de-
velopment program’s indirect economic impact
in the target communities is also expressed in
the improved employment opportunities and/
or increased knowledge and skills of the benefi-
ciaries, which, in turn, helped raise the acces-
sibility of various services for the local popula-
tion, etc. For example:

o Currently, 39 people are employed in the
community centres established under the
program. Besides, some of the community
centres provide charged services to the pop-
ulation, giving additional employment to a
certain number of people. For example, three
females work in a sewing workshop that op-
erates on the basis of Gulgula community
centre; the centre from Heretiskari provides
agricultural services to local residents help-
ing them with cultivating the land with the
small mini tractor owned by the centre. This
service provided jobs to two more people;
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bogdg Lomgdm (396830 s gdooc 2
500530560 oLOJ30d;

Loomgdm  (306@M9d0L  3mmEMEbs@mgdl
Ro@ofom  GMgbabaqgdo s  3mbLyyem-
&9(309%0 (398mga Lognmbgddyg: dotogal
bBmgowo bsgdo, bmosmaen 3gbsmdgm-
35 o 60D6gL 9983930b IMIbsgds, mgaom-
dgi3obgdol dgommgdn). GFMgbobagdo o
3MbLbym@o309d0 o bLogdnsbmdom wog-
MHmgomo gs3mnmgds bocmgdm (396@ 60l
BomM3m3aagbemgdl gbdstgds (3mbobs s
MBofgdal gom®mdoaggdado, sbggg dgdama-
do dooo abogddgdal o6 Lbgs Lodmdomdy
9899&M0 3ndomdal Bobs 3ommds bogds.
560l dg3mbgg39d0, Bmogbss bLomgdm (396-
B0l gmgamo mogMo o3 oy) 0d 3sbyb-
0b3a b 3mbG by oLOBY;

Lomgdm (396@Mqdab dobady esmbgdmmaos
Lbgoabbgs 669930 s 39EMLYda, AMIgmon-
0806  gobLogmmFgdoo  860d369mmgsebas
3m3309Ggemma  3u@bada. 2010 Bl
sbgoma 3m33ayGgmo 39@abgdo YRsbme
300565 Lmgmolb 400-80g d(3bmizgdds,
0L dggass( dom d90dabgl (3mebs ©s
mbofgdo, Bomsg gondGads domo bagddo-
3bmdolb  gxgd@Omds s ©abogdgdal
dobbgdn. ombobodbogns, Gmd bmxgmagdal
m3989bmdada  3mI30n@admem  3MLyddy
3bomn Immbmgbamgdss;

bdom dgdombggzeda, Loomgdm (39680
Ambobmrmgmdsl  ©s bmggemda  ofmbgdae
©5b6gbgdymgdgdl LoogobmadL obgo
3mdboby@gdol, Gm3 oo o s@gomm-
M03ds dmbobmamdsd Mmab s ©obab-
0% qgdob abmags Bmobgmbmb. dsgsmo-
0@, SEaOMMMN30 M30mIoMmzggmmdal
BomImomaqbemgdl, dobbogmgdmadl s
0908938L @obdamgdol Mbgz9b Lbgswsabbgs
©m3856@9(300L dmdbswgdada, sbrgdab
35055Ld ©d a603bmgdal sgamby
0b@gMbgBob Lodmsmgdom gosegbegbsdo.
0bgEs goFoMzgdm 5©odnsbgdl Mo
Mbgdom s@3nbob@msonm (396@Mgddo
Rabgems, 3gLededobaw, Mmool s Mmabbgdol
obafMxgo.

ymggmogg bgdmo Bomdmeagboma ogdol

o Coordinators from the community centres
were given training and consultations on
such issues as, for example, general manage-
ment skills, social enterprising and prepa-
ration of business plans, self-evaluation
methods, etc. All these, as well as their past
activities and experience, help them to ex-
tend their knowledge and skills, and become
a pre-condition for their further employ-
ment or effective work performance on other
jobs. Cases were when a community centre’s
former leader was appointed to a certain re-
sponsible position;

o Various types of courses are provided on the
bases of community centres, and computer
courses are the most important among them.
In 2010, up to 400 village residents under-
went such courses free of charge. As a result,
they acquired knowledge and skills that in-
crease their work effectiveness and employ-
ment opportunities. It should be noted that
there is an increasing demand on computer
courses in many villages;

« In many cases, community centres offer vil-
lage residents and organisations such ser-
vices that help them save time and costs.
For example, assistance to representatives of
local governments, teachers and doctors in
the preparation of various documentations,
making photo copies and sending the docu-
ments by the Internet. In such cases, people
that already experience financial difficulties
no longer have to travel to administrative
centres that saves them time and money.

All the above has an indirect economic im-
pact of the Community development program.

Other programs initiated by our organiza-
tion also have various types of indirect eco-
nomic impacts. For example:

306300056950b 3macadol nf0d g3mbmdo &
bgao3mgbol BoM3mowa 96b. « CSRDG supports the development of social
1339 906036mab goMms, bbgemabbgs bob-
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ol 0M0d0 g3mbm3o gmma bgasgmgbyda sbemsgl

68860 ("76)8060%0600[) 8006} 606bm6608@8-

&9 bbgo 30mafadgdbs(s, dogomomac:

o LobmasmgydMngo m&go60ds(30930b
aadmog@gdal 3Mmamedal ggamamgddo
maobodsgos bsmb Mgl bmgosm-
8965m3gmdal  gobgomamgdsl,
beream Lngoomo babamdmgdo, msgol
3b&ng, bog®dbmd g3mbmdagn®m bgass-

mbob obgbgb Lsgnmamo Mggombgdals

‘860

93MbmMBogn® gob30maMgdady, 3gMdme:
3Mmamadol gamamgddo aodmsbawgdamo
Log@obBm 3mbiambgdol dgogase dgdd-
Boen bmgnoma® boBsm3mgdda obs dgde-
0 13 90580060, Hm3gmos @owo baBoemo
9.6, ,806g0bsmu® xamyqdL® 30g3mczgbg-
3056, 56491 3o, doMomeaw, Rzgmmgdmng
306mmdgddo @soboddgds gdotion.
350M©d  ¢obsbbyMo dbommaggmabs, 3Gm-
ac380b gomamgddo ssmbgdam bmznsm-
@6 LobomImgdl M@ sMmmgdsm GMgbabagda
©s 3mbbaymEongdo LobsGdmb g3mbm3dn-
306, 8obsbby@, doMzgdobamm, mmasbo-
Bagogem ©d bogobmbdwgdmm bsjombgd by,
o3 bgmb mbymdL Jsmo FpaFommdab goma-
R®M39Lgdol s gbdafgds ecmm 953948 MHo©
3565bmE(309mmb Lo gnmata g3mbmadn gnca
Logddnsbmds. dggasm o8 Lobob mEMasbades-
30980 Lo gmmata bgmoma dgadzo d3gybob
93mbmdogeda  dg4d6omo  3GmEd@gdab
Lobom, sbggg Lobs@BmbL s of sebaddgdea-
o 5053056980L  gosbobawgdoo. ombsb-
0dbagns, Mm3 gb Lobamdmgda 9693006 abgom
Logd300bmdal, Mmgmai gom33ggmo dod-
9bgd0b godm Lbgs Lgd@mEgdab (39Mdm o
LogaMm) sfgamdn o b3ogds.
(m86m ©sbzMomgdaom ab. 3Gmamednma ob-

606080, 63 44)

o 30m33oMmzggmmdal  gobgzomamgdal
3Mmamadol  gofamgdda  mgmeagal,
mogmeEgbol, Lombsrmal, mbyGagmoab
©5 Ambs@ommal d9bozndsmndg@gddo
a0bbmM(30gmagdygma  ImboGmcabgabs
©>  80bmEgdymo  Mg3mBgboszngdab
dgRgaee  3>99%mgbrs  Lodogxgd™
36m(39L0, oabggbs geddgomgammdabe
©5 5bg0M0d35mmgdnmgdal 8945603 g-
b0 (ab. 3Gma@msdyma s6gsmnda, a3. 60),
0353, oogob db&ag, bgmo Jgubym
Lodogg@™  LobLEgdaL  LodsGmmosb

350565b0mgdabs s 989J@&0sb godmy-

enterprising within the program Develop-
ment of ClIvil Society Organisations. In
their turn, social enterprises have a consid-
erable impact on economic development of
those regions where they operate. Namely:

- In the social enterprises created as a result

of grant competitions announced within the
program, 13 people got jobs and a big ma-
jority of them were from so called “margin-
alised groups” - in other words, such people
that in regular conditions have less employ-
ment opportunities.
Beside providing financial assistance, train-
ings and consultations on economic, finan-
cial, marketing, organisational and legisla-
tive issues are held for the social enterprises
created under the program, promoting their
sustainability and helping them to carry out
their economic activity in a more effective
way. As a results, these enterprise make their
contribution in the country’s economy with
their production, as well as with the taxes
paid by the enterprises and their employees.
Noteworthingly, these enterprises carry out
the types of activities that, due to certain rea-
sons, do not fall under the scope of other sec-
tors (private and public).
(See program report, pp 44).
As a result of the implemented monitor-
ing and the developed recommendations
within the frameworks of the program on
the Development of Local Government in
Telavi, Lagodekhi, Sighnaghi, Ozurgeti and
Chokhatauri municipalities, the budgetary
process and the transparency and account-
ability mechanisms have improved (see
Program Report, pp 60), that, in their turn,
have helped fair distribution and effective
application of the budgetary funds, having
an undoubtedly positive impact on the eco-
nomic systems of these regions. In addition,
keeping in mind that public offices are one
of the largest procurers in Georgia, devel-
opment of the municipal budgetary systems
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q969d0L, Mobois  (3ombobo  ogda-
o0 bgaszmabs o43b 88 Mggombgdals
93mbm3azn® LobBgdgddg. 0dob asom-
35mabbobgdom, ®md LodeMmzgmmdon
Logo®m obgbgdnmgdqda gm-g&mo
439modg 3bbgamo d53Lynw3gmgda o6-
056, 39bo(sndomn@o bodoyxg@m Lob-
393930 ob3q6s o goddgomzommdal
s, 3603369mm3boe gobs306imdgdL
23 Gg30mbgddo  3mbynMgb@memn s
mog0bmgamn 3ol gobznmetgdsb.

060d0 93mbmangnca bggesmgbs bIoMom
@06 brgsb ,396@®ab" Bogm 0bozamgdae
bo3obMb3gdmm  (33momgdgdl, MmImgdacs
bl 9bymdlb  g3mbmdngn@a LabEgdal o6

o390 bEOYIGYMIoab YBH™ 989G NG
B0bg(30mbaMgdsl, dogsmamago:
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dmem bado Beob 356303emmdsdn Agqbo
mMaobodsgns, odwgbodg Lbgs om-
sbodmagmdm mMasbodsznobmeb gm-
omdmogze, RosMommos 3093560030,
HmImab dobobos Lodomggmmlb dmaeg-
Mmdobomngols 36@03mbm3mmayma
98990 960L o (30mgdmmdol obod-
mmgds. Mgaombamoa LabmgsmgdMoga
mMa5b0bs30980lb Imbsboemgmdoor 3g-
dndogee Mg3mdgboazngda boje@ogy-
mmb bgmobygmgdobs s g36m 3mdabo-
ob BamdmBoragbrmmdobamanl, Lowa(s
sbodmgdyma aym  g3em3alb  bedg-
Bmdmm 3mmo@ozal gobbm@30g9emgdols
sboem 9Mmzgbyem abpoge@® 3Mmamo-
3530 (NIP) 3 Lognombgdol sbobgolb ou-
3omgdmmds  (9ucm  sbzMomadom
ob. 3Mmamodnmo sbasmndn, asz. 70).
2010 Bemob 0939939630 LadoGmzgmmb
bgmobyymgdsd  donmm  3mb 3mEgb-
3oobd @  mogabyygsmn  gagMmdal
dgbobgd LEsGgans, MmIgmai Imo-
3°3L bagdomoggmmdn ob@03mee30-
a0 3MbGMmmeolb LEMmo smEagbsl,
od3e bmemme bEMs@gaool domgds
bogdoGnbo o6 ofab. 2011 Bgmb 0aga-
3905 30bmb3gdmmdadn  dqbadsdabo
(330 g3980b 3@ obs. Abgozbo Lodbob-
a0l gubionma godmogmgds bgmb
dgmdmal 3oMGgmmo dgmebbdgdgdal
©509d5b s bymb JgnBymdl megobyy-
gomo 35Dl Rodmyamndgdsl, Mobacs
360d369mmgobo  bggegmagbs 946900
439960L 93mbm3030L BaMomdody.
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and increased transparency become a con-
siderable pre-requisite for the development
of a competitive and free market in these
regions.

Legislative changes, initiated by CSRDG,
that help to ensure more effective functioning
of the economic system or separate structures,
also result in indirect economic impacts. For
example:

o During the last three years, in cooperation
with several other non-governmental or-
ganisations, CSRDG has been involved in a
campaign aimed at proving the necessity of
anti-monopoly regulations to the Georgian
government. In cooperation with regional
non-governmental organisations, a set
of recommendations has been developed
for the Georgian government and repre-
sentatives of the European Commission,
presenting arguments for the necessity of
including these issues in the new National
Indicative Program (NIP) of the European
Neighbourhood Policy. (In more details see
the Program Report, pp. 70). In December
2010, the Georgian government adopted
a strategy on competition and free trade,
that envisages a full restoration of anti-cor-
ruption control in Georgia. However, only
adopting the strategy is insufficient. Making
respective amendments in the legislation is
planned for 2011. Functional strengthen-
ing of this type of service will help prevent
making cartel deals and promote develop-
ment of a free market, that will have a con-
siderable impact on the sustainability of the
country’s economy.
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OUR ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

EN 1 - 3mbdomgdamn bgomgemmo/dobsms
BmBob o6 dm3memmdal Bomomgdom

Logddosbmdal 3Gmgbdn Rggbl dng@ Bmb-
dofgdam dobomsls, dofomswsm, Bomdmsw-
396L Jomomeo ©s Jbgmmobmagdal s3oMs@abe
5 3M0b@gMgdal JoMGMaxo.

2010 Bgmb  8mbdsmgdama  Jomsmoal
omEgbmds 3a-do - 3302 3a 940 a6 (Jomameo
©5 Jomam@albgsb bocdmgdmm Lo 3obggmatom
3meydzos (3mbggm@gdn, demmybm@do o
5.d.), Rggbo 3ndmongs309d0bmgol obsmge-
mo domomen 1357 33 (306036gyemn 8mba(zg-
dg60 gbgds mdomoabal mgabl, mgmsgol meo-
Lobogol Bgmb 8mbsa393980lb omgms g
dmbgmbo).

s@bobadbagas, MmI mMasbadszns IJmab-
ol dbmmme 03 Jomomel, MHmdgmocs
35693mb  ©sddman  Ggdbmmmangdom  sFab
bo@dmgdamo, 3g@dme, LyHGagnamgdam
Jomomebl, &obsiz od3b mmam Paper From
Farmed Trees Double A.

2010 Bgmb 3mbdsmgdamo  3oMGMaxol
GomeEgbmds 3a-dn 8 3a 400 g - dogomgmin
3oM@Mago; 75 a6 - ggghowoa gomGmoxa (Jbg-
Mmobrgdal 93oMo@abs o 3Mb@gmgdobom-
30b) (mdomobal @s ;mgmogob mggobgdo).

EN3 - 969300l 3oM@sd30tn dmbdamgds, @omo-
dmmo 3oMggmomn 96gHam@gbambgd-
ab (9696800L 3nGgqmown Byatimgdals)
dobyogno.

EN4 - 9bgMgools s@ednfoadamn dmbdamgds,

QOO’)OB‘S@O 30683@0@0 06366(")63—

Bﬂbﬁmabob) anbanom
Rggbo  mMasbabaznabomgal  9bgFgool

30MEs30Ma dmbdamgds dmoa(3o3L d4bgdMagon
2060bs o 896Dabals ImbIomgdsl, beagnm s@os-
30MEs30Ma dmbdomgds - gmgd@mmgbgmaoal

EN 1 - Materials used by weight or volume

Materials used during our activity are mainly
paper and cartridges for printing and copying
machines.

In 2010, we used 3302 kilograms and 940
grams of paper (including printing paper and
paper materials like stationary, envelopes, note-
books, etc.). 1357 kilograms of paper was used
for our publications (the data is for Tbilisi office
only, and this year, no data could be collected
on the issue for Telavi branch).

It should be noted that CSRDG uses only
the type of paper produced by environmental
friendly technologies. This is certified paper
with a ‘Paper From Farmed Trees Double A’
logo on.

The amount of cartridges used in 2010 for
copying machines and printers (in both Thbilisi
and Telavi offices) was: black and white car-
tridge - 8.4 kgs; colored cartridge - 0.75 kgs.

EN3 - Direct energy consumption by primary en-
ergy source

: - Indirec gy cons i rimary
EN4 - Indirect energy consumption by primar
source

Our organization’s direct energy consump-
tion is natural gas and gasoline, and our indirect
energy consumption is primarily electricity.
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3mbdomgdsb.

d1bgdtng oMb dmgobdador  mdamabial
mgobdo  ©a8mb@Goggdamo  asmdmdob  Lob-
&9dobomgal (3¢bgdfng oMb mEmgsbadszas
dgobyoal 3m330600bogsb 3L ,gob@MoblLgsd
- mdomobo®, ®m3gmo(s Jomsd mdamoblb gsbom
530M0g90b. ab. http://www.tbilgazi.ge/).

396babo doGomsmsm dmabdsmgds mmasbo-
Bozoolb  ggogbomn  938m3s64obgdabsmgals.
Bggbo mEasbabdsozns Gemadl bod 3bmdad o3-
B™3sbgobsl Bggbo dmbdsmgdmma dg6Dabols
d0Mg Bomb dgoggblb mdamobol megabdo
39696@mEab bobgsgom Imbdemgdemn dg6-
Babo, Hmdgma BMbdombomgdl Lobsoeal
d96y39@0b ©@MmML  mgebolb  gmgd@cmgby®-
30000 dmbodomoggdmo. bmmm  gmgd@mm-
q6gg0s mdomobobs s mgmogolb mgabgdab
seFntgommdol g3bd30mbafgdsl b3sMwgds
(JMBBO‘O@OF)UBO, 3606@85360, dbaﬁ)mdbo, ao-
Bomgds s 5.3.).

odoemobol 3mbdatgdemma
9m9d@mmgbgmaool  100%-L  mEmgabadszns
dgobyoolb  L/L ,ogmabobasb®,  GmIgmags
odomabobogob  gmgd&Gmgbgfanal  g&-
oo Mo ©ob@MadnBmmb  BoMmBmowmggbl
(http://www.telasi.ge). o6 ofmbgdmdl dmbs(3g-
39%0, Mams dbEow @saygmb Rggb Bog® dg-
byoamo  gmygd@®mgbgGgool  Bystimgda
a0bobmgdom s 3Moasbabmgdom gbgMammg-

m%nbao

La@bgdo. bdmaswsm, brab gs68s3mmadada
bogdotmggmmdn Bomdmgdamo  gmad@mmgb-
96300b badmemme 88% Jnmmgbgmansl bom-
dmomagbl (564 gbgManals gobsbmagdaw bysm-
mgdb 0ggbgdb), bmmmm @sbstmfgbo - dmbgdcngo
s060b B30L dgogasm 8nnmgds (gb 8mbsazgdn
Bggbo Immbmgbolb Logmdzgmbdy dmggebmms
Logofmggmm  gbgMag@ngolb  Lsdobol@Mma).
Jdgbadsdabow, Bggb ngH dgbynmmo s Imb-
doMgdamo  gmygd@®mmgbgmagnal  badysmme
88% gobobmmgdon  gbgMammgbymbgdobasb
Bomgdamo gbgManss, bmmm 12% - sMogsbob-
mgdao MgbyMLgdabash (54bgdfngn snfa).

2010 Bgemb Rzgbo mEmgabodszonlb mdamabob
mggobob 80g6 g969Mmz00b 3nMm@sdnmn s sMs-
3nmpsdnmn dmbdsmgdob xsduymn dsF396-
98cmg380 Bo8moagbomos d3gdmom dmygsebaem
Gbﬁmganz
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We consume natural gas for the heating
system in our Thilisi office (natural gas is pur-
chased from KazTransGaz-Tbilisi which is the
city supplier. See http://www.tbilgazi.ge/).

Gasoline is primarily consumed by
vehicles owned by the organization. We own
three sedan type vehicles. In addition, a small
amount of gasoline is used to operate an elec-
tric generator in our Tbilisi office, which pro-
vides power to the office in cases of electricity
power cuts.

Electricity is consumed in the Tbilisi and
Telavi offices by various appliances - e.g. com-
puters, printers, copiers, lighting, etc.

All electricity (100%) consumed in Tbilisi of-
fice is purchased from Telasi Ltd - the sole dis-
tributor of electricity in Tbilisi (http://www.tel-
asi.ge). Unfortunately, due to the inaccessibility
of information, it is impossible to accurately di-
vide the sources of electric supply into renew-
able and non-renewable resources. About 88%
of the energy generated annually in Georgia is
produced by hydro-power (i.e. by a renewable
energy source) and the remaining 12% from
the combustion of natural gas (at our request,
this data was provided to us by the Ministry of
Energy of Georgia). Consequently, about 88%
of energy purchased by us is from renewable
sources and the remaining 12% comes from
non-renewable sources (natural gas).

The table below presents cumulative data
of direct and indirect energy consumption by
Thilisi office of our organization in 2010:



9969066030 S0
Natural gas

: 6533.98 3%/ m® 254,891

396%0bo
Gasoline

7390 cmo@ o/ L 331.072

9696300l 36530653060 ImbIsMgds
Indirect energy consumption

929d&MmgbaHans (L)
Electricity (total)

12961.56 338.bor/ kwthr : 46.6616

3565bmgdamn bysmmgdowasb - 88%
From renewable sources -88%

 11406.17 336.boo/ kwthr.

3M0a5b65bmgdan Bysmgdnwsb - 12%
From not renewable sources — 12%

1555.387 338.bor/ kwt.hr.

*

dmb3smgdamo dmbgdMogn s0fob, 396%ababs
5 9mgd&Mmgbgcanal mgbmdal gmyyemgd-
do go@sobaygebsm 3mgxn030g6@gda domamy-
dmmos GRI 0635060339306 bLob g dd-
03969mm Bomnmgdgdde”, a3. 8, 39Mdme:

1000 83 d4)bgdcogn soo - 39,01 ax; 1
&mbs d96abo - 44,80 g% (1 mo@ o 396%ababs
badamaemm bod 3gMogy - 0,75 3a); 1

338/Lo 9mgd@HmgbyGaes - 0,0036 3x.

o dggbgds 3mbdsmgdamo gmaddmmgb-
963000 LobsMmImgdmam absmg o babzsgol
omEgbmdal, Mmam& i Dgdmom sm3bndbgom,
B39bL Bog® mdomobolb mggobda dmbdemgdy-
mo 9mgd@®mgbgmagnol Ladmaemme 12%, sbq
1555.387 338/boy  0boMmBmgds sMogobsobemyg-
da0 MgbMbgdobash, 39Mdmw 30, dbgdfnga
2060l 630b dggasw. 53 mgbmdal gemgd@cm-
96963000 LaBsMBmgdmom @obsMxmma dmbg-
6030 d060b Mommgbmds dgowagbl 466.6161
33 o6« 18,2027 ax.

* 085035603 gdobomgal go8mzg0yqgbgom dgdwgan
30980(3090830: 1 338/ Lo grogd@Hmgby®-
300b bLobamBmgdma Ladysmme dmabdamg-
35 0.3 33 3690030 s0tn (9b 3mggo0gb@0
95399967969 9696398030L bLadababBHmL Jag
dmbmpgdmm 0bgmmdsgasl); 1000 33 d4bg-
d60g0 sofo - 39,01 ax;

* Coefficients for transforming the volumes of
consumed natural gas, gasoline and electrici-
ty into the Joules are given in the GRI Report-
ing Guidelines, p. 8. In particular, 1000 m3
natural gas - 39,01 gj; 1 ton gasoline - 44,80 gj
(average density of 1 Liter of gasoline - 0,75
kg); 1 kwt.hr. electricity - 0,0036 gj.

As for the amount of fuel burnt in generating
the electricity consumed by our Thilisi office,
as already mentioned, about 12%, or 1555.387
kwt/hr, is produced from not-renewable sourc-
es, in particular, as a result of natural gas com-
bustion. The amount of natural gas burnt to
generate this much electricity equals 466.6161
cubic meters, or 18,2027 gj.

* For the calculations, the following coefficients
were used: approximately 0.3 cubic meters
of natural gas is needed to generate 1 kwt/hr
electricity. (The coefficient is provided by the
Ministry of Energy of Georgia); 1000 cubic
meters of natural gas = 39.01 gj.
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EN8 - 6gemols dormosbo s3mmgds, @omodymo  ENS8 - Total water withdrawal by source
Bymob Bysmmagdalb dnbgogom
Wat ti i izati i
Bggbo mgobobogsnob Bog® Byamob Bmbe . ater consumption in our organization is
limited to drinking water.
3o6gds  Lagmygozbmgcgdm 30Dbgdoor dmb- .
BoBgdmmo Bymoo (babdgmo Byrmo) dgdmo- 457.94 cubic meters of water was con-
BoMamads. sumed in our Tbilisi office in 2010.
2010 69cnb mm3560 853006 odoemnbonb

mgnbdn dmbdsmydaemo byemnb dmpey- The data has been calculated from the individual
M35 d9503960 457.94 33-b. water meter reading.

3mbs(3999%0 30568560 dgm Byemals ImbIatgdols

0BngoisGo 3Ga(bagmab BsBgbabemndob All water consumed by the Center is sup-
30bggoo. plied from Thbilisi’s water supply system (Geor-

gian Water and Powers provides water to Tbilisi

3mbBamgdgem Byomb mMasbobaies dmero-  and its suburbs. See http://www.georgianwater.
obo@ 0mgdL  mdamobol Bysmdmdsmogqgdal
LObLEBFnESL (Mdomabls s dab Jgdmasmgbl
Lob3gm Byamb obzal 3mM33sbos gmMgesb go- o )
&9 b mBy@b. ob. http://www.georgianwater. As for the source of the water, it is supplied
com). to Tbilisi from the rivers Lori (through the so

(3 399b9ds 8mblomgdmmo Bymol Byot- called Tbilisi Sea) and Aragvi (through the

™oL, BmamM(3 (36mdoens, mdaeabo Lsbdg-  Zhinvali reservoir).
0 Bymoom 3oMogmgds 3nbamggdnsb - omen

com ).

(30epobols deogob bodigommpdeo) o sfopge Water consumed by us is discharged through

(906350l bysmbozogal badysmagdoom). o
the municipal sewage system.

R396L B0gM dmbIomgdama Bysma 3ba(zn-
3om@n  bogobsmoadaoiznm LobGgdnm gowab
mE3560D5(3000056. EN16 - Total direct and indirect greenhouse

gas emissions by weight
EN16 - Loomdgmol sofMgdaol 3oMesdomn oo

Mo30M 5306 Q) L3 6
233003000 goBM5030L Jorrmasbo Direct greenhouse gas emissions related

to the activity of our organization are created
mF3560D5(3000 bogd8056mdab dgogasw bocm-  from burning natural gas to operate the Tbilisi
Mol 506gdob (bobdoMmmygsbaol) doMosdo-  office’s heating system, and burning gasoline to

®0 30860J39300 Byo®mb BoMmImoragblb &96g-  power our vehicles and the electric generator
36030 5060b B3s mdamobol mggabol gomdmdab

M bmds, dsbob domnmgdom

in the office. Greenh issi ted
bobgBobormgab Byemob as(zbomgdeb Boboo, in the office. Greenhouse gas emissions create

536939 MBaBE0bs300b oy dmb3sGgduemo from these processes are direct emissions.

396060l B30L dggasw BadmJdbama Lom-

30l 506930l 4o dggge. * The office heating system is autonomous. The
* mg0bob gocdmdal Lob@gds s38mbmBag- hot water boiler is installed on the organisa-
®0d, @bgero Bymob dmoeg®o  masbo- tion’s premises and natural gas supplying the

Bo300b GgM0GMENDgs I3MBES¢gdMma
s dobongal d6gdcngn sofal B3s mEgsba-
Bo300b BoMamgddo begds. bmmm 39606l

boiler is being burnt on our territory. Petrol
is used for the vehicles owned by CSRDG
Bmg0bBs@on m@asbobaznab grmaBomon sg- and the power generator installed on our

®™3s6406gd0bs s MBasbobs(30080 dmo- territory. Hence, greenhouse gasses resulted

23bgdmmo gmgd@HmagbgHo@mmabaomgal. from these burning are direct emissions.
58009650, b30L 83 3Gm(39Lgdob dggase
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Bom3m743boemn bamdg@ab soMgdo 3oMs-
306 3ogMg393b Bomdmowaqbl.

R396L 80gm 2010 Byl g00dmdab Lol gdol
367 (30mbofgdabocmgzgol 3mbamgdama dumbg-
36030 0060l Bmmmmds  Bamdmaoagbros
6533.98 3° (nb. %Oﬁmm EN3; EN 4). 36556030
2060b 80bodbyman dmzmmmdal B30L Igwg-
350 2010 byl Bo@mdmddbamo bamda@al snm-
ol 3oMsdnMo goxMJ393900 dgomagbos 8.96
&mbs CO,.

* LomdMab voMgdabmEgbmdob ssbgsmadgs-
3 g -
omEb: dmbdaMgdmmo s0fMalb dmgmemmdals
300060 9@ Mgd0wab 3ommamsdg-
330 go@ayzebol 3mganngb@os 0,7 (sby
1000 3% dbgdmongo somn = 0,7 Bmbsb); 1
&m™bs 3bgdFngn 0ol @obgnm, b sbosm-
Gyeo Jm(](B”G”US@”b mobobdo,
BomImogddbgds 1,96 Gmbs CO,.

abab 394Mbmdmeon dgdwmga

o3 999bgds 396Babob B30b dgrggem Bom-
dmgdboen  Lomdgfalb s0Mgdal goxmdzggel,
Mmam&z dgd8mo smgb0dbgo, mMasbabsznab
Lo g3056mdal  goMamgddn mdomobol mggo-
Lol dogm Bmbdsmgdama d96Babal mEgbmds
2010 Bgemb Bomdmamagbrs 7390 mom @)L, by
55425 3a-b. x0b0dbymo FHommgbmdal 3g6-
Babob 630b Iggasw Bsmdmddbamo bamdn@ab
206gd0b (CO,)) goxmdzggolb dmmmmds 2010
Byl dgoagbos 17,73 §mbsb.

* oobgomndgdabsl  aodmgaygbge  dg3mgan
LEObEIMEGMm gmgya3gb@gda: 1 Mmoo
39b6%abo - 0,75 33; 1 @mbs 396B06ab @obgabob
Bom8m0gddbgds 3,2 Gmbos CO, .

Rg960 mMasbobsznolb Logdnsbmdoom Bamdm-
48600 oM o30MEsd0tMo goxdgz93s 30 Imazaogl
B39b Bogm ImbIamgdememo gmgd@mmagbymagool
Bom3mgdabol Bom8mddbam gogmdzgsab.

Rggbo mEasbodszo0l dogH 8mbdsmgdmma
9 9d@Mmgbgmanal  Batd8mgdol  3Gm(39Ldo
Bomdmgdbommn  LomdgMmab  sofal  gox®dsg-
30b  oobgomndgds dbmmme  ssbmmgdoom
bg@bogds, LEobpem@mm 85839693 gd by
©3YMEbmdom. Hmam 3 bgdma snbadbs, m-
3560bs300b Bog® ImbIamgdmemo gegd@Em-
9696300b Lodmsmme 12% 8mBpnbstmgmdl 9b-

The amount of natural gas used by CSRDG
in 2010 for heating purposes was equal to
6533.98 cubic meters (see above - EN3; EN
4). The amount of greenhouse gas emitted was
equal to 8.96 tons of CO,.

* The following conversion factors have been
used in calculating the CO, emissions: the
coefficient for converting one cubic meter of
consumed natural gas into kilograms equals
0.7 (or, 1000 m3 of natural gas = 0.7 tons).
According to the standard coefficient, 1.96
tons of CO?is produced by burning 1 ton of
natural gas.

As for greenhouse gas emissions from gaso-
line, as already mentioned above, 7390 liters, or
5542,5 kgs of gasoline were consumed by the
organization for its operational purposes in
2010. The amount of greenhouse gas emitted
(CO,) equaled 17,73 tons.

* The following standard coeflicient was used
for the calculations: 1 liter gasoline = 0.75
kgs; CO2 produced as a result of burning 1
ton of gasoline = 3.2 tons.

In addition to direct CO, emissions, CSRDG
operations generate indirect CO, emissions
produced from purchased electricity.

The amount of greenhouse gas emission pro-
duced as a result of generating electricity used
by our organization can only be calculated ap-
proximately, by applying standard coefficients.
As mentioned above, about 12% of our electric-
ity comes from non-renewable energy sources,
e.g. generated using natural gas. In 2010, the
amount of electricity used in our Tbilisi office
equaled 15555,387kwt/hr, and 466,6161 m3 of
natural gas was needed to generate it (see EN3;
EN 4). The amount of greenhouse gas produced
as a result of burning 466,6161 m3 of natural
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96300b sMogobsbmgdome Bysmgdowsb, by gas equals 0.64 tons of CO,.

dbgdcMogn s0Malb GFmebbgmm3nmgdol abom

doomgds, Moz 2010 Bgemb mdomobol mgobo-

boomgob dgoagbos 156555,387 338/Lo, bmem

03 mEgbmdal gemygd@cmgbgFaonl Bsmdmgda-

Lomgol obofmgymma d4bgdfingn soMal meg-

Bmds 466,6161 8 (ob. EN3; EN 4). 466,6161  Pproduced by burning 1 ton of natural gas =

33 316536030 s0Mob B30L dgogaswm bomdmda- 1.96 CO.,.

Bomo LomdnFmol s06gdob MEgbmds ssbmmg-

300 390003960 0.64 §mbs CO Accordingly, cumulative amount of direct and

indirect greenhouse gas emissions produced as a

f;)°566°6£235°b°b 608‘“808353@;’6 8883888 result of our organization’s activity in 2010 can
O0QIMEGIJXR0  3MIFOBFJOOJe0: j j j :

83 Bubydogo oo = 0.7 Gmbob; 1 Bmbs be summarized in the following table:

16536030 5060l obzom bocdmaddbgds -

1,96 8mbs CO~

* The following standard coefficient has been
used for the calculations: 1000 m3 of natural
gas = 0.7 tons; the amount of greenhouse gas

*

Adgbodsdobo, F3960 mEHg3060 0553006 0do-
obol ma0bol bogf8osbmdol dowggscm 2010
b9emb 650m8mJ8bocro boodmmolb som930b So6-
@300 @5 SMHSS0MI30M0 oRMI39500 xo-
o mogbmds (36G0emmsm sby dgndemgds

b5m8mzo0806mon:
36936030 5060l B35 g5m3mdab bob@gdabscmzals 8,96

Burning of natural gas for the heating system

396b0bal 6o mGgsbnbs(30980b 938M3s64obgdabs s gmgd@Em- 17,73
3969658 mMab Bubgz0mbomgdabmgals

Burning of gasoline for the company’s vehicles and electricity gen-

erator
9m99d@OmMgbgManal bocmdmgdabal BocdmJdbamo goxmtdzgss 0.64

Emissions produced during electricity generation

3033060 5 3M330MEs30Ma 33x3MJ3930L Inmansbo megbmds 27,33
Total amount of direct and indirect emissions

EN22 - Total weight of waste by type and dis-

EN22 - 656h 69300 doremnsbn 3oLy, omadmen posal method
bomRgbqdol Bndabs o aon36989emy-
mg0b 3gommgdols dobgogom A major part of the waste produced by our
organization is waste paper. We recycle almost

Fgobo m@aobboz00b Bog Bodmgdborro all of the paper material used in our Tbilisi of-

bomhgbgdal 8603369mmzeb Boml Jomsmmoal . N
BofBB030 Bo®Bmoanb. B3gh cnoddals b fice. For this purpose, special bins have been
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moE 3obogbo R396L 80g® mdomabol meggabdo
dmbdamgdmmo Jomammal Mg303momgdsls. o3
30bbom yggme Lamommbdy ©aslb bL3gosm-
@0 gnmgdo, bawsg aMmzgmgds mggabdo Jmb-
8oMgdgmo Jomomro. goMyzgaea 3gMomey-
mmdoo 33 Jomomel 30dsfgdor ,30335b0ab
306 98mbEs (330000 sGsbodmagmmdm mMasba-
bo30930b  Jbgemb” (CENN), 6mdgmog dob
8ngf gobbmM(30gmgdmmo 863565 mggabob®
3Omamadol gofmamagddn s3fMm3zqdL  godmy-
9690 Jomomel s 9600 gdL  Jomameal
Jo@babolb Mg03momgdol dobbom (ob. http://
greenoffice.cenn.org/). 2010 65l R39685 mMgsb-
0by(3008 Mg(303m0Mgdol 80bboom ,30335L00b
306 93mbEs (33000 sGsbodmagmdm mMasba-
Ba(30900b Jugmb® Rosdams 210 3a BmbBomgde-
mo domomeol 6aRgba. Lsdbabscmm, xg6-
RgOMdoo gge bgMbogds mgmsegolb megabdo

3mbdamgdmmo Jomommol Mg(303momgds.

2010 Bgemb doemobob mgabdo BocdmJ3bo-
mo bagmgabmgmgdm bamRgbgdol 8omasbo
mgmmmds badnsmme Bomdmaoagbos 12 37
(Bmbo3gdn osbas®ndms mgabda gobmagl-
gdgma  boboggg  3mb@gabgfgdal  Momeg-
Bmdal, BmEmmmdabs o BomAgbgdal go-
8960l Lobdomal dobgogom). LsdBabsmme,
bogdoMmggmmdn o6 o@bgdmdlb bagmegasbmgdg-
dm BomBgbgdal LgaMgas30ob ob Hgozmamg-
b0l 3M0g@03s. bagmazszbmzmgdm bamBgbgdal
35136509mymazz0lb gPmepgmo dgomelb bom-
3moaqbl  obygmeggdal  3nbazndomyn
LobEg8ob Jogm Jomn BogogboyFgmby asb-

put on every floor in our office to collect waste
paper, which is then regularly delivered to
the Caucasus Environmental NGO Network
(CENN). Within its Green Office program,
CENN collects used paper and delivers it to a
paper factory for recycling (see http://greenof-
fice.cenn.org/). In 2010 our organization deliv-
ered 210 kgs of used paper to the Caucasus En-
vironmental NGO Network for recycling.

Unfortunately, we do not have a system in
place for recycling paper used in our Telavi of-
fice.

As for household waste from the office oper-
ation, the total volume of such waste produced
in our Thilisi office in 2010 was equal to ap-
proximately 12 cubic meters. (This was calcu-
lated by the volume of material in the office bins
and the frequency of waste discharge). Unfor-
tunately, there is no system of household waste
segregation or recycling in Georgia. The only
method of disposing household waste is for the
municipal cleaning service to take it to landfills.
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LYJ3N06MBNOL LMGBNOIRIEAN 3OR3I6IdT IS

OUR SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

mogbgde.

3dmM3N00 LOJIANVEM3Y RO QNGHLIIXO

3dm@M30

LAl - o6gsbabsioalb doemasbo 3dGmdnma
Agby@bgdo, ©smndymo obogdgdab
$039dal, dMmdomn bgmdgzMmagdol
&03900bs s 3m338600l bogdnsbmdals
Mga0mbgdol dobgogom

2010 Bgemb mMgobobsznedn 28 oobsd-
dOmIgmo 0fn3bgdmes. 88smgsb 25 mdaemo-
Lol Mmz30bob @s6s3IGMBgmos ©s 3 - cgemszob
mgababo.

mma560bs(300L 0565330 mBgmmag b
22 5580060 (78.5%) LEMm asbs339mDgs
©obs439dmmo, boemm 6 ssdnsbo (21.4%) -
bobgzo6 30653390y, 535mg96 Mmgmaz0lb megn-
bob bsBngg @sbs83MmMAgmn 8mdomdl LEmmm
38o@ by

BmamMg 000mabob, 0bg cgmogal mggabal
439ms  00b53dOMIgmmsb  gogm@Igdmmos
Baommdomn bgmdgz@mmgds godbomgdamao
35000.

LABOUR PRACTICES AND DECENT
WORK

LA1 - Total workforce by employment type,
employment contract, and region

The number of full-time employees at the
end of 2010 was 28. Out of these, 25 are em-
ployed in the Tbilisi office and 3 in the Telavi
office.

22 of the staft (78.5%) are full-time employ-
ees, and 6 (21.4%) are part-time. All three em-
ployees in the Telavi office work full-time.

Fixed term written contracts are signed with
the employees in both the Tbilisi and Telavi of-
fices.

m63560%3(300b 036533MMBgmas 336560mgds 3389amM0gdob dabgroznm

(d0m0:gdnmas 565336m3gmas MamEybmds)
The below chart presents the employee breakdown by the categories
(Number of employees is indicated)

ds@mgzab s Mamemao
Middle management unit

6

ds6mz0b dges Mameo
Senior management unit

©39603960 396bmbsema

Support Staff
7
36GmaMs3dob ggmmbo b3gasmab@o
Senior program officer
36ma 330l sbab@gb@o
Junior program officer
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LA2 - 0560336m3gmos ©gbsmmdals sdbmene-
Bfo s 3Om39b@mmoa dohggbgdy-
o, smndamo Ldqgbob, sbszmdmoga
RK3NBIO0Ly o Mggzombgdol dobgco-

800').

2010 berobsorzol, o8 69crb 56 dgdmas-

JoBgdns @s o ©3337009305 53 9M00
065d9mI 0.

LA2 - Total number and rate of employee turn-
over by age group, gender, and region

There was no employee turnover recorded
for 2010.

m63560b5(30330 393omdab babgmdemagmds
Period of employment in CSRDG

11-15 Bgema (9 05653363 gemn)
11-15 years (9 employess)
3 0,

%

LA3 - b 3898 Dy dmIndegg 0obsddmma-
mgdobomzgol ©sbgbgdmmn gabsbbyma
©obdoMgds s dgmogemgda, Moz o6
30M3gmEgds  ©OHmgdoo 6 bobggzem
3Bo@ by dmdndegg 06533m3mgddy,
omodgmo  byg8006mdal  doMomawa
©03gdal dobgogom

Rggb0 Labgmazsbm 3mma@n 3ol 8nbsbns, gb-
0535bmb 0653dCmMBgdL bsgmmemn dGmab
00Mbgmmo ©s bodsMmmmnsba sbabmemmgds.

godbomgdamo bgmazabgdal goms, m-
3560bsz00  006533GM3mgdl  LoogsdmdL
300339 dgmegemgdl, s sgMgmgg dod-
Bo@ nbobagh 06533 MBgmas LG edymamgdsl
©5 ®obbomn, @oMmbgyma Lodydom SoHMdgdab
ObEN63gmymezsl, dogsmomso:

o %063Gmgmmdol odmggz0lb mamgdamgd-
ab 456 3390 6Bl sbsdmanmgds (Mo

gogdboMgdagem  0obbslb  BomImoragbl o

1-5 Bgema (9 256533@mIgema)
1-5 years (9 employess)
3 0,

%

6-10 Bgemo (10 036533mm3gemn)
6-10 years (10 employess)
36%

LA3 - Benefits provided to full-time employees
that are not provided to temporary or
part-time employees, by major opera-
tions

The goal of our wage policy is to offer the
employees dignified and fair compensation of
their work.

As well as fixed salaries, CSRDG also pro-
vides its employees with certain additional
benefits aimed at maintaining motivated staff
and offering them healthy and pleasant work-
ing conditions. For example:

e Partial coverage of health insurance (which
is a fixed amount and equal for all employ-
ees);
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3068608 yzgms 86533MmImabomgab);

o 33098 mo 3395mgdal sbsbmanFgds
bgmaxabol bEnmo mEgbmdam 4 mgob gob-
dogmmmdada (o3 bogdommggmmb  3o6mba-
©gdmmdom oaqborm gomal BomIma-
396L, o335 339dmmgdol sbobmonmgds
mEgobodozool BbMnEsb  396mbImygdem-
d0o 56 Imombmgads);

o Lo3bobyMgdMmngo dmgammgmdal b gd-
absb Bomgdamo GadogmEo ©sDosbgdal

ao@sboamo  ©sds8gdoma

(s0b0dbymo  obdatgds

masbodsz00l

dmmo@ngom, bLodgobog@me, Rz9b60 om-

Lgdmdob 3obdombg oF azgmbos 3bgagbo

380b3939);

dgdombgggedo
obadmom@gds
a0m3omnbBobgdaemos

o mxdbob BggMob ©ozemazal dgdmbgzgzsedo
356gmo  g0bsbbymn  abdamagds, sbggg
5358 9d0m0 365D gdon 339dqmgds
©> ©2bggbgonb @mggdoe;

o PNmoEn EbISMgds sagbaoma mado@al
B3 mgddo dzomob dgdgbab, Jm@babgydals,
sbaem 606530 go@abgmabs ©s 5.9, dgdmb-
393°80;

o Losbombem 3Mgdns bobggetn o6 gMomo
@30l bgmagsabolb mpgbmdoom;

o Bodobamabgdgmo 36gd0gda go8m@Rgmam
3o6an dndomdobomgol (Mo nbongowe-
S Mo gdboboergds gmgger gmbyMyder
dgdmbgggeda).

5mbndbymo Jgmegomgdo 3@ 39m@gds M-
3560bs300L bLEMm 3@ oddg obsgdgdmem ygg-
s 00653d0mIgmbg. Moz dggbgds bobgze®
35653390Dg  obogddgdnm  ©8b533HMImmgdl
(BmBgmms  Mompgbmds, Gmammi  Dgdmo
53603bgm, 6 5053056L, 56 MEgsbaDds300bL
doosbo IOmBoomn Ggbag@bol  21.4%-00),
bgdmor Rsdmmgmomo  Jgmegemgdowsb m-
3560bsz0s  door dbmemme  dDmgogHor  csb-
8336mmBgmb  Loegodmadl, o asbbbgegwg-
s (3om3gmmo  09653dMmImobamgol o
336[)0160@‘@60 JMB@ﬁod@)om 636‘3@06060
(sbg Bogsmoma, basbambBenm 36 gdns bobgge®
3565339007 @aboddgdaem yzgmos 0obsddmma-

909 3O (39©Y0S).

LA10 - Bgmoboda badygamme Modogbo basmo
obosfggds  gfomn  05653dMmdmols
LBogmgdoby/Bfgbobagd by,
dOmdgmms 308 gammngdals dobgogom

0obod-
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¢ Four months paid maternity leave (the term’s
duration is set by the Georgian legislation.
However, it does not require employers to
compensate the leave);

¢ Additional compensation is paid to employ-
ees if injured when performing their work
duties (this benefit is outlined by our poli-
cy). However, luckily, we have never had any
such accident;

o Financial assistance in case of a family mem-
ber’s death. Also, additional paid leave and
vacation days;

e Monetary assistance within defined limits in
cases of child birth, marriage, moving to a
new apartment etc;

e New Year bonus equal to half or one month’s
salary;

¢ Incentive bonuses for good work perfor-
mance (subject to individual consideration
of every specific case).

The above mentioned benefits apply to
all full-time employees. Part-time workers (6
people, or 21.4% of the staff) have only some
of these benefits, different for each worker and
regulated by individual work contracts. (e.g., all
part-time employees receive New Year bonus-
es).

LA10 - Average hours of training per year per
employee by employee category

In 2010, a total of 704 work-hours (i.e. an av-
erage of 25,1 hours per employee) were spent
on training purposes.



2010 Bgmb  measbobsozoolb  00bsd-
dOmIgmmsmgal Ro@omgdmma §Hgbabagdabos
©5 LBsgmgdal Re8mma bobgMdmagmds dgow-
396w 704 Losob, Moz oo™ 633G m3ma-
Loogob badysmme 25,1 bssmb dgowagbl.

®56533m3gmms 3o@gamMngdob Bobgozom
LBogmgdabs s &Mybabagdal babamdmogmds
2010 Bgemb obg gosebsboemeo:

Below is a breakdown by the raining types
and the trainings’ duration of the various cat-
egories of employees during 2010:

dotmngol Dgos Mammo
Top management

32 16

doFmngol s Mameno
Mid-level management

360 60

3Mmamodol mRmbo

L3gnamab@o
Senior program officer

128 21.3

3ma@adal sbob@gb@a
Junior program officer

184 26.3

&9db03m60 3gALmbaa
Support staft

LA12 - 08 00b53361m3mgdols 3m(396& o

Boero,  ®m3mgoni  Mgagmec g

0009896 dgx30bgdol Lognmema dmdom-

bob g39d@mmdabs s 3Mmaggbogmn
a06300056980b dgbobgd

mMa5b0bsz00b yzgmo 00bsddermgelb ym-

39m 6 03930 ghobgem mBoMmEads asbbm®-
30gmgdaea bLsdndomb, 330mognzs(300Ls ©
dgbadmgdemmdgdolb  dmomgom@o  dgisbads,
beremm ymazgemo Bemol dmenmb - 9930%9890gema
dggg0bgds. mommgmmo 0s65336m8emals boddo-
obmdol dgzobgdel o@omgdl 8obo ¢dmsrmm
bgm8dmgabgma, BobsbBs dgoagbomo zomb-

LA12 - Percentage of employees receiving reg-
ular performance and career develop-
ment reviews

Every six months all employees undergo
mid-term reviews of their performed work,
qualification and capacity, and, at the end of
the year, they have a final evaluation. Each em-
ployee is evaluated by her/his immediate su-
pervisor based on a pre-designed questionnaire
and a face-to-face meeting (the questionnaire is
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3560bs s 3nMomo dgbzgomnl bagydzgmby
(goobgotn ©agds (39em39mmo mabsdwgdmdo-
Lomgolb 3GmBob smbgMarmmdsdn agojbomg-
o 3obybnbdggdmmds-Imgamgmdgdol
dobggom). dggobgdol dgbzgomol dgdwga
abgmgds dgbggmol dmgmg dgdoxsdgdgmo
obgomndn, Mobo bymddmgabgmo  5(36mdlL
0565330m3gemb.

2010 Bgmb Rzgbo mMaobadsoznal yzgeme
0565336m3gmds (864 doemosba  dGmToomo
Ggbg@bgdalb  100%-8s5)  Foomm Lo gmorsto
Lo g3056mdab mgnznamaFn dggzabgdes.

LA13 - 3ddscrmggmmdomn mmgsebmagdals dg-
doagbmmdobs s bbzopabbgs 398 9-
amM0930L MebsddMmmBgmms @omndgzs
3969 mo, sbszmdMago, M3 z0Mmgbm-
bdob gamxugdoboda dozmomgbgdol o
3Mo30mxygMmabgdal  bbgs dohRggbg-
bemgdab dobgogom

»(390&M0" obogdgdab, 3Gmggbomma gs6-
30056380bs o Babbgmol msebsdst dgbademg-
denmdgdl  odemgglh  yzgms »ebsddMmmBgmb,
306mRggmom  bgbol, sbsgol, gMmzbgdal,
5e8LoMgdemmdal, dmmo@oga dgbgoymg-
3900l o9y Lbgs 3oMmgzgbyma Foboboscmgdemgd-
obo.

designed for the various positions, in line with
the duties and obligations outlined in their job
descriptions). Following the evaluation meet-
ing, a brief summary report is written and is af-
terwards presented to the employee by her/his
supervisor.

In 2010, all our employees (100% of all hu-
man resources) received their official work per-
formance evaluation report

LA13 - Composition of governance bodies and
breakdown of employees per category
according to gender, age group, minor-
ity group membership, and other indi-
cators of diversity.

CSRDG gives equal employment, profes-
sional development and advancement oppor-
tunities to all its employees, regardless of their
gender, age, ethnicity, religion, political views,
or other personal features.

0565336mIgmans 396y nmo @smndgzs
Breackdown of employees by gender

353335330 (12)
Male (12)
43%
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Joema (16)
Famale (16)
57%



0565336mIgmans sbs3MdMago EsNd3d
Breakdown of the employees by age

45-55 Bgemo/years

65-70 Bgemo/years

-4
g e 55-65 Bgemn/years

25-35 Bgemo/years

0565336mIgmas 396gMHmo 3Mnd3s 35§ga3mMngdab dabgogzom
Employee gender breakdown, by categories

dommgab dgs Mamemo 2 100 0 0
Top management e

doFmngal s Mamemo 4 67 2 33
Middle level management

36MmaMsdolb mammbo b3gosmab@o 6 50 B 50
Senior program officer &+ 4

3Mma™adol sbob@gb@n B 71 2 29
Junior program officer

&9dbognco 3gALbmbama 2 29 ) 71
Support staff
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01060336 M3ITI&0

93% 9Mdady, 939 800~
300, 60bm 35b5dg, bobs Jombgmady,
oo 3o3088dg, bz000 Imgdady, @smm Boggsendy, ds3s sboddady,
dmms FOEm0s, gemobm msMadadgomo, 00bs dMgagedy, 56 be-
©0M5d30mm0, Mgms bmgghns, goas a39mgbosbo, msdnbs §o@nd-
30000, 305 GM3m030d30em0, M03d OMERS, dyMs oG sbsdgzomo,
30ds amaohsndgomo,
o3 amdgxrndzomo,
3obs  x08dyMans, 9356
mb@mdsdzomo,  bmbs
Smddd30mn, gemgbyg Rb-
90dg, bg&e 3mMmsdzamo.



PERSONNEL

Eka Urushadze, Eka Da-
tuashvili, Nino Vasadze, Keti Kakabadze, Nana Karseladze, Zviad
Modebadze, Dato Chikvaidze, Maka Asambadze, Shota Murghulia,
Eliso Gharibashvili, Irina Bregvadze, Ana Nadirashvili, Lela Kho-
peria, Giga Gvelesiani, Tamuna
Tatishvili, Gia Toklikishvili;
Lia Todua; Zura Tatanashvili;
Misha Gogichaishvili; Tamar
Gobejishvili, Kakha Jamburia, §
Levan Rostomashvili, Nona i
Aladashvili, Elene Chkheidze, |
Zura Korasvhili. &




0565336mIgmans sbs 3M3Mag0 Ed3MNd3s 33§g3mMngdab dabgzem
Employee age breakdown, by categories

dscmngol Dgos Mgmmo 2
Top management

doGngol s Mamemo 6
Middle level management

3Mmamsdol gadmbo 6
L3gzoomab@o
Senior program officer

36mg 3ol sbobGgb@n 7
Junior program officer

o3 dggbgds mmgsabodazonl gsdggmdal,
mdgmo(y 339Mmgzgmmdal ¢dommgl mEgos-
bmb Bamdmaagbl, ngo dgmggds & Bggmabe-

356, 3ob 40%-b Jommgdo dgoagbgb, 60%-L
- 358535(3900, dbogmdMog xanydo 30-sob 45
Bmadcog.

LA14 - 353535300 5 Jomms dofMomawo (bods-
Bm) bgmazabgdal dggomemgds, msbsd-
dOmdgems 3o@gamngdol dnbgogom

39609Mmmo 056sLBmMMab JogmBs Rz96L
babgmaobm  3mmo@ogodgi  dnbobgds.  R3z96
o aobgobbgezgdm  ©0653dHmBmygdabsmgals
ao00booe bgmazsbgdlb Ligbal dobgogom. m@-
3560bs(300L oEagbomoa 543b Mmommgmmo 358-
9am@oabamgol doMomsmo Ladsbabm bgmegabab
30603930 s 354L0ddn, Moz gMMbsAMOS Jomn
0 3585 35(30 036533MMImgdobomzgal. mocmmygay-
™o 35&9am®oolb dogboo dgbadsdobo bymes-
bob gobs33900 anbogds Lbgswsabbzs Lobmas-
©MgdM0g0 MmMasbadsznnl Lobgmaesbm dsbMab
3gbbagmob dg8mga. 3o@gamaol dogboom bgm-
3obgdb ImMob oggmgbznmgdol 308 gMaeda
aobmogom: 653 dmdal dgbadsdobo 3sbyb-
abdagdmmbob mby; 330mog03s(309, LGN,
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CSRDG Board, the supreme managing body
of the organization, has five members out of
which, 40% are females and 60% - males. Board
members’ ages range from 30 to 45.

LA14 - Ratio of basic salary of men to women
by employee category

The gender equality issue is also reflected
on our remuneration policy. We do not dis-
criminate between genders with respect to ba-
sic salary. For each category, the organization
has minimum and maximum limits for basic
salaries, without differentiating between female
and male employees. Salary ranges in each cat-
egory are determined on the basis of the Com-
pensation Market Survey in various civil organ-
izations. Salary differentiation criteria between
the categories are: level of responsibility for the
position; qualification; work experience.



2010 Bgemb 35353530 @ Jomas doMaomswa Ladsdm bgmesbgdn 0s6533GmIgmos 35§-
73mM0qdab dabgogom

Basic salaries for males and females, by employee categ

ories 2010

Jomo

Female Female Male
dotngol Dgs Mammo 2 0 18 480 28 825
Top management
dommngol s Mameno 4 2 17 160 25 580 26 022
Middle level management
3MmaMsdolb gammbo 3 3 13 200 16 632 17 801
L3gzoomab@o
Senior program officer

&9d603960 3gBLmBsmo 2 i 5
Support staft : :
LIBMBAIRMIdY

SOL - mMgsbobsool dogd gobbmmsngmg-

dgmo 6gdobdngfn  4dgmgdgdo o
3MmaMsdgdo, Mmdgmms dnbobos bo-
Bmgomgdabg/mgdbg mmasbabssoab
Logdnsbmdom b9ao3-
mgbob dgx30bgds s doMmgs, 53 4dg-
©090980bs s 3MmMaMadgdol babosomo,

dmddgmgdolb by gmm s gygd@0sbmds
domo @abygdal, dodwmabomgmdabe wo

aLEMmgbdal 580393y

dmbogbama

3Omamadnmo  boddosbmdal  gxgd@ncm-
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SOCIAL IMPACTS

SO1 - Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any
programs and practices that assess and
manage the impacts of operations on
communities, including entering, oper-
ating, and exiting.

In 2010, information was collected in accord-
ance with the system of programme evaluation
indicators developed for evaluating the pro-
gramme effectiveness. Results of aggregating
and analysing the collected information will be
considered in planning the organisation’s work
for 2011.

Besides, within the Community Develop-
ment Programme, public opinion survey was
conducted in villages of the 19 target munici-
palities, aimed at measuring the level of sat-
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isfaction with the activities implemented by
the community centres (including the imple-
mented projects). (See Program Report, pp
41). Program impact evaluation was prepared
based on the obtained results. Activities to be
implemented in 2011 were prepared based on
the evaluation results.

Besides, with the assistance from external
experts, the organisation occasionally carries
out regional and national impact evaluations of
the implemented programmes. For example, in
2010, invited experts - Dusan Ondrusek (Part-
ners for Democracy Changes - Slovakia)and
Nino Javakhishvili (Faculty of Social and Politi-
cal Sciences, Tbilisi State University) conducted
the evaluation of effectiveness of activities im-
plemented by Centre for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia in the period of 2008-
2010. During the evaluation process the ex-
perts studied the organisation’s strategy paper
(CSRDG’s Tree Year 2008-2010 Programme)
and its goals and objectives. Based on the study,
in-depth interviews and two focus group dis-
cussions were held with almost all groups of
our beneficiaries, such as: experts, our partner
organisations, beneficiaries and service recipi-
ent organisations, donors, international organi-
sations, representatives of the Media and public
agencies, CSRDG’s employees, and members of
the Board. As a result, the invited experts gave
a positive evaluation to the activities carried
out by the organisation (see Program Report,

pp- 29).

SO5 - Public policy positions and participa-
tion in public policy development and
lobbying

Our activities also impact on the public
through our involvement in public policy for-
mation processes.

Under the current three year program (and
thus, in 2010 also) CSRDG focused on the fol-
lowing issues of state policies:

- Economic and social security;
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- Environment pollution and citizens’ envi-
ronmental rights;

- Consumer rights;

- Government decentralization reform.

3 articles were prepared on the issues and
published in CSRDG’s bulletin in 2010, and a
discussion seminar involving representatives
of various sectors and experts from respective
areas was held. In addition, our experts partici-
pated in 13 radio and 11 TV programs.

The following also took place in 2010:

- Work was carried out to create a state con-
cept on the promotion of corporate social
responsibility;

- CSRDG?s experts were involved in the work
of various thematic groups created in order
to develop Georgia’s strategy on regional de-
velopment, and were actively lobbying their
vision on environmental, local-government
and economic development issues;

- A part of the recommendations developed
in 2009-2010 by CSRDG's experts regarding
the local property were taken into account in
the organic law on local self-governance. Im-
portant changes were also made in the budg-
etary legislation;

— Opver the last years, one of the main focuses
on the organisations research activity was
related to promoting free trade and com-
petition in Georgia and stricktening “anti-
monopoly” regulations. A part of the recom-
mendations made on these issues over the
years were taken into account in December
2010 and a respective strategy was adopted.

- In 2010, an expert from CSRDG was actively
involved in the preparation of the State of
Environment Report of Georgia of the Min-
istry of Environment Protection and Natural
Resources of Georgia. The state of Environ-
ment Report of Georgia naspreparedi.

- In 2010, our expert was involved in the prep-
aration of the National Environmental Ac-
tion Plan. In particular, the expert prepared
two chapters of the mentioned document
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related to: waste management and air protec-

tion issues;

- CSRDG was also involved in preparing
an important document for the management of
chemicals in the country. Namely, our expert
updated the National Plan for Implementation
of the Stockholm Convention on Persistent Or-
ganic pollutants in Georgia, already approved
by the Georgian government.

- CSRDG was actively involved in moni-
toring the accomplishment of various agree-
ments between the EU and Georgia under the
European Neighbourhood Policy. In particular,
CSRDG and several other civil society organi-
sations jointly prepared a report (an alternative
report) on the completion of Georgia’s 2010 Ac-
tion Plan under the European Neighbourhood
Policy.

(More details about the mentioned activity
are available in the Program Report, pp. 70 and

pp 78)
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

PR5 - Practices related to customer satisfac-
tion, including results of surveys meas-
uring customer satisfaction

Customers of the organisation’s services are
participants of the trainings conducted by us.
in 2010, the organisations trainers held 109
trainings. After the completion of every cycle,
the participants were given special evaluation
questionnaires to determine the customer sat-
isfaction level and identify the areas of the most
interest. As a result, respective changes were
made in the 2011 training programme.

113

SUSTAINABILITY

REPORT 2010



GRI 3JbLY353N0LMBOL KXMEIISNL
GbaNX0

4393mo 3m@obammn (3bGomo sbabagl, oy

MHmdgmo 3O gModgdal  s3dsymegnmgds
dmombmggds GRI G3 sbgoc0dgdal gm@ds@ob

®00m Mo Embobasmgab.

‘ddb5330MB0L LM6D:

C C+

GRI APPLICATION LEVEL TABLE

The following table informs about the necessary
requirements in order to reach the different applica-
tion levels of the GRI G3 Guidelines.

B+

A

p
+

—— LGHSELRIAG IR0 3MAIMBIEDHIBO —

Voddmpggbogmos

Votdmpggbogos 0bgm@dsios,

0p0g9 domboghgdo, G B

0bgmGd>ios ‘ ' I_IJO C wobolsmgol domomgdaeo 2 wmbolbsmgol FIO:‘
Bydgao 396dad0b . g 39bdfgBob dobyuegoo . g stol @afgbgdamo : 9
dobggom: - A |+ obgmddsgos dgdpgao .7 7
11 = g:'lgdéu&”P B e
2.1- 210 L | g L8 ‘B
3.1-38,3.10-3.12 o | 143831 2 '
4.1-4.4,414-4.15 S 145-413,416-417 ) %
=] < <
o6 dorygobeggdsn : = {omdopgbogos obgmGdsges | 2 {atdmpgboos 0bgm@dsos | -
. | dgbgxdgbiol dopamigdals . C | dgbgxdgbiols dopymdgdnl . C

5 200 R0 2900%K0Y 0%
-2 | Ygbobgd obwogspotas ' g dgbabgd obogsdmdms ! g
' "é MO0 YE0 L | oooeggeo -
"A | gdgam@oabsongols A dgentobsngol 'A
R = L9
i N 2
' A ) e
g B &
obgatindo Fgoizegh LB sbpafodo Tgogogh , H obyaciolo Tyoogh L
Bagoobedoly gugddn@odols 22 | beglosbudol yepdigdodob LB | obobgrBlgabyro domomgdgdol =
Jobodnd 50 obeo 1sbadl L& | Bobodgd e 0bwogohm@l, L& | (G3) gggens dodomsp obogspeal S
il (004o() d L | Oodgemsysh bge G0y C D e hgj&m(‘)‘amvn sbstnols gggems 1 D
ﬁmaa;&rm.&‘éhﬁ 1)"(]9\" 3(3(7@3 [E | oo obrogoheBos CE | obrogshoab, s@lgdommdol €
@000 0600 g5HOA0S L | ooooggeee bggnesb: oo | dobgodob bamsbse gomgagmob S
noooggmo bgghoesb: ' :_5 gobordoggdio. paiiobrsggon, % fobigdoor: ) obwogodmeiol ybododolo, :_6

Hh B0, B ' 000000 0 '
hmgnogm’ﬂﬁﬂ,aamﬁmaﬂ‘jﬂﬁﬂ : % lmdﬂmﬁmbn,‘{)g‘a'(rjagmvyabnl;mnﬂ | % 3) iaamg?t}jﬁu\izggzwggsﬂhah N ' Lf‘o_,
Qo ?)0‘4’83"”3‘90(330"7“ L Q| p0m0gaofdgegds, shogyigesty | © Fodedmggdal g()“nu“r);%nh P Q

Soligbobidygdamds.

obdatigdobsb.

Report
Application Level

C

C+

vy
+

A

»

114

———Standard Disclosures ——

Report on: | Report an all criteria listed for Same as requirementfor |
11 | Level Cplus: I Level B |
21-210 | 12 | 1
3.1-38,3.10-3.12 | 39,313 | |
41-44,414-415 I 45-413,416-4.17 [ |
I'ﬂ = =
2 d - 2
=2 = =2
wvi v w
Not Required | &2 | Management Approach | 2 M_anagememﬁpproadl P
= Disclasures for each | = Disclosures for each =
| E Indicator Category | E Indicator Category | g
.2 | & 2
|5 B 3
|§_ '8 ‘g
Report on a minimum of 10 I“‘" Report on a minimum of 20 I£ Report on each core 63 and I'E
Performance Indicators, | Performance Indicators, at | Sector Supplement™ Indicator |
including at least one from | least one from each of wiﬂldmregaldtommm»l
each of: Economic, Social andl Economic, Environmental, | ity Principle by either: a) report- i
Environmental, Human rights, Labor, Society, ing on the Indicator or b)
| Product Reponsibility. | explaining the reason forits '
' b | omission. '

IR3MIRN 336300M36»I3NL 96326030 2010



“Logdotmggmmb LEMsGgaommo 33mmgzgdo- CSRDG has self-declared this report to GRI ap-
Lo s gobgnmamgdal (396@Mab* babsdwgdatyg  plication level C. The application level has also been
abgomndo 8 3dsgmagomadl GRI G3 sbgofndggd-  confirmed by GRI, after performing an application
ob gm@damolb C mbob 8mmbmgbgdl. dgbodsed-  level check on the report.
abmdob Emby 356LbsdmgMs mogem Rzgbds m-
3560bs(3008 (mgomEggmeMamgds) ©s Rzgbo
obmgboo g©s5dmbds s sswsb@mms GRI-

ol Bo8mBoa 9bgmas.
2002 + + +
dgbadsdnbow C c B B A A
Tl 350585300300 2 2 2
£ @mbnl = = 5P
r ognm- g: ‘é—‘_} 2
Al ©imafiafigds o o o
= > =
1 1 % —
Fgbadadnbmdnb -= -2 -
ombabs o e e
EJ' d3dmBagda E E e
=) dgbady © © e
o Bbanb = - 72
E‘F dagf ‘E’f ‘E’r &
5 dgdmBagas < < <
% sfAdmdamag-
Beoab dog | = 3 3
‘ (= (=] =]
2002 2 + +
In Accordance c c B B A A
oy
j=1
5 Self
- - -
g Declared @ @ o
- - — ] =
v v v
L] wy wi ) —
. = = =
Third = = 2>
" ™ m
Party £ £ £
I8l Checked ;= = =
=] = Lt I T (V)
- e = a— et E
= s s s
S
ol & & &
Checked

115

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2010



GRI 306306LOL LOJNIBITN GRI CONTENT INDEX

Ladogdgemda Rsdmmgmomons vbaaM0edagdals The following Index contains a listing of each
930@> b@obrem@gero gmB3mbgb@o ©o bagdo-  GRI disclosure and performance indicator in-
2bmoob 98gd&gOmdel 0brogod®m®o, O3 (jyded in the report. It also shows where the
2900 3930@> Bobodgdatig 9bg060ddn; ndgy information about each component and perfor-

3 3 Lo dgodmagds 8mad 6-
om%)g) JOIE05, AR FYadge amadena o mance indicator could be found in the report.
gm®Is(300 Mmommgmm Jomgsbdby.

GRI gm&dsgob bgsbpsmgmmn 3md3mby6egda oo 06- 36356@0dab 339M@0 36 Jgbs-

Qndo@mﬁaan 6530bo 3&6306@33&

Standard Disclosures and performance Indicators Relevant pages of
i report or explanation

1.1 yz9madg domammo Mobgolb aswsbygg@nmgdol 0dmgdo
3060l gobzbawgds 4

Statement from the CEO

2.1 mFg560bs300b Lobgmao D
Name of the organisation

2.2 @8mo36mgbo bogagmm 856 35, 3Mmmed (300 @s/56 8m3Laob-
MEO9dS 12-14
Primary brands, products, and/or services

2.3 mMgsbabaoolb  Lam3gfoiom  (Bbiiambamamon)
LEMYIGYMo
Operational structure of the organisation, including 12
main divisions, operating companies, subsidiaries, and
joint ventures

2.4 mm3560bs300b bamsm magzabolb dpgdsmgmds
Location of organisation’s headquarters

2.5 5896 J39456530 bod805bmdL MMasbn D300
Number of countries where the organisation operates, 12
and names of countries with major operations

12

2.6 L33l BMEIS S oFMoammo bGsdnbo

Nature of ownership and legal form 12
2.7 &g d5bMgdL gdbobm@gds mEgabadszns 12-14
Markets served
2.8 9bgsmM0ddggdgmo mMasbobs300b bowowy 15-17

Scale of the reporting organisation

116

IR3MIRN 336300M36»I3NL 96326030 2010



2.9

Losbgomadm  3gfommdn  gobbmMzogmgdamo  3603-

3b69mmgaba (33momgdgdo Dmadals, bLGENJGNEL 56 bo-
3006980L mgombababom

Significant changes during the reporting period regard-
ing size, structure, or ownership

12010 Bgebs

mg0badoz0sl
o6 gobyyzos Mondg bgHom-

bgmo  (33momgdgda bmdal,
LEOYIEYMab 56 Logymmgdal

B3Il ngombsdHobom

No significant changes egard-
ing size, structure or ownership
took place during the reporting

period 2010
2.10 bosbgsmndm 3gMommdn domgdmmo Komomgdo Losbasmndm  3gMomedn oM
Awards received in the reporting period 80a30000 oMo

No awards have been received
during the reporting period

3.1 bosbgamodm 3gMommo 2010 Bemob 1 0063600056 31 ©g-
Reporting period 3993658009
January 1-December 31, 2010
3.2 Babos sbgofndals 3mdbowgdal mamaca 2009 Bemol BegGowa gobgo-
Date of most recent previous report @680l 8bgs60da
Sustainability Report 2009
3.3 sbgomndggdol 3gMomummmds ymgzgmBmonmo
Reporting cycle Annual
3.4 Ld3mb@og@™ 3ot Jg300b3z9da0l aohgbal dgdmbgggeda
; . ; 26
Contact point for questions regarding the report
3.5 56356030b dabssmbob gsbbsdmgMmob 3Gm3gbo
. 25-26
Process for defining report content
3.6 9bgom0dal gomamgda 24
Boundary of the report :
3.7 56356030l @sgsmgal bgggmb 96 gemamgdal soagbo-
Lob s@bgdmmo dgdbrmnwggdo 24

Specific limitations on the scope or boundary of the report

3.8 gfomdmogo  bobam3dmgdolb, Gomosmgdolb, sMgbwom i o6 g3543L gMmmdmoga Labom-
353999mo  Lobs®mImgdal/wobsmasmgdol,  d3g3mb- i 8mgdn, Gomosmgdo ©s o. 3.
GMod@mMgddg @gmganMgdymo Bbg309d0b dgbsbgd i We do not have joint ventures,
0bgoM0dggdob baggydggemo subsidiaries etc.

Basis for reporting on joint ventures, subsidiaries, leased
facilities, outsourced operations, and other entities
3.10 Babs begdolb s6a3560dgddn bomdmmagbomn 0bgm®- i o6 dgazogmos  Bomdmoag-

do300b gmENmomgdol dg33molb dggagdo, obgszg
5333500 MgxrmmInmomgdob dodgdgda

Explanation of the effect of any re-statements of informa-
tion provided in earlier reports

bomo 0bgxgm®mdsznol gm@Iy-
m0oMgds asbyymo Begdals 86s-
2603906056 dgocgdom
No re-statements of the infor-
mation have been made
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3.11 860d369mmgsba (33mamygdgdo Babs Bemgdmsb 83@6-§

9000 56356030l ogsfzgal Lggml, gsfMamgdal o6

dmbo(3gdms  ©osbgamndgdal dgommeydals m3oq>bo%—:

oboo

Significant changes from previous reporting periods in
the scope, boundary, or measurement methods applied :

in the report

o gobbmM30gmgdymes 3603-
36gmm3obo 33@oegogdo
asbggemo Brgdol ob6gsc0dgdom-
iob  Jgoomgdom  ogaMzal
LgBgOmb,  Bomamgdolb b
3mbo390ms  o3bg9Mndgdals
3gom@gdal mgembsdHaboo

No significant changes from
i previous reporting periods in
i the scope, boundary, or meas-
furement methods have been

3.12 GRI 30bss&bob badogdgemo

Table identifying the location of the Standard Disclosure

in the report

i made

116

4.1 oma560Ds300b 3doMmnggmmdals b G J@nce

Governance structure of the organisaation

i 20-22

£ (0b. 5bggg 2009 Bevol 56356030
see also Sustainability Report
: 2009 www. CSRDG.ge)

4.2 domomomgm, dsmmgbo  33sMomgzgmmdomo  mMasbmb
mog3dgomIomg 0dogomymom bmd o6 oMol omdob-

Haegdgmo 3969x g0

Indicate whether the Chair of the highest governance :

body is also an executive officer

a0dggmdals mogdgomdsaty

0803@6(")‘3@0@ Oﬁﬂb (")66060—

i Boznab 8mdsbmmagdgmo ©o-
: F)ad@)mﬁm

Executive director is also the
chairperson of the Board

4.3 ¢m8smmgbo 83sMmmggmn mMasbmb sdmzomgdgmo s/
96 0M5-5mBsbmmmgdgmo 69361980l Mommgbmds
State the number of members of the highest governance

body who are independent and/or non-executive mem-

bers
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3533 9mds dgoagds 5 bgzmabe-
356, omash 3 oMol mMasbo-
: Bo(300b0856 oIM 30@gdgmo
B30, bemm meo — mEasbo-
i Do(300L 00653dHMIgmo (M-
i 3060bo(300L 50BsbEMmgdgma
©oMgd@men s babdmgsopmg-
36030 mMasbnbds30980L as6-
300069800 3maMmadol 3mme-
©0658mM0)

The Board is a highest govern-
‘ance body. It consists of five
members, three of whom are in-
i dependent and non-executive.
%The other two members serve
i CSRDG in an executive capac-
Lity, namely: executive director
and program coordinator.




4.4 8940b60D3gd0, GmIgmos Jgdzggmdom dg(30mbgFgdlL ©s
056533(mM3mgdL  dgudmose  Mg3mdgboszngdo  ©o
domomgdgdo  Bosbmmb  mMasbodaznal  @domemgl
ddstmggmmdom mMasbmb
Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to provide
recommendations or direction to the highest governance

body

20
(0b. 5bgzg 2009 Bl 56356030
see also Sustainability Report
2009 www. CSRDG.ge)

414 ©50b6@gMgbgdmem bsmgms xanugdo, Mmdmgda Rom-
om0 0943696 mMasbobs00b bLogdnsbmdal 3Gm39Ldn
List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organiza-
tion

22-23
(0b. 5bg39 2009 Bl 56a560d0
see also Sustainability Report
2009 www. CSRDG.ge)

4.15 Gob bogmdzgmbg 30bbadmaMgm s dgemBogom, MmBg-
™o 30b@gMabadaymon 8bamggdo Mbos RsGormmaysbgb
Log8056mdab 3Gm(39Ldn
Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with

whom to engage

22
(0b. 5bg39 2009 Brob 56a560d0
see also Sustainability Report
2009 www. CSRDG.ge)

EC 1 — 9943b0mo ©s 3o6s60emgdmmo g3mbm8oznmo momg-
dggdo
Direct economic value generated and distributed

84
(0b. sbggg a3.15-16; sbsGNN 6)
(see also: pg. 15-16; Annex 6)

EC 8 — 3m3gég0qgmo, bs@om o6 Lodmasmmgdabsmgal
Laboggom Logdnsbmdolb gm@Iam nbgEabig Mg nmsda
a56bmM(309mgdmmo 0bzgbEongdo s babmgsomgdo-
Loogal  Lobomggdmm  3mdbabymgdal  gobgzomomgds,
sbggg 03 gbom Imbrgbamo Dgaszmgbs
Development and impact of infrastructure investments
and services provided primarily for public benefit through
commercial, inkind, or pro bono engagement

85-86

EC 9 — 360d369mmgsbo nfndo g3mbmdn gmo Dgdmddgogdo-

Lo s 3abn 3sbdGodal sbsmaba @s smbgMos
Understanding and describing significant indirect eco-
nomic impacts, including the extent of impacts

87-92

EN1 — 3mbdsmgdamo bgomgnmon/dsbsms Bmbals ob 80’)8‘3-
mdol domomgdom

Materials used by weight or volume

93
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EN3 — g6g6an0b 3oM@sdnfn 8mbdsmgds, mosmadymo 3a-
3gmon 9bgmammgbymbgdol (569Mg00b 3ofMgzgmown
Bysmmgdal) dobgogom
Direct energy consumption by primary energy source

EN4 — 9696300l sGs300s3060 3mb3sfmagds, @omadsmo Jo-
M3gmaEo 9bgcammgbymbgdal dabgogom i 93-95
Indirect energy consumption by primary source

93-95

EN8 — Bymob 8ovm0s60 53mmgds, @smodgmo Bymoal Bys@- i
mgdab dobgogom H 926
Total water withdrawal by source

EN16 — Lomdgfob s00Mgdals 3oMmsdomn @ sModnfMosdota
3083Md393900L dnmasbo mEgbmds, dsbol domomgdom

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by 96-98
weight

EN22 —656B96980l 8ormasbo 3sbs, @smodmmao 6oRgbgdals i
030bs s 359136939myma0lb gomegdol dobgogom i 98-99

Total weight of waste by type and disposal method

LAl — oMasbodsoolb dmmosbo dGmBomn  GMgbambg-
b0, smodgmo  sbsegddgdalb  B03gdal, dMmBomo
bgm3g360mmqdob §03980bs s 3m335600L Logdnsbmdob
M9a0mbgdol dobgogom
Total workforce by employment type, employment con-
tract, and region

100

LA2 — 0065336m3gmms @gbs@mdol s8bmmu@ammo  ©o

36m (3968 mo 85R396989m0, omadymo bdgbab, sbe-
3M0M030 ®anxgdabs ©s Mga0mbgdab dobgoznm 101

Total number and rate of employee turnover by age group,
gender, and region

LA3 — LAy 380G by ImIndogg mobsddmmadmgdabscmgals
©369Lgomn BabsbLyMo obTatgds s Jgmegsmgda,
OHmdmgdoz o6  3OH(39MEIGS ©HMgdom o6 bobggze !
3@o@dg ImINdogg  09653dOMImgddy, sMadymo |
Logdd0sbmdal daMomswa ndgdal dobgogom 101-102
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not pro-
vided to temporary or part-time employees, by major op-
erations

LA10 — Bgemobomdo Lodmamme Medmgbo bosmo abamggds
9600 086533Mm3mob LBs3mydsDy/ B 9b0bagddy, msb-
533mmgmos 308 93mM0gd0b Bobgmzom 102-103
Average hours of training per year per employee by em-
ployee category
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LAI2 _ 08 o565336m3mgdal 3Gm396@mmo Boeo, Gm3-

mgdoz Mganmasmmsm 0rgdgb dgxabgdsl bsgymsmo
dndomdal gx39d@nmmdabs ©s 3Mmggbogmo gobgo-
»36Mgdob dgbobgd

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance

and career development reviews ~ gv.???

103-104

LA13 — 33sMmmggmmdomn mMasbmgdal dgdsaqgbemmdo- i
Lo ©o bbgowobbgs 3o@gamengdolb 0s6533Gm3gmons i
©s®0dgs  a9bgMymo, sbogmdMago, PdEoMgbmdals
RangBgd0bodo 3039036980L s IMegomBgMIM3bgdals
Lbgo 85R39690mgdals dobgogz0m
Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of em-
ployees per category according to gender, age group, mi-
nority group membership, and other indicators of diversity.

104-108

LAl4 — 358535300 ©d Jomoms doMomsmo (badsdm) bgem-
3obgdob Jgxemmgds, 0sbsddMmmIgmms 398 gamMogdob
dobgogom
Ratio of basic salary of men to women by employee category

SO1 — mMgobobsznalb Bogm gobbmmzogmgdmmo bgdo-
L3ngFo §8ggdgdo s 3MmaMmadgdn, Mm3gmams Jodsbas
Lodmgemgdadg/mgddy MMasbabsznalb Logdnsbmdoom
dmbogbomo bgaszmgbol dggsbgds s dsmmgs, 3 Jdg-
©096960bs @ 3Mmamadgdal bobosmo, 3mddgmgdalb beyzg-
MM ©5 9539d8096mds Bomo ©sbygdab, 8ndwmabsmgmdabs S
5 Esbmnmgdab 9@ o393y
Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any programs and practic-
es that assess and manage the impacts of operations on com- :
munities, including entering, operating, and exiting.

108-109

109-110

SO5 — mMgsbnbsznob 3mbazos LobgmdBogm dmemndn ol
Logombgddyg, safgomgg dmbsbamgmds  Labgmdbogm
3mmo@ngol dg39dsggdabs @s mmdamgdal 3Gim(39Lda 110-112
Public policy positions and participation in public policy
development and lobbying

PR5 — dmdbdomgdmagdol Logommgdoms ©s3doymaamagdo-

Loggh dodomomema baddnsbmdgda, abgmo 3gmgzgdal 113
3d909a9%0b Romgmom, Gmdmgdo(s 53mgbl dmabodomyg- | (strobMummoc/partially
dgmms 3dsymazomgdals embgl reported)

Practices related to customer satisfaction, including re-
sults of surveys measuring customer satisfaction
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3M3OTIAN 33019663 dO

Rggb0 mEgabobazos 8oL Mgl ,ammdarmm®n dgmabbdgdob® abo3098 035 ©s Lo gPme®
Logd0s56mdadn Bgmaagb dob 10 doMomsw 36ab303b. B0bsdmgdomg sbasmndn samgmgyg 38oym-
gomgdb aogmmb ,ammdsmao dgmabbdgdob® bgmdmdbgmo m@masbabszngdal Bemogmmo o6-
3060da 930l (COP) 3mmbmgbgdl. J3gdmm dm@sboe 3bGomdo Bamdmmaqbormns GRI sbgotind-
39%0b gm@3sG0b 0bow oG mEms gbadsdobmds ,ammdsmuma dgmsbbdgdal” 3606(30353mab.

3T M3 Vm0 3309663330L 3RNEBN3I3N

30bdadaNbL GRI N68NJYENAISN

360nb3ndn 1 — 3aB6gbn Abacb «bws NdgMeogb s . EC5,LA4, LA6-9; LA13 - 14,
358030 LzgdgL baghmsdmmabm pmbydy smasfgdam : HR1-9, SO5, PR1-2,PR 8
50330560l gmgdgdb. :

36063030 2 — 3ndbgba 36 96> 3obrgb 3330360l . HR1 -9, 505
Rmgd03 E3M3930b M363dmbabBaemy. :

360b(3n3n 3 — 3nbbgbds dban 9brs psgFammb LA4 - 5, HR1 - 3, HRS, SO5
sbm(3n3(309330 339M0036930b m3gabaygmgdsb s :
3mmad@onio dGmdoan dgmabbdgdob gamgdab spaamgdab.

36063030 4 — 3nbbgLds byma «bws dgubymb yzgms gm@3ab ° HR1 -3, HR7, SO5
adymgdamn s daeaws@sbgdnmn dBmdnb sdmgbzMab.

3Mmdnmn bagdnsbmds

36063030 5 — 3ab6gLds byema «9bws dgnBymb 3333305 " HR1 -3, HR6, SO5
36m3nb HgsmaM a397398sb. .

36063030 6 — 3nbbgbds bgemo 9B Jgnbymb abagdgdabs s EC7, LA2, LA13-14, HR1 - 4,
36mgqbomma bagdnsbmdnb bggMmda pabzMndabsgnal . S05

smdmgbghsb. :

36aB(3030 7 — 30H63b3> 3bsn 9bs madafimb  EC2, EN18, EN26, EN30, SO5
33693mbes33000 baghnbggdab dndsma 36g396(309m .

dnpam3dsh. :

36063030 8 — 30bbgbds b 3sbabmMzngmmb EN1- 30, SO5, PR3 -4
abo(305803930, Gams bgmoa dg9bymb 35Mg3mb s(330b 8ndsma -

dg@ 3sbgbobdzgdemmash. .

36063030 9 — 3abbgLds byema «bws dgunbymb 35Mgdmb " EN2, EN5-7,EN 10, EN 18,
©33%mz0 Bgdbmmmangdab 33630m3@935b> o 358mygbqdsb. . EN 26 -27, EN30, SO5

3nﬁ-33(!nn|; 36nb3n3n 10 — 3nB63b3s bymn «bps dgubymb 3mAng(3nab S02-6
Bnbs3mdga 6930b3ng6n 353mgmgbab smdmgbszMab, 3sdmdamgabs s
dFdmems d3dFA233gmdab Rsmgmoo.

gbGomo gundbgds GRI s UNGC gmomdmog gsdm3g3sb ,qMmog@o3ogdamals ©sdysmg-
ds: 9bogM0daqdolb gmmdsmamn aboz08030L babgmddmazebgmm domomgdgdo ©s gog@mb
»3EMdSmM@0 Jgmabbdgdab® sbas®ndn ombgmmo dgogagdolb dgbsbgd®, GmImab JoGormmao
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GLOBAL COMPACT

CSRDG has committed itself to the ten guiding principles of the Global Compact initiative.
This report also meets the basic compliance as a “Communication on Progress” for the UN Global
Compact (UNGC). The following table shows which GRI G3 performance indicators relate to
each of the ten Global Compact principles.

Issue Areas GC Principles Relevant GRI Indicators

o : : . EC5, LA4, LA6 - 9; LA13 - 14,
Principle 1- Businesses should support and respect the protection ° HR1 -9, SO5, PR1 - 2, PR 8

of internationally proclaimed human rights.

Principle 2- Businesses should make sure that they are " HR1 -9, 805
not complicit in human rights abuses. .

Labor Principle 3 - Businesses should uphold the freedom of association - LA4 -5, HR1 - 3, HR5, SO5
and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining. :

Principle 4 - Businesses should uphold the elimination " HR1-3, HR7, SO§
of all forms of forced and compulsory labor. .

Principle 5 — Businesses should uphold the effective abolitionof ~ * HR1 -3, HR6, SO5

child labor.
Principle 6 - Businesses should uphold the elimination - EC7,LA2, LA13 - 14, HR1 - 4,
of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation. "S05

Principle 7 - Businesses should support a precautionary : EC2, EN18, EN26, EN30, SO5
approach to environmental challenges. :

Principle 8 - Businesses should undertake initiatives _EN1- 30, S05,PR3 -4
to promote greater environmental responsibility. :

Principle 9 - Businesses should encourage the development " EN2, EN5-7, EN 10, EN 18,
and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies. . EN 26 - 27, EN30, SO5

Principle 10 - Businesses should work against corruption S02-6
SOt COnUptian in all its forms, including extortion and bribery :

The table is based on one published by the GRI and UNGC in handbook
“Making the Connection: The GRI Guidelines and the UNGC Communication on Progress”,
available at: www.globalreporting.org/CurrentPriorities/ UNGC/

123

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2010



124

RI6I40IN

2010 ggnnb Jﬁm‘y"/@‘yan

danmmdfmagn bymabygmgdab  go-
dmog@gds — 3bs ©3(396@Msmads3n0-
Lo396 (2010 -20116.6.)

/936m 35330600b Bomdmomagbemmds
Logdotmggmmdn/

Logsomggmmb bLodmasmmgdMmngn me-
3560%b5(30930b RoMmgs g36m3ab Lo3-
7bmdmm 3mmagogzob (ENP) as6bme-
309mgdab 3Gm39b3n (2010 6.)

/o36meg3 ( APRODEV)/

3mmogoggco 336G80g80b bmgasmy@-
93mbm3dngz Mo 3GmaMs3dgdal S6semo-
b0 > Lddsgam Bagbob IMIdswgds
(2009 -2010 6.6.)

/o‘gﬁngg({mb 3636@0[) CBMBQO/

LagsGmggemmb 3ubozaldsma@g@god-

ob 3d0x9§9%0 33bEaAYm FHomdo
(2009 - 2010 6.5.)

/mdbged-bmgndo/

LsdmasEMgdMaga m63560d5(30930
Lads@mggmmdn — 35630056 580b ©Nbs-
3035 3 §9b096(30980 (2009 -2010 6.6.)

/Bmbmn ,05 bLadmasmgds — LadoMmag-
mm®; 93mmgboal gobg00s6gdab basggb@m/

L3mmgdalb BnbsbbyMa IsGHmgzalb as630-
056785 bogsGomggmmdn (2009 - 2010 6.6.)
/3053988)0b 0s bodmasmgdals nbLEG -
&ado/

bo%mabgmaaﬁn:jn mﬁaosn%oenaanb
dgbosdmgdmmdoms 3363003693y (20106.)
/@mboo "mos Labmgsmgds-bagetomgg-
we?/

bogsnggmmda bmgosmyca IgBsm3g-
mdob 3563056530l bgmdgbymds
(2009-20106.6.)

/93mgbool a0bg0mamgdol bosggb@m/

326@®alb  Ls3dBmasbn
(2008-2010 66.)

/ 0gdbge8-bmgado; g3magbool gobgomog-
dob booggb@m/

36maMmads

6ga0mbayem  Jgboadmgdmmdsms  go-
dmagMgdab abagns@ngs (2007-2010 6.6.)
/936m30b badgbmdemm 3mEo@ozolb abo-
(3058035; “MWH” 3006Lbm6 30980/
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ANNEX

Projects implemented in 2010

Strengthening Local Authorities - The Way
Towards Decentralization (2010 - 2011)
/Delegation of the European Union to Geor-
gia/

Involvement of Georgian CSOs in Process
of ENP Monitoring (2010)
/ APRODEV/

Socio-political analysis of the political
parties’ programs and preparation of the
guidebook (2009 - 2010)

/ Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)/

Gender Sensitive Municipal Budgets in
Georgia (2009 - 2010)
/Oxfam Novib/

Civil Society Organizations in Georgia -
Dynamics and Trends (2009-2010)

/Open Society — Georgia Foundation; Church
Development Service (EED)/

Advancing School Financial Management in
Georgia (2009-2010)
/Foundation Open Society Institute/

Capacity Development for Civil Society
Organizations (2010)
/Open Society Foundation — Georgia/

Promotion of Social Entrepreneurship in
Georgia (2009-2010)
/Church Development Service ( EED)/

Three years program of the Center
(2008 — 2010)
/ Oxfam Novib; Church Development Service
(EED)/
Regional Capacity Building Initiative
(2007-2010)
/European Neighborhood policy initiative;
MWH Consortium/



Q3696010

@m&nﬁg&n feg) 3.)6@ 6-nmﬁ‘75r)

MqLgsd-bmzgndo;

93 9boal 306300565800 Losggb&m;
cgﬁn(gﬁnb 3636@)0[) %msggn;

936m 3033060l BomImIoggbemmdo
Logdotmggmmado;

9360300 LedgbMdmm 3memndn 3ol
0bo(3008039;

“MWH?” 3mbbme(509930;

bogd3mmmBasgb 3bazn3amo@g@n
/3mmmbgomo;

s3Mmeg3 (APRODEV);

Bmbo ,mo0s Labmgsmgds — badomgg-
mm*;

abbGoGmE 0 ,@0s Lobdmasmgds®;
30613063 930b 1Bng96ML0G9&0;

3OM0@ 3Mamn(309;

bogommnggmmb gogmmb sbmzns(z0s;
33momadobs s 3Mbgemng@olb domomzgal
(39680 ,3560&BomMgda — Ladomggmm®;
Lodmdomadm babmasmmgdal 0bb@odm@o;
3933°boab 0bbBoG NG d3d300mdal,
©93dm3ma@nabo s gobgomamgdobomgals;
Logommnggmmb Lodmgdomodm gobzomatg-
dab sbm(z09(300 (4. mogmabo);
Logoomggmmb  admyMagoggmo  asbgo-
®56580b 3933060 (4. mDyFaqon);
bagooggmmb bgGodgaogmo 3333l
o 35b30m0M98al (396@Mab mgmosgals do-
9O (J.0gresgo);

obomasbMos g3mbmdab@ms sbmzns(zns;
3MBLYmEo(300bs s GFMYbabgol (306 0;
abm(zna(zns *gm 3obs”;

359Mmb 30630006530l 3MmaMads;
Lobombm  «bngaMboGg@ms  a9M3sbyma
sbmzoszoolb  bodoMmggmmb  gomoasmao,
»doemnbol 36mggE o dayfmm;
3M6xmod@gdobs s  Bmmoademszgdomo
LagMmsdmmobm (3968 60;

6@(\060@‘360 060600@030 q;dbndno@ﬁnoao;
39335b00b  sFsbadmagMmmdm  mEgsbabs-
(300005 JLgemo;

500896500l Loddm;

9365b00b 0965336MImmdal gmbeon;
"a59fmmb  gmmdsmafo  dgmobbdgds”
Logdomggmmao.

ANNEX

DONORS AND PARTNERS

OXFAM - NOVIB;

Church Development Service - EED;
Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES);

Delegation of the European Union to Georgia;
European Neighborhood policy initiative;
MWH Consortium;

Niepolomitse Municipality (Poland);
APRODEV;

Open Society — Georgia Foundation;

Open Society Institute;

Birmingham University;

Karat Coalition;

United Nations Organization of Georgia;
Center for Change and Conflict Management
“Partners-Georgia”;

Civil Society Institute;

Caucasian Institute for Peace, Democracy
and Development;

Civil Development Association of Georgia
(Lagodekhi);

Union for Democratic Development of
Georgia (Ozurgeti);

Telavi bureau nof the Centre for Strategic Re-
searcha and Development of Georgia (Telavi);
Young Economists Association of Georgia;
Center for Training and Consultancy;
Association “ELKANA”;

United Nations Development Program
(UNDP);

DVYV International;

International Centre for Conflict and Nego-
tiation;

Global Initiative in Psychiatry;

Caucasus Environmental NGO Network
(CENN);

British Council;

Eurasia Partnership Foundation (EPF);

UN Global Compact Georgia.
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Q3696010

398980

o930l d9boz035cm08960

¢ LodmasmgdMogn mE3560bs(300
»b3093m 3533060 gymanms”
bmggeo 3gmagms, dmbsbemgmds -
500 3m3cma
»3630L5335G0bo  Bysemo  Lmggmdn®
bemgggmdo smeas 15 beal Bob gofgfgdama
©>  3bymdMnsb godmbyma  dodgmmama.
bemgggmads ©83s8gd00 dongm Lasmda 3.5 Gmbs
Lab3gma Bysmo. goM@s 530bs 5dgbws badoma-
am ©36036ymgdol  8-10 §mbs B ggomdals
>9P0. 3Omgd@olb dgrgagdom Lafggdemmdl
dogeo bngemol dmbsbegmds.
»30093 gfma bsdogo B5MA35§9053wg"
- beoggmdo gubgombaomgdl badzgMgamm,
boog ©obogdgdamoas 7-8 Jomds@mba. Lbod-
39Mzommb  gbogofmgdmes  ©ds@gdomn
segdgommdol  dgdgbs, oy dmbgmboos
50b0dbymo 3Gmgd@nl goMamgddn. Jgwg-
ao badgzgMgomm sbomdmgdl wmcm Jg@on
omEgbmdol 3Gmwa 3000, 3603369mmzgsbas,
MHmd bogmolb Gmbobmagmdal gdbabyyMgdosb
Jgmogomnsb xsbgdda, bmmm bLmnsmaMso
RIYE3Im MxbIEL gPoLme.
195333980b m(369335" - Jg3mommds Lodagd-
30 8ol GafnGmos ©s dmgbym
353339800 656s@Mn o@Mog(30mby-
do.
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ANNEX

Micro-projects implemented in 2010

Telavi Municipality

¢ Civil Society Organisation Commu-
nity Centre “Gulgula”
Village Gulgula, population - 500
households

“Insufficient water in the village” - As a re-
sult of the project, a water well that had stopped
operation 15 years ago and was out of order
since then has been restored. The village got ad-
ditional 3.5 tons of potable water an hour. Be-
sides, a 8-10 ton capacity reserve tank was built.
The project beneficiary is the whole population
of the village.

”One more step to success” - a sewing work-
shop with 7-8 female employees operates in
the village. The atelier needed to purchase ad-
ditional equipment that became possible under
the mentioned project. As a result, the workshop
can manufacture higher volume of products. It
is important that village residents enjoy certain
discounts, and socially unprotected families get
the service for free.

»Children’s dream” — As a result of the pro-
ject, the kindergarten territory was fenced in
and attractions were installed.

" .
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»A long waited bus stop”- two
bus stops were repaired in the village,
and benches were built and painted.
The whole village benefits from the project.
»Sewing is more than just a needlework for
us” — during the project, 30 females (20 out of
them were from socially unprotected families)
learned sewing and working on the Internet.
»The history of the village will not get lost”
- A book was published about the history of the
village. The authors of the book were late Zaal
Gigitelashvili, a resident of the village, and Pro-
fessor of Historical Sciences Bidzina Nanobash-
vili.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Aisi”
Village Fshaveli, population 700 house-
holds

“Skilful hands” - A sewing atelier was cre-
ated and equipped with necessary machinery.
Besides, 26 female residents of Fshaveli (includ-
ing 6 socially unprotected persons) underwent
sewing courses.

The atelier is very important for the village
residents, as it will enable them to purchase
clothing at discounted prices.

“Hey, boy, pass on” - A village stadium was
built for the residents and a mini-football cham-
pionship was held between the teams of com-
munity youth centres (Fshaveli, Laliskuri, Gul-
gula and Kisiskhevi).

“We are learning” - A cycle of thematic semi-
nars in gynaecology, emergency primary health
assistance and paediatric issues was held.
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¢ Community Youth Centre “Kiskisa”
VIllage Kisiskhevi, population 738
households

»Ertoba (Unity)” - Under the project, a mi-
ni-football competition between six community
youth centres was held on the mini stadium in the
centre of Kisikhevi. A video-library of sports re-
lated video disks was created.

“Adopted children” - The following activities
were carried out: four psychological counselling
courses held for adopted children and adopting
parents under the respective program (attended
also by other children residing in the village); an
excursion in the wine producing factory; a free
drawing day; competition ‘joyful starts’ and a day
of the art of reading. The project helped integrate
the adopted children into the village community.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Flagmani”
Village Laliskuti, population 250 house-
holds
“For the future” - Children’s attractions were
installed in the former village club building.

Kvareli Municipality

¢ Community Youth Centre “Kadori”
Village Sabue, population 900 house-
holds

»A friendly road” - As a result of the project,
a connecting road between villages Sabue and Al-
mata was gravelled.

”Water“ - Under the project, water supply was
installed for seven socially unprotected house-
holds that previously had to haul potable and
technical water from 300-400 meters away. Inac-
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cessibility of water supply also was a
big problem for the village ambulato-
ry, pharmacy, the office of the village
representative, and the community
centre. At present, all the above mentioned fa-
cilities and the population of the adjacent neigh-
bourhood are provided with water.

»Fencing the village square” - Cattle was able
to get into the square adjacent to the community
centre, causing anti sanitary and damaging the
plants. The territory was fenced in with cement
blocks and metal wire.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Gavazi 2”
Village Gavazi, population 1550 house-
holds
“Beautiful village” - The village square has
been fenced in, benches and garbage bins in-
stalled, grass lawn planted and walkways made.
“Potable water + sewage channel” - A 100 meter
long water pipe has been cleaned and treated with
chlorine, a 1 cubic meter capacity new water res-
ervoir has been built.

Lagodekhi Municipality

¢ Civil Society Organisation, Commu-
nity Youth Centre “Leli I”
Leliani community, population 1116
households Villages in the commu-
nity: Leliani, Beburiani, Balta, Kalkva
and Mirskiseuli
»Women’s education for the prevention of os-
teoporosis disease” - A lecture-seminar was held
under the project, attended by up to 300 women.
Besides, a masseur has been re-trained. In the fu-
ture, the masseur will provide respective services
to the women with respective needs.
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,»Take care or they will come for us” - Under the
project, the village cemetery fence was improved
and repaired in Leliani’s Rusistkali neighbour-
hood.

»Music and harmony” - Repair work was car-
ried out in Leliani music school. Two classrooms,
the concert hall and the lobby were refurbished.

»Let us plant trees for our future” - With-
in the project, 134 cypress tree saplings were
planted in Leliani local kindergarten and village
streets.

»Well furbished kindergarten for a better fu-
ture” - Under the project, cosmetic refurbishing
and roof repair was done in Leliani’s N2 kinder-
garten. The following items were purchased for
the kindergarten: sinks, night pots, kitchen bowls,
tables and other items.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Kedeli”
Afeni community, population 2664
households Villages of the community:
Afeni, Gvimriani, Fodaani, Bankistsili,
Gaghdadi, Zemo Nashovari, Kvemo
Nashovari, Chabukiani and Onanauri

»Children’s world” — Within the project frame-
works, a kindergarten in Afeni was refurbished
and children’s attractions in the kindergarten
were repaired.

»Healthy woman - healthy future” - A fitness
club for women was created on the basis of the
youth centre. Education seminars were held on
rheumatoid arthritis and osteoporosis, and the-
matic information leaflets were distributed. The
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seminars were held in those municipalities of Tel-
avi and Lagodekhi that also have other operating
youth centres. Various age group females use the
fitness centre.

¢ Community youth centre “Ertoba”
Kartubani community, population 2249
households Villages of the community:
Kartubani, Bolokiani, Natsiskvilari and
Naindrovali

»Agriculture development” - Within the pro-
ject, the irrigation water channel and the reservoir
tank were repaired, and 350 meter long drainage
channel was built.

,»»The most intellectual” - An intellectual com-
petition was held among students from six schools
of Kartubani. The winning teams were given spe-
cial awards and an encyclopaedia, and were taken
to an excursion.

»»The well of the century” _ 0.15 ha of land in
one of the village neighbourhoods was being cov-
ered with swamp. As a result of the project, the
land was drained and a square was built in the
same palce. Benches and garbage bins were put
and the bed of a century old well running on the
mentioned territory was repaired.

»As it turns out, garbage needs a bin“ _ 20 gar-
bage bins were put in the central areas of the vil-
lage Kartubani where most of the crowd comes
together. In addition, a cleaning day was organ-
ised.
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¢ Community youth centre “Hereti” Vil-
lage Heretiskari, population 130 house-
holds

»Canal” - 300 meter long canal along the forest
was cleaned, a bridge was built for cattle to cross
the canal, holes along the side were filled with
gravel, a connecting pipe that was too narrow and
had a hard time letting the water through to the
big channel was replaced.

»Our yard” - Old attractions in the kinder-
garten yard were repaired and new ones were
installed. Besides, the territory leading to the
kindergarten was gravelled and an 80 meter long
fence was built.

”Let us raise our intellect” - An intellectual
competition was held within the project frame-
works. The winning team was taken to an excur-
sion to see historical sights of Telavi.

Sighnaghi municipality

¢ Community youth centre “Cultural-
Educational Centre” Village Nukriani,
1300 households

“Well working women” - 37 women (in-

underwent culinary courses.

cluding 26 socially unprotected persons) B e
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“Healthy lifestyle and preventa-
tive health education” - Seminars on
personal hygiene, peer relations and
contraception issues were held for students of up-
per classes in the public school N1 of Nukriani.

”A square for the village” - As a result of the
project, children’s attractions, like a sea-saw and
sled, were installed in a 150 square meter small
park in the centre of the village.

“Youth Centre for Workshop Development”
- Raw materials and two sewing machines were
purchased for the pressed wool manufacturing
shop. A group of young girls learned sewing,
making pressed wool (teka) and quilts.

Ozurgeti municipality

¢ Community Youth Centre “Juma” Ju-
mati community, population - 450
households Villages of the community:
Jumati, Ianeti, Bogheli and Dzirjumati

»Tanadgoma” - 200 hectares of agricultural
land used by 90% of the socially unprotected
households of the village were fenced.

”Everyone wants love” - A sewing atelier, and
sewing and knitting courses were opened on the
basis of the community centre. Members of so-
cially unprotected households will be able to un-
dergo the courses free of charge, while the rest of
the village residents will enjoy considerable dis-
counts.

»Road to the temple® - As a result of the pro-
ject, one kilometre section of the village central
road was rehabilitated.

“The village library” - A library existing in
the village public school was rehabilitated. For
this purpose, the 55 square meter area room was
refurbished, electric wiring replaced, and three
desks and 10 chairs were purchased.
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35333 Bomal, 583 gmo@mGaol 89dszg3abo 4 Community Youth Centre “Gvabarati”
5 8mbobmgmdabogalb dmgbym badnMggamgdm. Askana community, population 498
»063MEAE0Mgdmo s %363MMgma Joemg- households Villages of the community:
S0 - 58 3mg &b goMmamgdda Jomds@mbgdl Askana, Mziani and Dabali Etseri

Rom@odmom  bLgdnbomo  anbgzmmmaon@o “The village club” - As a result of the project
©5535©90900L 3GmBomod@osol bsgombgddg  a music hall was renovated in the village adminis-
©> 9gobm godmgygmggzgdo. trative building. This hall is the only venue where
village residents can attend various events or vil-

¢ Loogdm sbomasdBrmo (306G Jage meetings.

»33356G5m0% “Only the necessity!” — Under the project, a
3bgsbab 0980, 8mbsbeagmds - 498 ijet was built in the village centre, which is used
gmdero by workers in various facilities located in the vil-

3530 39dsgsmme bmgrgde: sbgsbs, lage centre, as well as by village residents.

33:.560('%0&12;?: 35%‘::%0“ ~ bmor “Safe environment for children”- As a result
7 gﬁ oQSOSn% o ‘{SGO‘CJQ’ 8360060%30 of the project, the flooring was replaced in two

classrooms of the elementary school.

99mb b MdoDo. gb
3208mbGEs Laoddm waGosbo. o ”Give me water!” — A potable water well was

Losgd@m omdsba bmgmoal dmbob-
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mgmdobogol  megdgy®obs o bbgowabbgs
mbalbdngdgdol gobadston gMomomgMon sw-
30000,

»3bmmmE 3930mgdemmds!® - 36mgd§nb
goMamgddo bmgmab (396@®do 8dgbos Lo-
30MgoMgdm, Momsz LafMggdmmadl Mmam(s
beoggemol  (396@M30 o@bgdama mdogd@gdab
dmdbobymg  3gMbmboma, sbggg  Logmal
dmbabmagmdas.

»9LosggFabm g3@gdm 3533398L" - 36myg -
Bob gobbm@z0gmgdol dgrmgasm ebygdocmn
Lgmmab @@ Lo gmobm mmsbdo ongm sbaemo
0985 30.

»©333emg306g Bysmoa!® - bmggemol (3968-
do 3mgbym babdgmon Bymob go, Homag bomgg-
Senmdlb bmgymab (396830 ocbgdemema bogsmm
LM, 3dms@mmoanl, g3bo babybomm
domodonl, Locmgdm (39680l bomImIsa qb-
mgdo s MBIMbgdymals 835Mo@0lb @absd-
dOmImgdo.

BmbsGonmob d9boindsemodgdo

¢ Loogdm sbomasdMeyma (396860
»3985%0"
boobmsgalb @gda, dmbsbmgmds -
456 3m3dma
3ds5b3a Fgdszsma Lmgmgda: bowab-
0530, dsbsmdgbn, b9bmdsba, dogdn-
gm0, 3960gm0 s Bagbsgzsms
»9LsggAabm a5693m 3533398L" - 3mbBL-
Goges Lzmemob bEsomba. 3s3d3930L bos-
BONbmMgdol obsozogom bimemal dodwgdotg
B9F0@mE0ol  Jpabsfgbomsb  sdszegdnig-
dgmo ggdofo dgdmammds, bmmm gDmb Bo-
szl Bymoom @o@dmmzabogsb
©5(330L 80bbom Lymemol gDm3n
93907000 s@bo.

* bLoogdm sbosmasdFmoyma
39680 ,3mbbs@ms”
3mbbsMab 0gdn, dmbsb-
mgmds - 509 3mdma
35bL3a Jgds35mn bmegemg-
d0: 3mbbama, 6s3509ma,
39@bsmn s Bogbstma

»m3bgds” - Mgodomogomg-
dmos bddsgdzm domo, 39Mdme,
35693mbGms Lzgmo BgMEGomgda
(Ladogomgdm ©s LaddoMgmmm).

built in the village centre, which is used by the
nearby public school, outpatient clinic, six gro-
cery stores, the community centre and employees
of the apparatus of the village representative (Rts-
munebuli).

Chokhatauri municipality

¢ Community Youth Centre “Gubazi”

Khidistavi community, population 456

households Villages of the communi-

ty: Khidistavi, Akhalsheni, Zenobani,
Chachieti, Metsieti and Tsifnagvara

“Safe environment for children” - As a result of

the project the school stadium was improved. A

levee connecting the school territory to the river

was fenced in to protect safety of the children,

and a drainage channel was rehabilitated in the

school yard to prevent it from flooding.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Kokhnara”
Kokhnara community, population 509
households Villages of the commu-
nity: Kokhnari, Nakaduli, Burnati and
Tsifnari
“Dream” - A kindergarten was re-
habilitated within the project frame-
works. In particular, water closets
(toilet and kitchen areas) were reno-
vated. As a result, the
kindergarten  that
has not been operat-
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dgogas 2011 Bgmb aonblbbgds,
Bemgdolb gobdogmmdsedn vmbdzoa-
meE 3ymggn, bodogdzm domo.

»3mbb3Ma s 3mbbsMms” - 3Mm-
q9&0b sbEMmgdal Igmgasw dmabgds bmes-
0l dos Lomdbm gbo.

wdomboo® - bmggm 3mbbomdn go3goms
bon, Hm3gmds(3 9Mc8sbgmb s 3ogd0cMs bm-
Bmgda bsgommo s 3mbbaman. bowds dmbsb-
mgmdsl dgdmgmes osbmmmgdom 9 38-00b0
abe.

236905 o @gommds” - 3Mmygd@nb
aobbm@(309madal  Jgmgasm bymal 3Gmo-
m9ds dmazems bLods3zdzm domb ©s sbemmb
Bo3bmzgmgdgm 16 mgsbl.

wBysma® - 3Gmgd@ob goMamgdda dgo-
30996 ,3mbbamsb® Lobdgmn Bymolb dogob-
GFomo.

¢ Loongdm sbosmasdAeamo (39680

»bg30"

Lbmggmo bggn, Imbsbemgmds - 220
3m3mao

3dsbdn Jgdszsmo bLmgmgda: bgzo,
dgmmogoo s d3gbogmn

»b3mmab bLs3dnMmgsmgdm® - 3mbgbmngms
LMl badomgemgdm, bgzalb bodmsmm bzm-
ol Imboggggdlb o dobbogmgdmgdl dmea-
35630 568 0bsbo@omnals 3Hmdmads.

#6356 Bysma dgmemogmda” - Loggm
dgmmogmdn  30hg0d30mgdab  ds6dn  sMbg-
d9emn byemab LobBgdal dggmo s sbgmdama
Bymob Bomgdo dgozgomes sbemoam, Mol dgg-
a005(3 Jong 9sbL Lobdgmn Bysema Fabmegds
24 Loomab gobdagemmdsda.
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ing for years will re-open in 2011.

“Kokhnari and Kokhnara” — As a result of the
project the village internal road connecting vari-
ous neighbourhoods was gravelled.

“Milkhidi” - Under the project, a connecting
bridge between villages Nakaduli and Kokhnari
was built, shortening the road by about 9 kilome-
tres.

“A dream or the reality” - As a result of the
project, water supply problem was solved for
the local kindergarten and 16 households living
around it.

“Water” - Within the project frameworks,
Kokhnara potable water pipeline was repaired.

¢ Community Youth Centre “Khevi”
Community Khevi, population 220
households Villages of the community:
Khevi, Bzholieti and Buksieti

“School toilet” - Under the project, the school
toilet was renovated which solved anti-sanitary
related problems for the students and teachers of
Khevi secondary school.

“Fresh water in Bzholieti” - As a re-
sult of the project, old and cracked water
pipes in the Vacheishvilis’ neighbourhood
of Bzholieti were replaced with new ones,
providing a 24 hour potable water supply




¢ LodbmgsmgdMagn  mMas6ada(30s,
Lysmgdm sbosmasd@Benmo (396@Ma
#36maMgbo
©5335 Rmbs§oygma, 3mbabemgmds - 900
3m3mao

»369390(300 - 003 30699L0b, C s B 3g358)0-
&ob* 3Mmgd@nb gomamgddo Ro@omms bgdab-
26380b (3030, LodmgsEMgdal 0bgm™mInmg-
b0l dggasm sdommes dosmo (36mdagmgds
06139430000 300530090 ©8335009853Dg: 503 0b-
3940, C s B 39358 0@ qdo.

»306364Malb Lobgmmzgbgdm BAg“ - Img-
Bym o dgbodsdabn bgmbebymadoo smagymgs
30656460L Lobgmmbbm. 3absb @als bgemmds
dgobbogmes 20-3s sbomasdmsd, 5 domgsbn

0gm bmgoomy@om ©a9)(339m MmRobgdowasb.

to the neighbourhood.
¢ Civil Society Organisation,
Community Youth Centre “Progresi”
County Chokhatauri, population 900
households
“Prevention - of HIV, C and B Hepatitis” - A
cycle of seminars was carried out under the pro-
ject. As a result, public information and aware-
ness raising was achieved regarding infectious
diseases, such as HIV, C and B hepatitis.
»Enamel art school“ - As a result of the
project, enamel art workshop was created and
equipped respectively. Up to 20 young people
learned the technique, five of them were from so-
cially unprotected households.
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Q3696010

J30/3MELITGOBNI3N/LIANGIMISN
S/CONSULTATIONS/SEMINARS

Lymgdm MmAas60D3(30980bmgal s ab:sqraa‘bﬁgmqm 32686 38abogals ‘

ANNEX

For CYCs and CBOs
1. CSRDG Program Volunteer Management 17
(3960l 3Omamads dmbaomoabgms Jommgos
2. CSRDG Program Volunteer Management 16
(39680l 3mamads dmbamabgms dofmgs
3. CSRDG Program Effective Organization 15
(396@®ab 3mamsds 99839d@M0 mEasbads30s
4. CSRDG Program Effective Organization 18
(39680l 3Omamads 9%9&mM0 mEasbabszns
5. CSRDG Program Self-evaluation Methodology 17
(39680l 3mamads ®300389535Lg0b dgmmmgdo
6. CSRDG Program Self-evaluation methodology 15
(39680l 3mamads ®30037535b9b0lb 3gomegdo
7. CSRDG Program Waste management 32
39660l 3Omamsds bamhgbgdob domromgs
8. CSRDG Program Land Privatization 50
(30660l 3BmaMads 30bols 3M0go@ndsz0s
9. CSRDG Program Export of Agricultural Goods 29
(3960l 3OmaMmads Leggemals dgebgmdals
3mEdoob gdbdmmEo
10. CSRDG Program Gender balance and Family Vio- 48
(39680l 3mamads lence
396@gEmmo 0obsLBmEms o
mgoby&o domawmds
11. DVV Training on IDP Legislation for 57

Lobambm 1baggMbodg@ms ggidsb-
@m0 dbm305(3006 bogoGmggmml

CBOQ’OOQ’O

community leaders on (5 trainings
in Shaumiani, Koda, Senaki, Jvari,
Menyji)

&M gbabgo ®9dob moEgM-
960bomgol - 356mb3gdemmds
0dgmgdom 3RS
dofms dgbobgd (5 GMgbobgo:
doy800b0, 3mEs, bgbszn, K360,
d9b%0)
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Lymgdm mMas6ads3ngdabmgab s sbasmasbHeymo 396@Mgdabogab

For CYCs and CBOs
12.DVV Training on Advocacy and Effective 76
Lobambm qbogg@bo@g@os 3gcdsb- | Participation for community lead-
o dbm305(3006 bagoGmggmmb ers (6 trainings in Shaumiani, Koda,
BOOSNO Senaki, Jvari, Menji and Bolnisi)
&Mgbabgo  mgdol  mowgmgdo-
Lbogolb 0bGgMgbos ©o330 o
9839460 0653mbabammgmds
(6 @Mgbnbgo: doydosbn, 3mws,
Lgbogo, ggoMo, dgbxo, dmebo-
Lo)
Sub-Total 390
by s3LbMgms Mosmmybmds
For NGO and Schools
3633b53N33MM3M M3 360Ds(30930b;z0b S bzmmgdabsmgab
1. OSI Effective financial management for 180
©05 bybdmasmgds — 0bbE GG Thbilisi, Gori, Rustavi, Telavi, Kutaisi,
Ozurgeti school directors
989J&M0 BabsbbyMa dommngs
(0d0abobl, gm&ob, Agbomagal,
ogmsgol, mbymagoob bgmemab
©oMgd@mmgdabomgal)
. OSI Development of Tbilisi, Gori, Rusta- 167
005 Lydmgomgds — abbGoGn@n i vi, Telavi, Kutaisi school boards in
Georgia
LoB8gyMggm Loddmb Gmmo o
396730900 (mdaemobal, amol,
bosgol, ogmogal, Jygomsanbol
Lgmmagdol Lodgn@ggm Ladgmb
bg369dabomgals)
. OSGF Project Writing 32
005 bydmasmgds —bsjommggmm i 3Mmgd@ab bgMols &qbozs
. OSGF Effective Organization and NGO 29
005 Lybdmasmgds —bsgeMomggemm i Management Skills
9%9d&nM0 mBasbodszos @s be-
BmgomgdMozo mMasbodsgnab
dommgal ¢batrgda
. OSGF Volunteer Management 15
005 bydmasmgds —bogesmmggmm i Imbsmabgms dsmmgs
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For NGO and Schools

363b53NS3MMEM mﬁaosn%aenaaansnb ©3 bzmmgdobsmgzgal

6. OSGF Project Management 32
005 Lybdmas@mgds —bajsMmggmm ) 36mg &b dotrmgs

7. OSGF Strategic Planning 20
005 bydmasmgds —bsjsMmggmm ) LEMIG R0 393335

8. OSGF Fund-rising 30
000 babmasmgds —bodeMmggmm | gmbogdol dmdogds

9. Project - Promotion of Social Entrepre- : Social Entrepreneurship 64
neurship in Georgia Lmgnsmay@o 8gbsmdgmds
3mgd@o - bagsmmggemmda bm-
30 m&0 3gbscmdgmdals aobgo-
@500l bgmdgbymdos

Sub-Total 569

Loy s3LbMgms MosmEybmds

Paid services

335b0s60 Am3babeyMgds

1. SMART i Fund-rising 15
(39680l 3mamsds - dommgals 3mbegdol dmdngds
bgmmgbgdals bgmems :

2. SMART Human Resource Management 15
(39680l 3ma®mads -dommngals 208060 Mgby@bgdols
bgemmzbgdol bgmmes ) dofmgo

3. NDI Effective Management skills 21
9636 gdmgModanmo 0bbGo- i gugd&nco dsmmgal gbsmgdo
&0&0

4. Partners Georgia Strategic Planning 17
3oMBbommgda bsjosmggemm i bg®o@ggonmo ©oggadge

5. Save the Children Effective Organization and Strategic 40
3500535Mhobma 35393930 Planning

989d&nM0 mEas60bs (300 @
1 bEMo@aaonmo ©oagadss

6. Civil Development Agency (CIDA) ! Project Writing 23
bodmgomsdm asbgomamgdols bos- i 3Gmgd@ob Bg@ol qg6030
3968™ ,

7. NRC Project Writing 51
bmfgganol m@megomas badgm i 3Gmgd@ab bgmab §qqdbogs

8. NRC i Effective Management skills 26
bmgga00b m@megomos badgm i gx39d@mGo demmgal mbadgda

Sub-Total 208

by s3LbMgms Mosmgbmds
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For LG Representatives
spanmmdmaga bymobuygmgdob bsGImIswagbmgdabozalb

1. Delegation of the European Union to Training on municipal property 148
Georgia (EU) formation and property manage-
936m353d0600b BomImIsaqbemm- | ment (9 Trainings in Thilisi, Batumi,
b5 bagoGonggmmadn Kutaisi, Poti, Telavi, Ambrolauri,

Rustavi, Akhaltsikhe and Gori)
dnbozndomydo 4mbgdals
BmMHAnMgds s gobzomags (9
&M gbabgo: mdaemabon, doomyydo,
Jaoooabo, gmon, mgmago, o3-
demmana, Gnbmego, obsm-
(3069 ©d gmn)

2. Delegation of the European Union to Workshop on municipal property 30
Georgia (EU) formation and property manage-
936m35330600b Bomdmdsagbemm- i ment in Thbilisi
35 bagoGonggmmadn Loddom dgbggoms - dnbozo-

3omyfn  Jmbgdol xm@Iamgds
5 356356335 (daemabin)

3. Delegation of the European Union to Training on local budgeting and 150
Georgia (EU) monitoring (9 Trainings in Tbilisi,
936m353d0600b BoMmImIsmaqbemm- i Batumi, Kutaisi, Poti, Telavi, Am-

35 bagoMmnggmmadn brolauri, Rustavi, Akhaltsikhe and
Gori)
sa0mmdMogn  donxg@ntgds
s dmbo@mmabgo (9 G gbabgo:
odomabo, dscmydn, Jmmaabo,
FON0, Mgmsego, S3dMHmmaMo,
Aboo30, sbamz0bg s amMa)

4. Delegation of the European Union to i Workshop on local budgeting and 22
Georgia (EU) monitoring in Tbilisi
936m353d0600b bodImIsaqgbemm- i badmdom dgbggoms - sanmm-

35 bagoGomnggmman dM030 donxg@0Mgds s dmbo-
GmMabgo (mdomabo)
5. Delegation of the European Union to Training on Municipal services and citi- 128

Georgia (EU)
q36m35330600b BoMImBog 9bemm-
35 bogomoggmmdo

zen participation (9 Trainings in Tbilisi,
Batumi, Kutaisi, Poti, Telavi, Ambrolau-
ri, Rustavi, Akhaltsikhe and Gori)
dnbozndomy@n dm3bobyFg-ds
5 dmgomadgos ©obsdmbobo-
mgmds (9 @Mgbaban: mdaeabo,
b3, Jyomonbo, gmon, ogm-
530, 03dMmmanMo, Gnbmego,
sba(30bg o ameo)
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For LG Representatives
sanmmdmaga bymobygmgdob b3GImIswagbmgdabogzalb

6. DVV Training on Municipal Election Law 62

Lobombm 1bnggMbo@g@oms agMdsb- i (5 traiings in Marneuli, Senaki, Tetrit-

o dbm309(3006 bogoGmggmml skaro, Tsalenjikha, Rustavi)

BOINSMO 3obmbo dmbozadomyma sMhgg-
6gdal dgbobgd (5 EMgbobgo:
dombgmema, Lgbszo, mgm@abys-

o, Bomgbgobs, Hmboogn)
7. DVV Training on Local government in 68

Lobambm xboggmbo@g@os 3gcdsb- : Georgia (5 traiings in Marneuli, Sena-

a0 sbmgosz00l bagoGmggmml i ki, Tetritskaro, Tsalenjikha, Rustavi)

BOOSm0 saommdMogn  bgmabyyegmgds
Logommggmmda (& §Mgbobgo:
dombgmo, Lgbszo, mgmGobys-

e, Bamgbgabs, Gqbomsgn)
8. DVV Training on Effective citizen par- 59

Lobaombm mbnggMbodg@ms aqgMdsb- | ticipation in local governance (5

Mo dbm309(3006 bogoGmggmml traiings in Marneuli, Senaki, Tetrit-

BONSMO skaro, Tsalenjikha, Rustavi)
05653mbobomagmds  sgomm-

36030 3505693980mgdgdabs
8omgdsdo (5 @Mgbabgn: 3ombgyy-
mo, bgbsgo, ogo@abyseim,
Bomagbyxobs, Mmbmaga)
9. DVV Training on Local Budgeting (5 trai- 63

Lobambm bogg®mbo@g@os ggcdsb- : ings in Marneuli, Senaki, Tetritska-

a0 sbmzos300b bagdomggmml i ro, Tsalenjikha, Rustavi)

BOIOSMO sEaommdMogn  donxg@nmgds
(5 @Mgbobgo: dombgemon, Lgbs-

30, ogocobystm, Bomgbxabs,

ybosgn)
Sub-Total 730
by s3LBMgms MosmEybmds
GRAND TOTAL 1897
XO3VmN) AOMRIGMBD
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Q3696010

2010 6emob 358m393980
J3mbmdn 35 s beosenmmo Smemodo s
donymg§gbo Ne 116

LogdMM Baboblbgdal bGMYJG N s dot-
»30b 3606303980 badoFmggmmaa /3. dq-

@QYE@09, e2. 3Mgenodgoco/
Lonbggb@oiom  Lgd@mEal  sbomabo  ©s
93MbmBognGo Mool 3gMmb3gd@nggdo

baogotmggmmdon / a. dbgmodg/
donymg§gbo Ne 117

Bysmo s Ro6IGMgmmdal 3HMdmgdgdo
bogotmggmmda / 8. Babom&sdgaema/

®©96966 M350 b53305/0300333MHaz90mm-
30b 35630059385

3Mm3yMagda:

ogmsgal 2010 Bemal dogygg@ob sbomnbo;

Loembomol 2010 Bemol dogyxg@nb sbsemnbo;
magmEgbol 2010 Brab dogx,g8 0L sbaemabda;
md&agoob 2010 Bemal doggxg@ob sbsmmaba;
Bmbo@onmal 2010 Benab domxg@ob sbaemabo;

396gMgmo dogRg@ab sb3gg@gdo.

bo dmgso@mgdmngo mmgsbndszngdnb oo
bymengdob gobz00m5M9385

33R@I3°

LogdoMmmggemmda babmasmgdMaga mmasb-
0b3(30980b gob30maMgdal ©nbsdngs s &gb-
©gb(309%0.

3mm3yMagda:

begosma@o dgbacdgmdol LagMmadmen-
be godmamgdal dgbBogms;
bemgosma@o Jgbsmdgmdal Ggammomgds
bogofmggmmb 306mb3pgdmmdsdo;
bmgosma@o 8gBsmdgmds — badofomgg-
mmb babmgsmgdMogo mMasbadszngdab
aodmzomads.

2009 Bemab 3aMmason a3bznmsmgdals
36g56mnda.

ANNEX

CSRDG publications in 2010
Economics and Social policy
Bulletin N116

o Structure and Management Principles of Pub-
lic finances in Georgia /Sh. Murgulia, L. Goge-
lashvili/

o Investment Sector Analysis and Perspectives
of Economic Growth in Georgia /G. Dzne-
ladze/

Bulletin N117

o Water and health problems in Georgia /A.
Mindorashvili/

Government Decentralization/ Local gov-
ernment development

Brochures:

2010 Buget Analyze of Telavi municipalitie;
2010 Buget Analyze of Signagi municipalitie;
2010 Buget Analyze of Lagodekhi municipalitie;
2010 Buget Analyze of Ozurgeti municipalitie;
2010 Buget Analyze of Chokhatauri municipalitie;
The Aspects of Gender Budget.

Development of Civil Society Organiza-
tions and Public Schools

Research

Civil Society Organizations in Georgia - Dynam-
ics and Trends of Development

Brochures:

o Studying International Experience in Social
Enterprising;

o Regulation of Social Enterprising in the Geor-
gian Legislation;

 Social Enterprising - Experience of Georgian
Civil Society Organisations

Sustainability Report 2009.
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Q3696010

2010 6erob nbsbbeymn sb35Mmndn

1. 80b6s6byMa Jpam3dsmgmdab 335635603935 (mo3n)

ANNEX

Financial Report for 2010 / Auditort’s
Report 2010

2010 6emob 1 0563056 2010 6emob 31 @g;393860b Bsomgemoo 39Mmnmpnbsoznb

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ( IN GEL)
or the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010

03603330 ASSETS
d03nbs6g 39d@ngzgd0 Current Assets
g bablbfmgdo s doma § 252,641 1260,180 i Cash and Cash Equivalents
03303°006G 930
Logomababaom og@ngqdo i 26,415 8,936 Tax Assets
a3dboamoa 5356L9b0 : 2,090 - Advance Payment

Ly B080batg od@ngqdo i 281,046 1 269,116 : Total Current Assets
afdgmgansba 3d@nzgda Long-term Assets

dofomon badmsemagdgdo i 202,683 219,765 : Fixed assets

b aMdgemgamnsbo sg@nggdo i 202,683 219,765 : Total long-term Assets

Leyem 59@nggdo

483,729

488,880

Total Assets

JbI3M3V30 : 396,261 : 448,269 : RESERVES
3096560mgdgma Imggds/bomama | 43,153 40,611 i Accumulated gain/loss
808mnbaty gomgdmgdgdn 439,414 ;488,880 : Current Liabilities
30bmEgd0©sb ©s i 761 - Accounts Payable
3maLabnFgdnwseb bocdmJdboema
3200395900
a05bsbogmon bgmesebgdo i 16,923 - Salary Payables
Logowabobam gomeadamgds i 26,631 - Tax Liabilities
bmem 808nboMyg gomeadamgdgda | 44,315 - Total Current Liabilities
by GgdgMggdo o | 483,729 | 488,880 : Total Reserves and Liabilites
33y egdgde | :
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2. gy bobbMgdab ImndMosmdab 563560033985 (mo@dn)
2010 6emob 1 0563/M056 2010 6emob 31 @g;393860b Bsomgemno 39Mmnmmnbsoznb

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010

0565330m8mgddg ao(3990mo i (463,685) i (309,262) i Cash Paid to Employees
®obbgdn

3560 3m3Laby@gdobsmgal s | (300,228)  :(222,470)  : Paid amounts for goods/services apply

dgdgboemo Logmbmobogal asggdaemo
Feaea bobbgdo

303mmamab@gdo i (307,996) :(258,773) i Micro Grants Given
bbgs 3Mmamadamo batgqda i (157,718) i (132,345) i Other Operating Expenses

a903bomo bsdgdmbsgmm i (89,985) (81,998) Income Taxes Paid
ao@sbobowo

dofoman bademgdgdab 3gdgbs i (5,805) (10,129) Purchase of Premises and Equipment

396bos ImMab bbgsmdawsb domg- : (3,162) (25,918) Exchange Rate Loss
dmo Dsmsemo
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3. 333mbsgsma/ bamea guymab d53mbgms (macda)
2010 6emob 1 0563056 2010 6emab 31 ©g9;3933M0b Bsomzemoo 3gmompnbsmznb

STATEMENT OF Cash Receipts ( In GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010

dbz08-6mgodo | 322,668 462,676 | OXFAM - NOVIB
"""" 93gboob gobgomemgdals | 651,712 473,822 | Church Development Service (EED)
Loogqgb@m
“"gﬁmd%ammb BomImomaqb- 103,964 - Delegation of the European Union to
mmds bagdoMoggemmdo i Georgia
........ Bog3memmdozgL (3membgon) 4912 - Niepolomitse Municipality (Poland)
dgbozndomo@g@o
........ Bmbeo “assgemhabmo | 8,443 - i Foundation “Save the Children”
35333900”
........ bmf39800b mBmEgomos i 14,391 - iNRC
Lodgm
........ 3566990l Goombols | - 2,120 { Marneuli Socio-economic develop-
Legnomm@-q3mbmdo 3mto : : ment fund
a0bg0mamgdal mbron
mméo@gob&)b o0mbob bmznom- | - 2,120 : Gardabani Socio-economic develop-
ME-93mbm3n 3o ment fund
306300056960b ggmbeon
5DgMdonRbal sbomasbdMs | 7,992 - i Azerbaijan Young Leaders Associa-
oM Sbm(305(300 i tion
"""" bodmdomadm asbgomotndal | 1,633 _iCIDA
@ 3003 a : :
Looggb@m : :
........ &Mgb0bggdabes s 333900l - 23,327 UN Institute for Training and Re-
3096mmb 0bb oGy search (UNITAR)
........ 96m369m ©qdm3MoGommon 1,878 - NDI
0bbGoGN GO : :
........ 309cmmb gobznmemgdals - 1,000 UNDP
36Gmaods |
........ “MWH” 3mbbm& 3080 i 1,130 9,053 : MWH Consortium
........ 005 bydmgsmgds — 50,015 Open Society Institute

0bbBo@ydo

33,606 ;
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@05 bobdmasmgds — | 62,547 13,017 | Open Society Foundation - Georgia
............. bogooggene
Bmboo "sgbobgma” i 1,865 - | Found “Abkhazeti”
............. Jme‘ng@)oG;c.)bo ©o - 2,676 é..Center for Training and Consultancy
&®60630b (30680 !
""'2;5";&]%“» bogtﬁmo"dm(ﬁﬂi;‘;’ 3mb- 20,154 - WAFC Consultants  International
Ly @ob@gdo GmbH
........... 3 SGEBomBgBo bodoﬁ.g).goqmm 5,165 - “Partners Georgia
............. L)Oboq)bm 1860386b(:é8@m0 58,582 ~ “DVV
396356 sbmgoszoals
bodomggmmmb goemosemo
""""""" BF0Em0b gdg@Eb gmbeo | 10,814 33,433 | Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)
............. ogﬁmQOS 34’541 43,618 APRODEV
.".'.‘..866806638()[) @6()336.[;;@)3@)0 : 3,231 3,838 ...Birmingham University
............. o dm;&m(goo _ 1,405 "Karat Coalition
m"[;;g;sﬁmwgrmb 606007@5%0[) o i- 2,850 "Ministry of Education and Science
3936096930l bLodobobGMm
............. Jm6C3Q’ﬂd@)ag.(.)l)o o i 3,523 14,150 Tnternational Centre for Conflict and
3565398000 LogMMsdmm- Negotiation
obe (396@M0
............ ;30330(470 ogpoSooBaESc;’L;lsmanb 2,726 2,657 g..Union for children in need of special
356Ld 3N dmm DNzl M3 care
bognmgdgb :
~~~~~~~~~~ 5530t “o[;:?r)B do” i 1,345 “Union “Aspindza”
............. sbamasb@me 33@;2;“’6070 - 1,338 “Young Pedagogue Union
3938060
............. sbmznazns “[.]&"3050” - 4,837 "Association “ELKANA”
"""" dols 36m© g 900b 86;:68(*)3— 1,381 1,338 “Dairy produce union
BOQ’C”O '3033060
""""""" dob Bﬁ)mg\)‘égéabnb - 2,796 “Fermers for Diary produce
3B563mgdgemms 96396 gda
......... QGQOBOQQ‘:{]’;.Q)‘Q]F)O 13,316 3,000 'Contributions from Individuals
398mbomymmdgdo
""""""" ©a3mBogob % | - 5,883 | % of Deposit
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239Loob 35630036930l

bssagb@m
EED 651,712; 52%

3.1 embm@Mqdabasb domgdyma guymaea LabbMgda (1 244 405 mama)

TOTAL INCOME FROM DONORS (1 244 405 GEL)

mgLs3/6mz030
Oxfam-Novib 322,668; 26%

OSY 50,015; 4%

@03 babdmaspmgds
bsgsmggmm
OSGF 62,547; 5%

239680b 3mbeo
10,814; 1%

3063063930b 9boggmboggdo
Birmingham University 3,231; 0%

B3m 3533 b Bs@m3 Eened
- bsgsmggmmdn i

“36mmage EU 103,964; 8%

Aprodev

s e 60g3mmmdazglb /396aizndsmadgo (3mmmbgon)
a0 S

Niepdomitse Municipality (Poland) 4,912; 1%

o 363930330 b3b3sM Jgdm 3madsms g56ds3M G gds:

EED - Church Development Service/g3mmgbool gobgomatgdals basg 968 m

OXFAM-NOVIB - ogstam-novibi

005 bydmasEmgds - abbEodaEo

E H B f B B B B B

23emgbanb 33630056930l
bos396@m /EED 651,712

mgbgs3/6mganda

Oxfam-Novib 322,668; 26%
0035 LodmasEMyds - 0bbGaG NG
OSY 50,015; 4%

@05 bydmaspmgds bagsGamggmm
OSGF 62,547; 5%

33680l ambo
%12, 195

2360 35330600b 6563M3sag6eomds
Lags@aggemmda/ EU 103,964; 8%

Bag3memBazgb /3Bagedsmadgdo (3memmByon)
Niepdomitse Municipality (Poland) 4,912; 1%

336mpggn/Aprodev
34,541; 3%

306306 6 L 8
39300 9603y Rl

Birmingham University 3,231; 0%

OSGF - Open Society — Georgia Foundation/gmbgo ,m00 babmgsmmgds — bogommggmm®

OSI - Open Society Institute /0bbGo&nE 0 »005 Labmasmmgds®
FES - Friedrich Ebbert Stiftung /g360060b 939680l gmboa

EU-Delegation of the European Union to Georgia /936 m 30330600 Botdmagqgbmmds badetmggmman

3.1 3563990 LyFz0bgdoo (§MHgbabagdams s 3MbLYMmES(30g00m) Jomgdyma 3gdmbagsema

Income from services provided (trainings and consultations)

Lobsmbm mbnggMbodg@oms agMdsbymoa sbmz0s(300L bogjomggmmb gamosma 58582
DVV

96036m-0g3m3GeGommo 0bbod e /NDI 1878
2005350h0bmm 35333980 /Save The Children 8443
368308 gd0bo s Bmmadsts3gdsms bagmmsdmmabm 396@ Mo /ICCN 3523
3938060 5058056980Lm30l, 356Ls FNPNG MM BHNB35L HMAB bogoBmgdgb 2726.43
Union - for people needed special care

(dobs 36:m1JEgd0b 3656dmgdgmms 3ogdoma /Dairy produce union 1381
“MWH” 306bm& 300980 / MWH SA/ NV 1130.4
Bne39300L m@mengomons bodgm / NRC 14391
badmdomagm asbzomomgdal bosggb@m /CIDA 1633
Rmboo ,o53bsbgmn” / Found “Abkhazeti” 1865
»9095L0" bagMomsdm@mabm 3mbbym@s6@gdo 20154
AFC Consultants International GmbH

3bgMdong b0l sbomasdMms mowgfms sbmzaszns 7992
Azerbaijan Young Leaders Association

»,3968bomE 980 badoMmggmm” /Partners Georgia 5165
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4. bs@ga/bsmeo gymab gsbgms
2010 6emob 1 0563056 2010 6emab 31 ©g9;3933M0b Bsomzemoo 3gmompnbsmznb

Statement of Cash Disbursement
For the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010

ORINBOLGMIBGNITN 144,801 121,459  DMINISTRATION COSTS
bYMX IS0

3MmaMmsdnma bosmggda 1,248,088 889,862  Program costs
1. badmgsmagdm bobmgsmgdab 671,211 473,162 1. Empowerment of

LEOEYJEYAH>NS g3dmngFgds Civil Society
3Mma®@30b JmmEobo®gdal bofmgqdo 172,577 142,409  Program coordination (Personnel, Equ
(396bmBamo, sergdnGgommds, GMBL- ipment,Transportation,program  related
3mEOG0Mgds, 3Mmamodabmob s 3033- costs)

0f9d99ma batigqdo)
dmdomds sbomasbMgdmsb (CYC-ob 305,033 280,420  Activities with Youth (Initiation of

LaByabn, 803Mmamab@gda, §gdognco CYGC;Micro-grants;technical support;
dbatogg®s, dmbo@mmnban s dggaby- monitoring&evaluation; information
35, 0bgym@ma300b go@a(393s, 393d060) sharing;networking)
Log8056mds bgmmadmeb s NGO-bmsb 193,600 50,333 Activities with school& NGOs on national
9m3bmm mbg by level
2. 3356n39mmBabl g5 xmdgbgds 426,476 280,404  2.Improved Governence
36mg@adol JmmMEnbofgdal bafggda 167,098 110,906  Program coordination (Personnel, Equ
(396Lmbamo, sgmMgomds, §MobL- ipment,Transportation,program  related
3G 0Mgds, 3HmaMsdobmab s 3o33ntg- costs)
dmo bafggd0)
39b6mb3gdrmmdal s dogyxg@nb 8mbo- 185,318 67,404 Activities of Law &budget monitoring;
BmMM0bgo; M&E; 803Mmamob@gdo M&E; Microgrants
osemmaal 3mmo@nzs gfmsbeyem 84,060 102,094  Activities of Policy dialogue at
mbgby national level

3. bmzosmyMo 33bybabdagdemmds 35,412 88,313 3. Social Responsibility
36ma 3ol JmmEabomgdal bofmggdo 30,804 31,379 Program coordination (Personnel, Equ

(39Mbmbama, segyMgommds, &Mobl- ipment, Transportation,program  related
3mEG0Mgds, 3mamedalosb s 3ogd- costs)
0f5099ma botgqdo)
Leznama@o 3obmbobdggdmmdals | 4,365 378 Activities on CSR (Drafting State poli-
bgmdgdbymda Labgmdbogm 3meon- cy)
&0gob dgdmdaggds
bmgosma®m sbgomndggdal 242 56,555 Activities on Social reporting

©5bgMa30L bymbymds

d3gx°d01 1,392,889 1,011,321 Subtotal 1
aomgamabbobgdgmo/cgdgmga 18,348 3,655 Unforeseen/Reserve
d39xs30 2 18,348 3,655 Subtotal 2

o bom 1411286 1014976 Tewl
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tgem: 4995 32 545 845 v, gahlnanl
BDO asfun: +995 32 399 204 A4 Lo
hdo@bdo ge 0177 oo
N — e —— ]

www.bdo.ge SO A

©38m30@9bg sIEoGMOEMS 3365

bagstoggermb byGsdgaonme 33woadols @3 p3630msGydob ggbbMob bywddugsbaemdsl
Rgg6 Ragachsenen Lisgstaggeml LihHedgaonwo 33@agols @ 336300ms6gBob aobRHob
(meg3bobegns) gobsbbuymo 36asG0dagdob sv@odo, Gmagmog Gmogagh badawsbbem migobl 2010
fiemob 31 9398860l damBsmymbdoom, sbggg Bmms@o bablmgbob Gomgdobs ©s batxgol
36365083905b s @MErso Bagagdol Bmdmamdob sbgstodagbal 08 femobaomgob, Gmdgerog
@LOYEEs BmEndnmo msonom, sbgzg Bgbisdadol brsm@ogbgm dmeno®ogabs @s sblibs-

336856 hgdom Bgbodgbgdl. 8magdmero gobsblimmo sbasmodagbs mdba@gdmmos mGasbobsgools
bgeradeasbganmbols Bog goBBbzo sBasH0Bagdol Byodgydo 336aAAIBNE dmanodozob
(8980pm0B0 bssmMogbgm dmemodings) gbsdsdobs.

8969896050 3sbgbolidpgbermbs gobblioe s6gsolagbsty

bymddmgabgermbs 3sbirmbodagdamos gobsblvymo s6asM0dagbols mdbaogbsbs s ol
Ladstogmosh Fatioagbs®byg bysomogbgm dmmodogol Bobgwgom, Gm8gerog dolsngdos Bmgglume
Lod1s30380 gobiblmmo 36330083980l 8mBbswpgdobmgal, sbggy obgmo Bogs JmbBmmeol
Lob@ndol 834665bs @ psBmygbgdaby, GmBgamog mMmasboBagool byemddngsbwrmdol Gfdgbom,
Hbembggmmymgl obgmo gobbbnmo sbasmodagdol mdbsggbal, Gmdgaog 56 dgogsgl
mseonmdob 36 8ggwomdol gmaps Famdmimboer sMbgdom BggomdgdL.

sapadmions dsbgbolidagbermbbo

R3qbl 3sbvbobdpgdanmbsdo Bg@ob, gsdmamgasm dmbabmgds gobibbunm sbasmodagdstby Rggbl
309 Rahatdeyeo s30¢ob bydsgdom. sEodb Foradhmagron smwagol
LagHoadmmobie bksbostdhgdol Bgbadsbobag. bhebos@gdo Bmombmgl smoodol Radsmgbsl
907030b Bmeidgdol gaagserolifiobgdoo, sbgag sodob 083G @RI @ Bidsgds,
608 Bogommo Esbsdmgdamo pstbios 08obs, Bgogegh oy 56 sabodbrmmo gobiblvmo
3656083985 5GLYBOM MBMLBhmdgdL.

390¢h0 0mz3eolifobybl 3Gmggommndob bagwdagmBy 8¢ 30a90megdydol dmdmgodsl
gobsblim® 36a5m0Ba9d380 Bmpggdmo mabbydobls s 0bgm®mdagool @smsbirmgdol dobboo.
BgeRgmere 3hmgyenGabo g8vdbyds sneedmeol Bbxgwmdsb, Hmdgerog dmogsgh BobblgH
365008398380 mimmomnmdob 36 ggomdob Bywpase aednfagmnwo brbtmdgdob Golbzolb
g@obgdsb. seBodbremo Goligzgdob Bggsbgdobst smmodm®o asbobomaglh mGasbobsgool Gogs
JmBBmmarab Loliggdsl, Gmdgmog Bgbsbadobins gobablvmmo s6as@0dagdol dmdbaogdsbs @
LaBstrmeosh famoagbabmsb. s8ob bagmdggm g smmodmto agadegh Bgbsdsdob smmodmemem
3HMEIEONRL, BoaMad o6 338mbategh magob Bmbsbmgdsb megsbobagool Bos 3mbEHHmenals
Liobihgdol ggaddmmdol gbsbgd. s7ndo saMymag awIeolbdmdlb gobsblmo sbasm0odagdol
B8m8%Bagogdobisl byemddmasbyemmdols Bogh asdmyabaderymo drmserd o snGogbgzol
36obgn3gdobs s 860836gmmasbo drmmsm@mmo Bgsbigdgdol bobfmmol Bgxsbndsl, saMymay
@0b36bmGo 36a36083980L Fatmoygbol Bgasbgdsl.

33X069, 08 Bggbl Bog 8mdmggdrero sg@odMGEo 8¢30aI8egdyde @sbIdmYdIE
Lagdgganl a3sdengal abizgbol asbaggdsw.

@sljg65

Rggbo sbHom, Famdmopnbowro Robbbmmo s635Mm08a9Bs MHYmIMIE ©s badsmmemnsbap sbsbsgh
Lagshoggarels bHhaonwmo 33magols s 33bgomstgdob ggbh@ols gobsbln® Brymdsmymdsl
2010 Femob 31 qog3gdd@obsmzols, sbggg Bobo Bmemso bsbligdol Bomgdobs s bamxgol
36560839850 ©5 @ 63335@Hdol BmdMamdol s6asMmodagdsl 0d ferobsmgob, Gmdgmog
©sbHvemos Bmggduemo msGonom, basemogbgm dmwmodnzol Bgbsbsdobsc.

83b ,.boom*
11 3s6¢yo, 2011 %S{I &.gnm
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Tel: +995 32 545 845 42 Kazbegi Avenut
Fax: +995 32 399 204 4th floor
- bdo@bdo.ge 0177 Thilisi

e www,bdo,ge Gl"ﬂrﬂ?f\

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Management of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Center of Strategic Researches
and Development of Georgia (Organization), which comprises statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010 and the statement of cash receipts and disbursements and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, also a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. The financial statement has been prepared by
management according to the policy disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
(further Accounting Policy).

Management's responsibility for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Policy, which is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements under the circumstances, and for the such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Organization’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the
statement of financial position of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of
Georgia as of 31 December 2010, and of its statement of cash receipts and disbursements
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, in accordance with the Organization
Accounting Policy.

BDO LLC

11 March 2011 OBDO ‘LLC

BDO LLC, a Georgian limited liability company, s 8 member of BDO Intermational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
tional BDO network of independent member firma
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Center for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia 1s grateful to Dr. Bill
McCabe, Dr. Angus McCabe and Dr.
Helen Harris (United Kingdom) for work
on the redrafting and preparation of final
English text.



